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Forward-looking Statement

This document contains statements
about expected future events, financial
and operating results of GMR Power and
Urban Infra Limited (the ‘Company’),
which are forward-looking. By their nature,
forward-looking statements require

the Company to make assumptions

and are subject to inherent risks and
uncertainties. There is a significant risk
that the assumptions, predictions, and
other forward-looking statements will

not prove to be accurate. Readers are
cautioned not to place undue reliance

on forward-looking statements, as
several factors could cause assumptions,
actual future results, and events to differ
materially from those expressed in the
forward-looking statements. Accordingly,
this document is subject to the disclaimer,
which is qualified in its entirety by the
assumptions and risk factors that are
referred to in the management discussion
and analysis report, forming part of the
Annual Report 2024-25.
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At GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
(GPUIL), we have built a firm foundation
based on our experience in executing and
efficiently operating high impact projects
across various infrastructure. Our large-scale
thermal assets at Kamalanga and Warora,
coupled with successful implementation of
projects across transportation and urban
infrastructure domains, have reinforced
stakeholder trust- equipping us to navigate
change with confidence and embrace
emerging opportunities while expanding
scale of our operations.
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Financial Statements

As the energy and infrastructure
landscape is being reshaped by digital
transformation, evolving consumer

needs, and an increasing demand for
clean energy, we at GPUIL are seizing the
moment by pivoting towards Energy 2.0.
We are building a future-ready portfolio
that blends our conventional strengths with
next-generation solutions. Our forays into
smart metering, EV charging networks and
planned expansion in renewable energy
and power distribution franchise models
align with national priorities and place us
at the forefront of India’s transition to a
cleaner, smarter future.

With a strong foundation and clear
strategic direction, we are well-positioned
to unlock sustained growth, bolster our
market position, and create long-term
value for all stakeholders.

6th Annual Report 2024-25 05
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GMR Group will be an institution in perpetuity that will
build entrepreneurial organizations making a difference
to society through creation of value.

—=VALUES & BELIEFS =

Mahatma
Gandhi

Humility

JRD
Tata

Entrepreneurship

We value intellectual modesty and
dislike false pride and
arrogance

We seek opportunities -
they are everywhere

Sardar
Vallabhbhai Patel

Deliver the Promise

Tenzing &
Hillary

Teamwork &

Respect for Individual
We value a deep sense of
responsibility and self-discipline,
to meet and surpass on
commitments made

Nurturing a relationship
of trust, collaboration
and mutual respect.

il

Swami
Vivekananda

Learning &
Inner Excellence

Mother
Teresa

Social Responsibility

Anticipating and meeting

We cherish the lifelong .
commitment to deepen our self relevant and emerging needs
awareness, explore, experiment of society

and improve our potential
Warren
Buffett
Financial
Prudence - Frugality
We spend wisely and
judiciously
GMR Group
Sz . [ 13-\
ik & % D W
.
Airports Energy  Transportation  Urban Infra Services Sports Foundation

www.gmrgroup.in
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With ministries directed to develop a three-year
pipeline of projects under the Public Private
Partnership (PPP) model and state governments
encouraged to follow suit, private sector
participation is set to expand substantially. This
sets the stage for businesses like ours to leverage
India’s strong fundamentals and prepare for a
smarter future.

G M Rao,
Chairman, GMR Group

08 GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
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Dear Stakeholders,

It is my privilege to welcome you all

to the 6! Annual General Meeting

of your Company and to share with
you the performance and progress
achieved during FY 2024-25. This has
been a year of consolidation, resilience
and sustainable growth.

Flourishing Domestic
Economy

Throughout the past year, the Indian
economy continued to stand out

as an engine of growth, even as
global economic prospects remained
subdued amid geopolitical and trade
uncertainties. The country surpassed
Japan to become the world's 4th
largest economy and is now well

on track to displace Germany from
the third position. This remarkable
growth trajectory is in line with India’s
aspiration to become a developed

country — Viksit Bharat — by 2047 as
it approaches the centenary year of
its independence.

The infrastructure sector is poised to
play a defining role in the country’s
growth story. With ministries directed
to develop a three-year pipeline of
projects under the Public Private
Partnership (PPP) model and state
governments encouraged to follow
suit, private sector participation is

set to expand substantially. This sets
the stage for businesses like ours to

I am pleased to share that smart meter
operations have already achieved
‘Operational Go-Live’ across all three Special
Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) implementing

the projects. Moreover, SPVs have

begun receiving payments against

invoices submitted to the distribution

companies (DISCOMs).

Financial Statements
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leverage India’s strong fundamentals
and prepare for a smarter future.

Strengthening the
Foundation

Your Company has already begun to
reap the rewards of the disciplined
efforts it has undertaken over the past
few years. These include strengthening
the balance sheet and reducing debt
through asset monetisation and

claim realisations.

Last year, we reached an amicable
settlement with the National Highways
Authority of India (NHAI) on the
Hyderabad-Vijayawada project,

as part of which NHAI had agreed

to pay a compensation of ¥ 1,387
crore. The project was then handed
back to NHAI on July 01, 2024, after
receipt of compensation. In another
significant development in July 2024,
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds
(FCCBs), originally held by the Kuwait
Investment Authority (KIA), were
sold by KIA in the secondary market
to new investors, who subsequently
exercised their option of converting

6t Annual Report 2024-25 09
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Chairman’s Message

their respective FCCBs into equity at
GPUIL. In a welcome move, these new
investors also waived all accumulated
interest before conversion, providing
your Company with a stronger
balance sheet.

We also addressed long-standing
challenges at GMR Rajahmundry
Energy Limited (GREL) and GMR
Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
(GVPGL), which had remained non-
operational due to the unavailability of
affordable natural gas. With no viable
pathway to source affordable natural
gas despite our sustained efforts to
explore alternatives and repeated
representations at appropriate forums
to revive the gas-based plants, we
negotiated and concluded a one-time
settlement with the consortium of
GREL lenders to address the liabilities/
contingent liabilities of the Company
for the full and final settlement of

the entire exposure, including term
loan, NCDs, CRPS, interest payable
and equity shares, and for closure of
corporate guarantees.

Furthermore, we strategically divested
majority stakes in stressed assets,
including GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower
Private Limited (GBHHPL), GREL and
GVPGL. This transaction will reduce
debt by T 4,400 crore, streamline

our portfolio by spinning off non-
operational gas-based assets and
other stressed assets, and enable

us to focus more on growth-

oriented businesses.

Collectively, these material
developments mark an inflection point
in our journey. By consolidating our
position, rationalising and managing
corporate debt and stressed assets,
we are positioning GPUIL for
sustained growth.

10 GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

Smart Energy for the Future

You would recall that in FY 2023-24,
your Company secured an order under
the country’s Revamped Distribution
Sector Scheme (RDSS) to install
around 75 lakh smart meters across
three districts of Uttar Pradesh as part
of the Energy 2.0 initiative. To execute
this, we have partnered with Bosch
Global Software Technologies as the
technology provider and arranged
debt funding from the Indian
Renewable Energy Development
Agency Limited (IREDA). I am pleased
to share that smart meter operations
have already achieved ‘Operational
Go-Live' across all three Special
Purpose Vehicles (SPVs) implementing
the projects. Moreover, SPVs have
begun receiving payments against
invoices submitted to the distribution
companies (DISCOMs).

Following the resolution of issues
relating to some of our stressed
assets, the balance portfolio of GPUIL
has continued to deliver robust
performance. Energy demand in India
has remained strong, with thermal
power witnessing sustained demand
to meet base load requirements.

Our Warora and Kamalanga plants
have been operating at record Plant
Load Factor (PLF) levels, generating
healthy cash flows. The Government’s
Late Payment Surcharge (LPS) Rules
have further strengthened liquidity
by ensuring timely payments from
DISCOMs. We have also made
substantial progress in the recovery
of previously disputed receivables.
As a result, our thermal assets stand
today on their strongest footing
ever, providing a solid base to
pursue opportunities in the dynamic
energy landscape.

s S
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Sustainability as a
Core Driver

Sustainable development has been
integral to the GMR Group since

its inception. It forms the basis on
which we build and operate all our
projects. Our assets, recognised

as national assets of the highest
quality, reflect this commitment.

To uphold these standards, we have
consistently invested significant
resources in ensuring compliance
with environmental standards,
implementing pollution control
measures, and adopting rigorous
environment, health, and safety
(EHS) norms across operations. I am
delighted to share that our efforts
have been acknowledged through
several prestigious recognitions:

¢ GMR Warora Energy Limited
(GWEL) won the National Award for
Excellence in Energy Management
from the Confederation of Indian
Industry (CII) for the 7t" consecutive
year and emerged as a national
energy leader

¢ GWEL is the first Independent
Power Producer (IPP) to receive a

Financial Statements
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Gold Rating in the CII Blue rating
system for Water Management

¢ GWEL bagged the 'Utkristh’
rating (scoring 99.1%) in the 5S
assessment conducted by the
National Productivity Council

¢ GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited
(GKEL) secured a 4.5/5-star rating
in the Energy Conservation
Awards (ENCON) 2024

¢ GKEL was also awarded the CII
National Award for Excellence in
Water Management at the 10t
Water Innovation Summit 2024

6t Annual Report 2024-25 1
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Delivering on Our Social
Commitments

Our social responsibility agenda
prioritises enabling inclusive and
participatory development in the
communities we serve. Through the
GMR Varalakshmi Foundation, we
drive a wide spectrum of programmes
focused on education, healthcare

and sustainable livelihoods aimed at
uplifting those in need. These efforts
are supported by participatory rural
appraisal tools, structured community
engagement and robust grievance
redress mechanisms that ensure
responsiveness to local needs.

During the reporting year, our
Corporate Social Responsibility

(CSR) initiatives touched over 70,000
lives, with more than 95% of these
beneficiaries belonging to vulnerable
and marginalised communities. This
impact reflects our commitment to
advancing inclusive growth in the
regions where we operate.

Our focus on social accountability
also extends to our workplace
practices. The certification of our
Warora plant under the SA 8000 Social
Accountability Standard highlights
our emphasis on adhering to the
highest standards of occupational
safety. Employee well-being and
diversity remain our key priorities,
backed by regular health and safety
training, ethics awareness initiatives
and inclusive hiring practices. We
continuously maintain a work culture
that values holistic employee well-
being, safety, mutual respect and
ongoing professional development.

12 GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

Good Governance Reinforcing
Stakeholder Trust

Our culture is anchored in the seven
core values of the GMR Group -
Humility, Entrepreneurship, Delivering
the promise, Learning & Inner
excellence, Teamwork & Respect for
the individual, Social Responsibility
and Financial Prudence. These values
not only define who we are but also
shape how we operate, reminding

us that achieving the desired results
is only meaningful when pursued
through the right means. By
consistently going beyond statutory
requirements, we aim to safeguard
stakeholder expectations and
reinforce trust.

To translate these principles into
practice, we ensure transparency
and accountability across all Group
companies and subsidiaries. Our
internal audit teams conduct

regular and structured assessments,
complemented by independent
reviews from external agencies.
These findings are further scrutinised
by the Audit Committee and our

distinguished Board of Directors,
reinforcing the robustness of our
governance framework.

Looking Ahead with
Confidence

During the year under review, India’s
business environment became more

™
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conducive, with moderating inflation
and interest rate cuts creating
favourable conditions for growth.
This momentum is expected to
continue in FY 2025-26, supported
by rising private sector spending,
along with sustained government
spending, which are poised to drive

India’s GDP on a steeper growth
trajectory together. Although, some
downside risks remain on account of
geopolitical uncertainties, in today's
volatile, uncertain, complex and
ambiguous (VUCA) world, we will
continue to fortify our Enterprise Risk
Management (ERM) framework to
ensure resilient risk mitigation.

Amid this positive macroeconomic
backdrop, India's energy demand is
also projected to rise significantly,
driven by population growth, higher
per capita energy consumption and
rapid electrification. Factors such

as urbanisation, industrialisation,
economic expansion and increasing
adoption of energy-intensive
technologies across sectors will
further add to the growing demand.

In response, our focus in the year
ahead will be on maintaining high
operational efficiencies at our existing
energy assets. Also, the planned debt
refinancing at GWEL and GKEL will
help mobilise cash flow, enabling us
to deleverage our balance sheet and
create capacity for future growth.

Our growth strategy, Energy 2.0,

is firmly aligned with the evolving
power sector. With footholds in
smart metering, smart mobility and
renewable energy, we look forward
to exploring firm and dispatchable
renewable energy (FDRE) solutions
to serve commercial and industrial
(C&I) customers.

Closing Remarks

As I conclude, I extend my sincere
gratitude to our customers, suppliers
and other stakeholders for their
confidence in the GMR Group. I also
thank the Board of Directors and

the senior leadership team for their
strategic vision and our shareholders
for their steadfast support. Last

but not least, I express my deepest

Financial Statements
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appreciation to our employees, whose
dedication and hard work fuel our
progress.

With your continued support, I am
confident that GPUIL will reach even
greater heights in the years ahead.
Together, we remain committed to
building on a strong foundation and
shaping a smarter future.

Stay safe and healthy,

Best regards,

s

G M Rao,
Chairman, GMR Group

6t Annual Report 2024-25 13
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Financial Highlights of FY 2024-25

Consolidated financial performance (% crore)

Year end Revenue from Revenue from EBITDA™ PAT# Cash and Cash

Operations®  Operations (net)" equivalent”
FY 2024-25 6,343.97 6,287.40 2,180.95 1,737.90 1,696.52
FY 2023-24 4,488.57 4,276.58 1,413.11 (82.18) 1,233.78

@ Revenue from operations represents revenue from continuing operations only
* Revenue from operations (net) is after deducting revenue share paid/payable to concessionairee from revenue

** EBITDA — Earnings before interest, other income, tax, depreciation, amortisation (including utilisation fees), Share of profit/(loss) of JV/associates
and exceptional items, EBITDA from continuing operations only

# Profit after tax before minority interest; Include PAT from continuing operations only

A Cash + mutual funds + bonds + government securities + certificate of deposit + commercial papers + Deposit with statutory authorities

+ investments in quoted equity shares; It excludes cash/investments pertaining to assets held for sale

Sector-wise revenue breakup (in %)

(%) (% crore)

EPC 3.01 190.75

@ cnergy 84.03 5,330.85
@ Highways 6.25 396.69
@ smart meter infra 5.05 320.54
@ Others 1.66 105.14
Total 6,343.97

14 GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

Revenue (in T crore)

6,344

FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25



Corporate Overview

Cash and Cash Equivalent (in % crore)

FY 2023-24

1,697

FY 2024-25

PAT (in ¥ crore)

FY 2023-24

1,738

FY 2024-25
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Total Assets (in % crore)

16,987

FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25

Borrowings (in ¥ crore)

10,238

FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25

6th Annual Report 2024-25
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Board’s Report

Dear Shareholders,

The Board of Directors present the 6™ Annual Report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ("FY") ended March 31, 2025.

Your Company, GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited (“The
Company” or “GPUIL"), is a leading global infrastructure
conglomerate with interest in, Energy, Road, Smart Meter
Infrastructure and Urban Infrastructure business sectors in India.

Over the past decade, India’'s Energy Sector has undergone a
paradigm shift, with increasing focus on transition to non-fossil
sources of energy. As of March 31, 2025, India’s total installed
power generation capacity stood at approximately 467 GW,
reflecting a continued expansion to meet the nation’s growing
energy needs. Conventional sources, primarily coal-based thermal
power, accounted for around 250 GW (54% of total capacity),
while non-fossil energy sources reached a cumulative capacity
of approximately 217 GW (46%). The sector is also benefiting
from policy focus on grid modernisation, and energy security,
while balancing the imperative of reliable and affordable
electricity to power India’s economic ambitions.

GPUIL's energy business has commissioned capacity of around
2,840 MWs of Coal, Gas and renewable power plants in India
and around 1,775 MWs of power projects under development.
The energy portfolio has a healthy and diversified sale strategy
with a mix of merchant and long-term Power Purchase
Agreements (“PPAs").

Under the company’s Energy 2.0 strategy, last year the Company
entered the smart meter sector after winning the project to install
75.69 lakh smart meters in various districts of Uttar Pradesh. The
project is progressing well.

GPUIL's EPC business has finished construction of all sections
under the prestigious Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridor project
awarded by Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India
("DFCCI"). The sections are fully operational and have moved over
200 GMT of goods.

After amicable settlement of Hyderabad-Vijayawada highway
project and subsequent handover to NHAIL the transportation
division of the Group now has three operating highway assets
spanning around 888 lane kilometers.

GPUIL also continued its land monetisation initiatives at the GMR
Krishnagiri Special Investment Region (GKSIR), monetising ~407
acres of land during the year. Going forward, the Company plans
to develop select land at GKSIR by creating infrastructure facilities
suitable for prospective clients for setting up their industrial units.

The Group continues to actively take up various initiatives on
ESG front as well.
Performance highlights - FY 2024-25

Performance Highlights of your Company on consolidated basis
for the FY 2024-25:

* The USD 275 Mn 7.5% Subordinated Foreign Currency
Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) due 2075, issued by GPUIL to
Kuwait Investment Authority (KIA) have been transferred by

16 GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

KIA to two eligible lenders i.e., Synergy Industrials, Metals
and Power Holdings Limited (“Synergy”) (USD 154 Mn) and
to GRAM Limited ("GRAM") (USD 121 Mn). Thereafter, on
July 10, 2024, the 7.5% USD 275 Mn FCCBs due in 2075
have been converted into 11,12,41,666 number of equity
shares of ¥ 5/- each, proportionately to the above mentioned
two FCCB holders, as per the agreed terms and basis receipt
of a conversion notice from the said FCCB holders. As the
FCCB Holders are equity investors, and as part of the overall
commercial discussions and agreement between the parties,
the outstanding interest on the FCCBs was waived off.

Post the above conversion on July 10, 2024, Synergy held
8.71% of the equity share capital of the Company and GRAM
held 6.85% of the equity share capital of the Company.

GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited
("GHVEPL") had executed a Concession Agreement
("Agreement”) in October 2009 with National Highway
Authority of India (“NHAI"), to construct, operate and
maintain a two-lane 181.50 km national highway stretch
between Hyderabad and Vijayawada on the NH-65. In view
of significant loss of revenue on account of bifurcation of
the stretch between two states i.e. Telangana and Andhra
Pradesh, post the date of commissioning of the project,
GHVEPL had raised certain claims in terms of the Agreement,
against NHAI, seeking compensation against such losses,
arising due to change in law.

While the matter was sub-judice, both the parties have
decided to amicably settle all the disputes without further
intervention of court / tribunal. In this regard, a settlement
was agreed between both the parties as per which NHAI
paid an amount of X 1,387.21 crore to GHVEPL as claim in
two tranches and project was handed back to NHAI on July
01, 2024 (Handover Date).

The entire settlement claim has been received by GHVEPL
which has been utilized towards total closure of loans with
its consortium of lenders and for further reduction of GPUIL
corporate debts and investments in growth of other
businesses of GPUIL.

On March 28, 2025, the consortium of lenders of GMR
Rajahmundry Energy Limited (“GREL"), an associate of the
Company, unanimously approved to accept the One-time
Settlement (“OTS") amount of ¥ 657.00 crore towards the
full and final settlement of all exposures, including Term
Loan, Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs"), Compulsorily
Redeemable Preference Shares (“CRPS”), Interest Payable
and for release of the Corporate Guarantees issued by the
Group and transfer of CRPS and Equity Shares of GREL held
by consortium of lenders. GREL has accepted the proposal
and paid the first instalment of ¥ 165.70 crore towards the
OTS on March 29, 2025. Subsequent to the year end, GREL
has paid the entire balance OTS amount of ¥ 491.30 crore
and successfully concluded the OTS including transfer of
shares, satisfaction of charges, release of all securities/
Corporate Guarantees issued to the lenders.
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On April 13, 2025, the Company, GMR Energy Limited (“GEL"),
GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited ("GRSPPL"), GMR
Corporate Services Limited ("GASL") and GMR Generation
Assets Limited (“GGAL"), (‘subsidiaries of the Company’) had
signed a framework agreement with Synergy Investments
Holding Limited (“Synergy”) for the divestment of their
respective stakes in:

(@ GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited
("GBHHPL"), engaged in operation of 180 MW hydro-
electric power project,

(b) GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited ("GVPGL"),
engaged in operation of 388 MW natural gas-based
combined cycle power plant, and

(c) GMR Rajahmundry Energy Limited (“GREL"), engaged
in operation of 768 MW natural gasbased combined
cycle power plant.

Pursuant to the Framework Agreement;
(i)  GEL was to transfer:

(@) 79.86% of equity stake in GBHHPL in two stages
along with 100% convertible debentures (“CCD")
of GBHHPL held by the Group Companies ;

(b) 51% of equity stake in GVPGL to Synergy

(i) GGAL was to transfer 51% of GREL's equity stake to
Synergy following the release of shares pledge and
corporate guarantee from the lenders.

The combined value for the transfer of securities for all
three entities under the Framework Agreement was
% 653.00 crore, subject to adjustments based on net
working capital and other factors at closing.

The transaction, for all three entities upon meeting
necessary conditions and receiving requisite approvals,
is anticipated to be completed by September 30, 2025,
or a later date mutually agreed upon by the parties
involved.

In accordance with the aforesaid agreement, transfer
of 70% of equity stake and 100% of CCDs of GBHHPL,
51% of equity stake in Vemagiri and 51% of equity stake
in GREL were concluded. GPUIL and its relevant
subsidiaries have thus far received a total consideration
of ¥ 664 crore. towards the said transfers.

*  The Company along with Shree Naman Developers
Private Limited have incorporated a new Company in
the name of Portus Ventures Private Limited with the
main objective of carrying out the design, operation
and maintenance of the superstructures on the land
parcels at the airport site of Mumbai International
Airport with an authorised capital of ¥ 1,00,000/- divided
into 10,000 equity shares of X 10/- each.

The Company has subscribed for 2600 equity shares at
face value of ¥ 10/- each constituting 26% of the total
paid up capital of the JV Company for an aggregate
cash consideration of ¥ 26,000/-.

*  GMR Smart Electricity Distribution Private Limited
(Formerly GMR Mining & Energy Private Limited
("GSEDPL")), a subsidiary of the Company had received
Letter of Intent ('LOI') from Purvanchal Vidyut Vitran

Nigam Limited and Dakshinanchal Vidyut Vitran Nigam
Limited, to implement smart metering project in the
Purvanchal (Varanasi, Azamgarh zone and Prayagraj,
Mirzapur zone) and Dakshinanchal (Agra and Aligarh
zone) area of Uttar Pradesh. GSEDPL will install,
integrate and maintain 75.69 lakh smart meters in the
given area. GSEDPL had formed three separate SPVs
(“Project SPVs") for implementation and operations of
the project, which is expected to span over a period of
10 years. This Advanced Metering Infrastructure ("AMI")
Project shall include Supply, Installation, Integration,
Commissioning and Operation & Maintenance of smart
meters on DBFOOT basis backed by state-of-the-art
technology and software solutions for end-to-end
automated system management. The project is being
executed under Revamped Distribution Sector Scheme
(RDSS). The focus is on creating value in the Adjacent
Business areas, working on implementation of AMI
Project. The Company has started the installation of
Smart meters as per the scheduled plan. The Company
has installed smart meters at consumer premises,
meeting all performance obligations outlined in the
contract. Since the meters are operational and all
performance obligations are met, the Project SPVs have
recorded the revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115.

« In the Krishnagiri Special Investment Region, 30 acres
of land is under discussion for sale to an agency of
Tamil Nadu Government and 100 acres to Tata group
company. Next phase of development is being planned
for 55 acres. Further, discussion with various other
parties for the sale of lands is underway.

*  Powerdemand and improved coal supply have resulted
in mixed operating performance in the Energy business.
Warora Power Project achieved PLF of 85% in FY 2024-
25 as against 83% in FY 2023-24 and Kamalanga Power
Project achieved PLF of 86% in FY 2024-25 as against
82% in FY 2023-24.

«  The Group has received certain favourable orders on
various ongoing matters in energy, highway and DFCC
for compensation for change in Law and late payment
which involve significant value of claims.

Strategy and way forward — Maximising value of existing
assets and building a top tier tech enabled Clean Energy
business. Below are 3 Pillars of Company’s strategy going
forward:

«  Enhance Value of existing businesses - aim for higher
utilization of existing assets and efficiency improvement
measures, tie-up open capacities through innovative
PPA models including RTC., operationalize gas assets.

«  Create Value in Adjacent Areas- Technology oriented
Asset Light opportunities, scale power trading business,
differentiated service offerings using new-age
technology solutions.

*  Nurture and develop opportunities in green ecosystem
- Continued focus on hydro, clean energy solution for
commercial and industrial segment, opportunities in
distributed segments like electric mobility & storage
solutions, forge technology & strategic partnerships
and access green financing.
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Financial Results - FY 2024-25

a)

18

Consolidated Financial Results

The following table sets forth information with respect to the consolidated statement of profit and loss of the Company for FY

2024-25:

Particulars

Continuing operations

(R in crore)

March 31, 2024

Income

Revenue from operations (including other operating revenue) 6,343.97 4,488.57
Other income 513.85 344.63
Total Income 6,857.82 4,833.20
Expenses

Revenue share paid / payable to concessionaire grantors 56.57 211.99
Operating and other administrative expenditure 4,620.30 3,208.10
Total expenses 4,676.87 3,420.09
Earnings before finance cost, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) 2,180.95 1,413.11
and exceptional items

Depreciation and amortization expenses 599.85 286.27
Finance costs 1,571.01 1,476.54
Profit/(Loss) before share of loss of investments accounted for using equity 10.09 (349.70)
method, exceptional items and tax from continuing operations

Share of loss of investments accounted for using equity method (133.53) (154.85)
Loss before exceptional items and tax from continuing operations (123.44) (504.55)
Exceptional items 1,899.72 456.00
Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations 1,776.28 (48.55)
Tax expense 38.38 33.63
Profit/(loss) after tax from continuing operations (i) 1,737.90 (82.18)
Discontinued operations

Loss from discontinued operations before tax expenses (185.65) (45.29)
Tax expense = -
Loss after tax from discontinued operations (ii) (185.65) (45.29)
Profit/(Loss) after tax for the year (A) (i+ii) 1,552.25 (127.47)
Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in

subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (7.79) 14.88
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in

subsequent periods:

Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plans (Net of taxes) (0.34) (0.17)
Net loss on fair valuation through other comprehensive income ('FVTOCI') (65.55) (24.72)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (B) (73.68) (10.01)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (A+B) 1,478.57 (137.48)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to 1,552.25 (127.47)
a) Equity holders of the parent 1,417.53 (103.03)
b) Non-controlling interests 134.72 (24.44)
Total comprehensive income attributable to 1,478.57 (137.48)
a) Equity holders of the parent 1,343.89 (112.47)
b) Non-controlling interests 134.68 (25.01)
Earnings per equity share () from continuing operations 23.43 (0.96)
Earnings per equity share ) from discontinued operations (2.71) (0.75)
Earnings per equity share () from continuing and discontinued operations 20.72 1.71)

The total income for FY 2024-25 is ¥ 6,857.82 crore as against ¥ 4,833.20 crore for the FY 2023-24, registering an increase of
41.89%, primarily due to increase in revenue from electrical energy in energy sector, recognizing smart meter revenue for the

first time in current financial year, higher annuity income, increase in management and consultancy income offset by decrease

in revenue from coal trading, toll income in road sector mainly on account of amicable settlement between GHVEPL and NHAI

and EPC construction revenue.

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
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The revenue from the power sector has increased by 67.85%
from ¥ 3,176.05 crore in FY 2023-24 to X 5,330.85 crore in
FY 2024-25 primarily due to consolidation of revenue for
full year for major operating energy entities like GWEL, GKEL
and GMR Gujarat Solar Power Private Limited (“GGSPPL") in
FY 2024-25. However, revenue of these entities was
consolidated only for four months approximately in FY 2023-
24 as these were assessed as subsidiaries of the group on
acquisition of additional stake in GEL with effect from
November 22, 2023. The increased revenue has been set off
by decrease in coal trading revenue during the current year.

The revenue from smart meter infrastructure has been
accounted for the first time in current FY amounting to
% 320.54 crore as Smart meter SPVs have started installing
the meters at consumer premises meeting all performance
obligations outlined in the contract. Accordingly, revenue is
recorded in accordance with Ind AS 115 since smart meters
are operational and all performance obligations are met.

The revenue from road segment has decreased by 44.69 %
from X 717.26 crore in FY 2023-24 to X 396.69 crore in FY
2024-25 mainly on account of handover of project pursuant
to amicable settlement between GHVEPL and NHAL

EPC revenue decreased by 44.04% from X 340.88 crore in FY
2023-24 to X 190.75 crore in FY 2024-25 as DFCC project is
completed and track is handed over to DFCCIL for

Notice

operations. However, certain ancilliary works are pending
completion, which company is in process of completion.

Income from other sectors include management services
income, investment income and operating income of
aviation business. During FY 2024-25 Income from other
sectors decreased from X 586.26 crore in FY 2023-24 to
% 315.23 crore in FY 2024-25.

Decrease in purchase of traded goods in the FY 2024-25 is
corresponding to decrease in revenue in coal trading.

Increase in cost of materials consumed in the FY 2024-25 is
corresponding to recognizing smart meter revenue for the
first time in current financial year.

The increase in other operating and administrative expenses
is mainly due to consumption of fuel, rates and taxes, legal
and professional fees, rent expense, travelling and
conveyance expenses and other miscellaneous expenses on
account of consolidation of GEL and its subsidiaries for full
year in the FY 2024-25, whereas these were consolidated
only for four months approximately in FY 2023-24.

There is an increase in finance cost and depreciation and
amortization expenses on account of consolidation of GEL
and its subsidiaries for full year in the FY 2024-25, whereas
these were consolidated only for four months approximately
in FY 2023-24.

b)

Standalone Financial Results

The following table sets forth information with respect to the standalone statement of profit and loss of the Company for FY

2024-25:

(R in crore)
Particulars March 31, 2024
Revenue from operations 480.89 778.96
Other Income 27.70 23.47
Total Income 508.59 802.43
Operating and administrative expenditure 202.00 378.16
Total expenses 202.00 378.16
Earnings before finance cost, tax, depreciation and amortisation expenses 306.59 424.27
(EBITDA) and exceptional items
Finance costs 292.86 446.63
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 4.08 14.67
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 9.65 (37.03)
Exceptional Items 736.95 682.04
Profit before tax 746.60 645.01
Tax expense = -
Profit for the year 746.60 645.01
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss - Balance as per last financial 461.27 943.76
statements
Transfer from fair valuation through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) - (1,127.47)
reserve
Transfer on account of extinguishment of CCDs/OCDs 30.32 -
Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans (net of taxes) 0.08 (0.03)
Surplus available for appropriation 1,238.27 461.27
Appropriations = -
Net Surplus in the statement of profit or loss 1,238.27 461.27
Earnings per equity share (%) - Basic and diluted (per equity share of ¥ 5 each) 10.91 10.69
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During the year ended March 31, 2025, the revenue from
EPC segment has decreased by 42.62% from ¥ 329.71 crore
in FY 2023-24 to X 189.18 crore in FY 2024-25, which was
mainly due to the ongoing DFCC (Railways) project as DFCC
project is completed and track is handed over to DFCCIL for
operations. However, certain ancilliary works are pending
completion, which company is in process of completion.
Other operating income mainly includes interest income on
inter-corporate loans given to group companies and income
from management and other services.

There is a decrease in operating and administrative cost in
line with decrease in EPC revenue mainly due to ongoing
DFCC (Railways) project as DFCC project is completed and
track is handed over to DFCCIL for operations. However,
certain ancilliary works are pending completion, which
company is in process of completion.

Exceptional items comprise of the reversal/ (creation) of
provision for impairment in carrying value of investments,
assets classified as held for sale and loans/ advances/ other
receivables carried at amortised cost and write back/ waiver/
creation of liability.

There are no material changes or commitments, except those
already disclosed in this report affecting the financial position
of the Company which have occurred between the end of
the financial year 2024-25 and the date of this report.

Dividend

Your directors after considering relevant circumstances and
keeping in view your Company's Dividend Distribution Policy
have decided not to recommend any dividend on equity
shares for the FY 2024-25.

Reserves / Appropriation to Reserves

The net movement in the major reserves of the Company on standalone basis for FY 2024-25 and FY 2023-24 is as follows:

(R in crore)
Particulars m March 31, 2024
Equity component of related party loan 14.73 14.73
Securities Premium Account 11,790.84 10,010.98
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 1,238.27 461.27
Capital Reserve (301.80) (301.80)
Foreign currency monetary translation reserve - (393.98)
Fair valuation through other comprehensive income ('FVTOCI') reserve (11.445.44) (9,573.89)
Total 1,296.60 217.31

Management Discussion and Analysis Report (MDA)

In terms of the provisions of Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
("SEBI LODR"), the Management Discussion and Analysis Report
is set out in this Annual Report.

State of Affairs of the Company and its Subsidiaries

A brief overview of the developments of each of the major
subsidiaries’ business is presented below. Further, MDA, forming
part of this Report, also brings out a review of the business
operations of major Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures, Associates and
jointly controlled entities.

Energy Sector

As of March 31, 2025, India’s total installed power generation
capacity stood at approximately 467 GW, reflecting a continued
expansion to meet the nation’s growing energy needs.
Conventional sources, primarily coal-based thermal power,
accounted for around 250 GW (54% of total capacity), while
renewable energy sources reached a cumulative capacity of
approximately 170 GW (36%). The remaining ~47 GW was
contributed by nuclear and large hydro installations. Despite the
growing share of renewable energy in installed capacity,
conventional sources continued to dominate electricity
generation, contributing nearly 74% of the total electricity
generated during FY 2024-25.

Key developments and metrics for the Indian power sector in FY
2024-25 include the following:

20 GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

Electricity generation increased to an estimated 1,810 Billion
Units (BU), marking a 4% growth over 1,738 BU in FY 2023-
24, driven primarily by rising industrial and residential
demand.

Peak power demand reached an all-time high of 250 GW in
May 2024, up from 243 GW in FY 2023-24, reflecting
sustained economic growth and urbanisation.

Thermal generation rose marginally to 1,345 BU, up 1.4%
YoY, supported by stable coal supply and higher Plant Load
Factors ("PLFs") across key power plants.

Renewable energy generation increased by approximately
12% YoY, reaching 253 BU, supported by strong solar and
wind additions and favourable policy support.

Renewable capacity additions saw a robust increase, with
an estimated 26 GW addition during the year, the highest
ever annual RE capacity addition, taking cumulative RE
capacity to 170 GW by March 2025.

Coal production by Coal India Limited ("CIL") reached a
record high of over 1,050 million tonnes, marking a 5%
growth YoY, enabling improved fuel availability for thermal
generators.

The sector continues to evolve rapidly with policy focus on
energy transition, grid modernisation, and energy security,
while balancing the imperative of reliable and affordable
electricity to power India’s economic ambitions.
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GMR Energy Sector companies had an operating capacity of
around 2,840 MWs of Coal, and Renewable power plants in India
and around 1,775 MWs of power projects under various stages
of development, besides a pipeline of other projects in FY 2024-
25. The Energy Sector has a diversified portfolio of thermal and
renewable projects with a mix of merchant and long-term Power
Purchase Agreements (“PPAs").

The focus over the last year has been on improving profitability,
achieving operational excellence, and monetisation of idling
assets.

On the regulatory front, we were able to continue to get positive
results for our efforts on regulatory orders in the Appellate
Tribunal for Electricity (“APTEL") and Central Electricity Regulatory
Commission (“CERC"). Our focus continued to be on the recovery
of regulatory receivables during FY 2024-25, and we have
succeeded in adding significant cash flow from regulatory
receivables.

Given the above background, the energy assets have also
performed well. Following are the major highlights of the Energy
Sector assets:

A. Operational Assets:
I.  Generation:

1. GMR Warora Energy Limited (GWEL) — 600 MW:

*  GWEL, a subsidiary of GMR Energy Limited (“GEL"),
operates a 600 MW (2x300) coal-fired power plant at
Warora, Maharashtra.

e Currently, 83% of power off-take capacity is tied up
under long/medium term PPA with Maharashtra
through Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution
Company Limited (“MSEDCL"), Tamil Nadu through
Tamil Nadu Generation and Distribution Corporation
("TANGEDCOQO") and Haryana Power Purchase Centre
("HPPC").

*  GWEL met with 91% compliance for MSEDCL PPA, 91%
for TANGEDCO PPA and 91% for HPPC PPA.

« Balance ~50 MW untied capacity is sold in the open
market through power exchanges.

»  During the year, the Plant has achieved availability of
93% and Plant Load Factor ("PLF") of 84.7% (Deemed
PLF —88.7%), the highest ever since the commissioning
of the plant.

«  Ash utilisation of 103% was achieved by tying with
nearby Cement Factories and NHAI for Fly Ash and
various Brick Manufacturers for Bottom Ash.

«  Plant achieved zero Loss Time Injury (“LTI") and fatality
incidents.

«  Plant was awarded many prestigious awards during the
year, some of which are as below:

o National Award for excellence in Energy
management from Confederation of Indian
Industry (CII) for the seventh consecutive year,
emerged as National Energy Leader. GWEL is one
of only 3 National Energy Leaders.

Financial Statements Notice

o National Award for excellence in water
management in the: beyond the fence category,
organised by CII for its integrated approach in
managing the Water Shed at Majra Kurd village.

During the Year, the plant has received the following
Certifications:

o  “Utkristh” rating (99.1% score) in 5S assessment
carried by the National Productivity Council.

o 1t IPP to receive Gold Rating in CII Blue rating
system for Water Management.

o Certification under SA 8000 which reflects
commitment to labour rights, while targeted
investments in occupational health, inclusion, and
mental well-being reinforce our employee-first
culture.

o  Business Excellence Internal Assessment: Emerging
Industry Leader (582). First GMR Group company
to secure this band on the very first attempt.

During the year, the plant has carried out the following
activities in ESG:

o Installed Biomass Pellet Machine, with a capacity
of 100 Kg/hr for converting horticulture waste into
biomass pellets.

o  Education and Skilling: Smart classes and robotics
sessions benefited 1,100+ students; Pratibha
Library helped 20 youth secure government jobs;
163 youth trained in vocational courses.

o Health and Sanitation: Health Clinic/MMU treated
43,000+ people; 17 RO plants serve potable water
to 3,200 households; 1,024 toilets constructed,
making 8 villages ODF.

o Livelihoods and Community Development: 1,140
individuals who are supported in farm and non-
farm income-generating activities; repair of check
dams and ponds created 15,000 m?® water storage,
irrigating 65 acres.

o Agri-Tech and Employee Engagement: Drone-
based precision farming benefited 3,000+ farmers;
894 employees clocked 1,984 volunteer hours and
donated 162 blood units.

o Recognition and Awards: GWEL CSR earned ISO
26000:2010 and 3 Anganwadi's received ISO
9001:2015 certifications.

GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited (GKEL) — 1,050 MW:

GKEL, a subsidiary of GEL, operates a 1,050 MW (3x350)
coal-fired power plant at Kamalanga village in Odisha.

90% of the capacity is tied up under long/medium-term
PPAs with Haryana through PTC India Limited, Odisha
through GRIDCO Limited, Bihar through Bihar State
Power Holding Company Limited and Tamil Nadu
through TANGEDCO.

GKEL met 89.8% compliance for Haryana, 88.87% for
GRIDCO PPAs, 89.79% for Bihar PPA and 89.7% for
TANGEDCO PPA.
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During the year, the Plant has achieved availability of
90% and a PLF of 86.4%, the highest ever since the
commissioning of the plant.

100% Ash Utilisation was achieved by tying up with
NHAI, Cement Manufacturers and various brick
manufacturers for Fly Ash.

Plant achieved zero LTI and fatality incidents.

Plant was awarded many prestigious awards and
certifications during the year, some of them are as
below:

o  British Safety Council ("BSC") assessment score
93.27%. Five-Star rating for second consecutive
time. Sword of Honour was awarded.

o Pradarshak rating (99.08%) in 5S assessment by
National Productivity Council.

o Energy Efficiency Unit at CII National Energy
Efficiency Conference.

o CII National Award for Excellence in Water
Management at 10t Water Innovation Summit
2024.

o Secured 4.5/5 Star rating in Energy Conservation
Award (ENCON) 2024.

o ISO 46001:2019 for sustainable water
management.

o External assurance completed for GHG emissions
and Zero Waste to Landfill (FY 2023-24).

During the year, the plant has carried out the following
activities in ESG:

o  Education and Youth Development: Set up a Mini
Science Centre with 80 scientific models. Provided
scholarships to 17 girls and study materials, tablets,
and ran computer/tailoring training programs for
students and women.

o Healthcare and Nutrition: Supported 55 families
with medical reimbursements; operated 4 nutrition
centres benefitting 45 pregnant women,
telemedicine services (584 beneficiaries), and a
Mobile Medical Unit (MMUs) (9,826 treatments).

o Livelihood and Agriculture: Assisted over 200
beneficiaries through paddy, groundnut, potato
cultivation, fish farming, mushroom farming,
poultry, beekeeping, farming equipment, and
registered a Farmers Producer Company.

o Employee Engagement and Social Impact:
Executed 4 volunteering projects with staff
participation and raised, ¥ 24.4 lakhs through Daan
Utsav, benefiting 2,600+ people.

GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited (GBHHPL)

- 180 MW:

GBHHPL, a subsidiary of GEL (since divested as detailed
above), located on the river Ravi in Chamba District,
Himachal Pradesh, commissioned the 180 MW Bajoli
Holi Hydro Electric Plant (HEP) on March 28, 2022.

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

5.

*  GBHHPL has a tie-up with DIAL and UPPCL for supply
of its power. Any surplus power generation is available
for sale on the merchant that is being availed based on
market opportunity.

«  During the year, the Plant achieved availability of 99.4%
and PLF of 47%. There was no unplanned/forced
shutdown.

« In a subsequent development, 79.86% equity stake in
GBHHPL was agreed to be sold to Synergy Investments
Holding Limited as per the framework agreement
entered in April 2025 of which, 70% equity stake has
been divested.

GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited (GVPGL) - 388
MW:

GVPGL, a wholly owned subsidiary of GEL (since divested as
detailed above), operates a 388 MW natural gas-fired
combined cycle power plant at Rajahmundry, Andhra
Pradesh.

«  GVPGL did not operate in the last financial year due to
scarcity of gas.

«  Efforts and discussions with the government and other
stakeholders were on-going to arrive at possible options
to operate the plant or monetise.

« In addition, a legal case is being pursued for allowing
Deep Water Gas under the existing PPA.

« Insubsequent development, the Company has entered
into a framework agreement with Synergy Investments
Holding Limited and accordingly transfer 51% stake in
GVPGL has been concluded.

GMR Rajahmundry Energy Limited (GREL) - 768 MW:

GREL is a 768 MW (2 x 384 MW) combined cycle gas-based
power project at Rajahmundry, Andhra Pradesh.

«  Efforts and discussions with the government and other
stakeholders were on-going to arrive at possible options
to operate the plant or monetise.

« Insubsequent development, the Company has entered
into a framework agreement with Synergy Investments
Holding Limited and accordingly transfer 51% stake in
GREL has been concluded.

*  Further, the Company has completed a one-time
settlement for entire outstanding debt as per the
proposal agreed with GREL's lenders.

GMR Gujarat Solar Power Limited (GGSPL), Charanka
Village, Gujarat:
«  GGSPL, a wholly owned subsidiary of GEL, operates a

25 MW Solar power plant at Charanka village, Patan
district, Gujarat.

e GGSPL had entered into a 25-year PPA with Gujarat
Urja Vikas Nigam Limited for the supply of entire power
generation.

. GGSPL attained commercial operation on March 4,
2012.
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Plant achieved a gross PLF of 13.53 % for FY 2024-25.

GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited (GRSPPL),

Rajam:

GRSPPL, a wholly owned subsidiary of GEL, has been
operating a T MW Solar power plant in Rajam, Andhra
Pradesh, since January 2016.

The Company had signed a 25-year PPA with both GMR
Institute of Technology (700KW) and GMR Varalakshmi
Care Hospital (300KW) for the sale of power generated.

For 2024-25, the Plant achieved a gross PLF of 13.32%.

Projects:

1.

UP - Advanced Metering Infrastructure Service
Provider (AMISP):

e GPUIL through its subsidiary GMR Smart Electricity
Distribution Private Limited (“GSEDPL") has secured
orders for Smart Meter projects development from
UP DISCOMs.

*  GSEDPL has toinstall, integrate and maintain 75.69
lakh smart meters in Purvanchal (Varanasi,
Azamgarh zone and Prayagraj, Mirzapur zone) and
Dakshinanchal (Agra and Aligarh zone) area of UP.

«  The number of smart meters is likely to increase
during execution, which will result in increased
revenue and returns.

*  Post receiving the order, GSEDPL has made
substantial progress on ground and started smart
meter installation backed up with technology
infrastructure. More than 7 Lakhs smart meters
have been installed during FY 2024-25.

. On the CSR front, launched three Mobile Medical
Units at GMR's Smart Meter Projects in Varanasi,
Agra, and Prayagraj; two were deployed at Maha
Kumbh, providing free treatment and medicines
to ~10,000 people.

GKEL - Unit#4

*  GKEL, at Kamalanga Village, Odisha, is planning to
add one more unit of a coal-fired power plant of
350 MW capacity.

. For this additional unit, the foundations of most
of the equipment/packages, including Boiler,
turbine and generator, were constructed during
phase 1.

«  Also, majority of the common facilities like the coal
handling system etc. were already installed during
Phase 1.

+  Efforts are focused on securing PPA for the 4™ unit
and finalising orders for BTG and BoP packages.

GMR Upper Karnali Hydro Power Public Limited
(GUKHPL) - 900 MW:

*  GUKHPL, a subsidiary of GEL through its subsidiary
GMR Lion Energy Limited ("GLEL"), is developing

900 MW Upper Karnali Hydroelectric Project
located on river Karnali in Nepal.

«  Post execution of Project Development Agreement
("PDA"), several key activities have been completed.
Technical design of the project has been finalised
post due diligence by Independent IFC/ World
Bank empaneled and member Panel of Experts.

«  Detailed Project Report is also being vetted by
Central Electricity Authority of India (“CEA”) and
Techno-Economic Clearance (“TEC") is expected in
the second quarter of FY 2026.

«  Subsequent to the date of financial statements,
the Company/GEL as per the approval granted by
applicable authorities/Ministry of Govt. of India,
entered a Memorandum of Agreement (MoA) with
Satluj Jal Vidyut Nigam Limited (“SJVNL") and
Indian Renewable Energy Development Agency
Limited (“IREDA") for the implementation of Upper
Karnali Hydroelectric Project and its associated
Transmission Line Project in Nepal.

«  The aforesaid partnership between SJVNL, GMR
Group and IREDA shall have a shareholding ratio
of 34:34:5 (SJVNL: GMR: IREDA) while Nepal
Electricity Authority (“NEA") will retain 27% stake
in this Special Purpose Vehicle in Nepal.

«  Company is actively following up with States like
Haryana, Odissa, Chhattishgarh, Himachal Pradesh
and Uttar Pradesh for long term power supply
arrangement.

GMR (Badrinath) Hydro Power Generation Private
Limited (GBHPL) - Badrinath - 300 MW:

«  Alaknanda Power Project is a 300 MW run-of-the-
river power facility to be constructed on the
Alaknanda River in the Chamoli district of the State
of Uttarakhand.

« The Project has also achieved registration with
UNFCCC as a Clean Development Mechanism
("CDM") Project.

«  Possession of the entire land required for project
development (including forest land and private
land) has been completed.

«  The power project had received, required statutory
permits and clearances and was in state of
readiness for the start of construction when the
Hon'ble Supreme Court issued a stay order for all
such projects in the State with similar status.

«  The financial closure process has been held up due
to the stay order of Hon'ble Supreme Court on 24
Hydro Electric Projects in Uttarakhand and the
same is effective till date.

«  Considering 11 years’ delay in implementation of
the project due to extraneous reasons, the
Company has filed an application praying for
directions for the reimbursement towards the costs
incurred by the Company in connection with the
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project from Ministry of Power (MoP)/Ministry of
Jal Shakti (MoJS)/ Ministry of Environment & Forest
(MoEF), Government of India (Gol) / Government
of Uttrakhand (GoUK). The last hearing in this
regard was held on November 13, 2024 and the
date for the next hearing is yet to be listed.

5. GMR Londa Hydropower Private Limited (GLHPL)-
225 MW:

« Talong Londa HEP is a 225 MW Hydropower
project in East Kameng district in Arunachal
Pradesh.

e Project has received Techno-Economic
concurrence from CEA.

e Project has received Defence clearance and in-
principle Environmental clearance.

«  Forestland diversion proposal has been submitted
and is under process in MoEF&CC.

e The Company is continuously engaged with the
Government of Arunachal Pradesh for further
development.

e Recently, the Company has executed an MoU with
the Government of Assam for formation of JV in
the project including power offtake arrangement
for State captive power.

Transportation and EPC sector

GPUIL's transportation business consists of the Highway segment,
which is engaged in the development of Highways on a BOT /
Annuity basis. As on date, the transportation business holds a
portfolio consisting of three operational roads located in
Telangana, Haryana-Punjab and Tamil Nadu.

Highways:

Company'’s highways portfolio consists of two BOT (Annuity) and
one BOT (Toll) projects with a total operating length of 888 lane
kilometers.

In Ambala Chandigarh Project (GACEPL), toll revenue for FY 2024-
25 improved significantly amid farmer strike at Shambhu toll plaza
due to diversion of traffic to project highway. However, upon
reopening of Shambhu toll plaza in March'2025, traffic on the
project highway is normalised.

During FY 2024-25, all the ongoing litigations with NHAI for
Hyderabad Vijayawada Project ("GHVEPL") were resolved
amicably. As part of settlement agreement signed with NHAI,
GHVEPL received settlement consideration of 1,387.21 crore from
NHAI and the project was handed over to NHAI with effect from
July 1, 2024.

Further, during the year, GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited
("GPEL") carried out major maintenance for 111 Lane Km stretch
of Adloor Yellareddy - Gundla Pochanpalli using Hot In-Place
Recycling (HIPR) Technology. This will improve the riding quality
of the surface and will provide users a safe and high-quality ride.

At all GMR highways projects, High-Pressure Sodium Vapour
("HPSV") streetlights have also been converted to LED lights
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without incurring any capital expenditure for achieving energy
saving.

EPC:

Group was awarded EPC contracts by Dedicated Freight Corridor
Corporation of India Limited (“DFCCIL") to construct two packages
on the Eastern Dedicated Freight Corridors ("EDFC") between
New Bhaupur to New Deen Dayal Upadhyay (DDU) junction
(Packages - 201 and 202) worth about 5,081 crore in the State of
Uttar Pradesh. These projects for a total length of about 422 km
for a total value of about 6,600 crore have been commissioned.
As on date, over 200 Gross Million Tonnes (GMT) have moved
on this EDFC track.

The aforesaid project is an engineering marvel and a game
changer in the logistics sector. It provides seamless connectivity
of the major coal belts of Eastern Coalfields Limited (“ECL"),
Central Coalfields Limited (“CCL"), Bharat Coking Coal Limited
("BCCL") and Northern Coalfields Limited (“NCL") of Jharkhand
and West Bengal to Power Houses of Northern India.

Subsequently, two more packages of DFC from Ludhiana—Khurja—
Dadri (Packages - 301 and 302) were awarded in the state of
Haryana, Uttar Pradesh and Punjab. The Company has successfully
commissioned these projects.

Urban Infrastructure:

Company'’s Urban Infrastructure business is engaged in holding
and developing land in India as Special Investment Regions (SIR),
which are special economic interest areas. GPUIL is currently
holding land parcel in the Krishnagiri district in the State of Tamil
Nadu in a subsidiary company GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited
("GKSIR"). Additionally, GPUIL, through other subsidiaries
possesses large land parcels in the Krishnagiri district. GPUIL has
undertaken the development of SIR in a phased manner.

GMR Krishnagiri Special Investment Region (GKSIR)

The Group through GKSIR & other subsidiaries had around 990
acres of land in Krishnagiri district of Tamil Nadu for developing
industrial infrastructure at the beginning of FY 2024-25. During
FY 2024-25, the Group has sold around 407 acres, including
around 286 acres to Tamil Nadu State Government agency i.e.
State Industries Promotion Corporation of Tamil Nadu (“SIPCOT").

GKSIR is planning to develop ~75 acres of land by creating
infrastructure facilities suitable for prospective clients for setting
up their industrial units.

GMR Aviation Private Limited (GAPL)

GMR Aviation Private Limited (GAPL), is a subsidiary of the
Company, headquartered in New Delhi. GAPL has emerged since
its formation in 2006 as one of India's premier non scheduled Air
Charter Operators. The company delivers bespoke and
personalized Air Charter Services for discerning clientele,
underpinned by robust safety systems, reliability, and operational
integrity.

The current fleet of aircrafts of GAPL includes:

«  Fixed-Wing: Falcon 2000 LX (9-seater) and Embraer Legacy
600 (13-seater), offering long-range and luxurious travel.
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*  Rotary-Wing: Bell 412 helicopter (8 seats), serving versatile
short-haul and point-to-point connectivity.

«  Operational Reach: Access to over 200 airports in India
and abroad, enabling flexible route planning and seamless
client itineraries.

GAPL's operations span more than 200 airports across India and
internationally, providing flexible, seamless travel solutions from
virtually any origin to destination.

Fuelled by a commitment to luxury, safety, and operational
excellence, GAPL is rapidly expanding its fleet and talent base.
With this growth trajectory, GAPL is strategically positioned to
become a dominant force in India's general aviation sector,
enhancing GMR Group's presence beyond its core airport
infrastructure and MRO investments.

Consolidated Financial Statements

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Ind
AS 110 - Consolidated Financial Statements read with Ind AS 28
— Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, the audited
consolidated financial statements are provided in the Annual
Report.

Holding, Subsidiaries, Associate Companies and Joint
Ventures

As on March 31, 2025, the Company had 71 Subsidiary companies
apart from 2 (two) Associate companies and Joint Ventures
(including 1 (one) Associate Company of a Subsidiary). During
the year under review, the status of GMR Operations and
Maintenance Private Limited (formerly known as GMR Tenaga
Operations and Maintenance Private Limited) changed from an
Associate Company to a Subsidiary Company. Further during the
year under review, Namitha Real Estates Private Limited (NREPL)
and GMR Infrastructure (UK) Ltd, ceased to be subsidiaries of
the Company.

Further, post March 31, 2025, the status of GREL changed from
an Associate Company to a subsidiary of the Company w.e.f June
20, 2025, on account of the 45% equity stake of GREL held by
the major consortium lenders of GREL, being transferred to the
group entities. Further, effective July 31, 2025, 51% of the equity
stake of GREL was divested to Synergy, and accordingly GREL
once again became an Associate Company.

GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited (GBHHPL) ceased
to be subsidiary of GEL on account of transfer of 70% shares of
GBHHPL held by GMR Energy Limited to Synergy Investments
Holding Limited dated May 08, 2025.

Further, the status of GVPGL changed from a subsidiary Company
to an Associate Company w.e.f July 2, 2025.

The complete list of subsidiary companies and associate
companies (including joint ventures) as on March 31, 2025 in
terms of the Companies Act, 2013 is provided as Annexure- A
to this Report.

The Policy for determining material subsidiaries may be accessed
on the Company's website at the link:
https://investor.gmrpui.com/pdf/6.Policy%200n%20Material%20subsidiaries final.pdf

Report on the highlights of performance of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures and their contribution to the overall

Notice

performance of the Company has been provided in Form No.
AOC-1 as Annexure-B to this Report and therefore not reported
here, to avoid duplication.

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies have also
been placed on the website of the Company at
https://investor.gmrpui.com/annual-account-of-subsidaries.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the
information and explanations obtained by them, your Directors
make the following statements in terms of Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013:

a) thatin the preparation of the annual accounts for the year
ended March 31, 2025, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in Note no. 2 of
the Notes to the Financial Statements have been selected
and applied consistently and judgment and estimates have
been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2025 and of the profit of the Company for the
year ended on that date;

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) that the annual accounts have been prepared on a going
concern basis;

e) that properinternal financial controls to be followed by the
Company have been laid down and that the financial controls
are adequate and are operating effectively; and

f)  that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance
with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Corporate Governance

The Company continues to follow the Business Excellence
framework, based on world class Malcolm Baldrige Framework
for Performance Excellence which was adopted by GMR Group
in the year 2010. With over a decade now, the deployment of
the GBEM framework has taken roots in over 15+ Group
Businesses.

Various Continuous Improvement and Break-Through Innovation
initiatives under the umbrella of GBEM have yielded tremendous
benefits to various Group Companies in terms of Cost Savings
and new avenues for revenue generation. The key initiatives like
5S, Kaizens, Idea Factory, CIPs (Continuous Improvement Projects)
and regular BE Assessments have been implemented with lot of
rigor and enthusiasm. A Governance Structure is in place along
with timely Rewards and Recognitions to GMRites contributing
to these initiatives, has helped to grow and sustain these
initiatives. Your Company works towards continuous
improvement in governance practices and processes, in
compliance with the statutory requirements.
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The Report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under relevant
provisions of SEBI LODR forms part of the Annual Report. The
requisite Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary
confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Governance is attached to the said Report.

Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report

As stipulated under Regulation 34(2)(f) of SEBI LODR read with
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD-2/P/CIR/2021/562 dated May 10,
2021 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI),
the Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report (BRSR) for
the Financial Year 2024-25, describing the initiatives taken by
the Company from an Environmental, Social and Governance
perspective is annexed as part of the Annual Report.

M/s Grant Thornton Bharat LLP an independent agency has
conducted the audit of BRSR core parameters for FY 2024-25
and has provided of Reasonable Assurance Report which also
forms part of this Annual Report.

Contracts and Arrangements with Related Parties

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into by the
Company during the FY 2024-25 with related parties referred in
Section 188(1) of the Act were in the ordinary course of business
and on arm’s length basis.

During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract
/ arrangement / transaction with related parties referred in Section
188(1) of the Act with related parties, which could be considered
material in accordance with the policy of the Company on
materiality of related party transactions. Since all the related party
transactions were in ordinary course of business and at arm'’s
length basis, Form AOC-2 is not applicable.

During FY 2024-25, the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis,
reviewed the related party transactions vis-a-vis the omnibus
approval(s) accorded by it and annually, the related party
transactions approved as long term contracts.

As, statutorily required, the Policy on related party transactions
was reviewed during the year by the Audit Committee and Board
of Directors of the Company and the updated Policy may be
accessed on the Company'’s website at the link:

https.//investor.gmrpui.com/pdf/GPUIL%20Policy%200n%20Related%20Party%20Transactions-V1.pdf

Your Company draw attention of the members to Note no. 32 to
the standalone financial statements which sets out related party
disclosures.

In compliance with Regulation 23 of SEBI LODR, the related party
transactions on consolidated basis are filed with the Stock
Exchanges on half yearly basis.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (“CSR Policy”), of the
Company indicating the activities to be undertaken by the
Company, may be accessed on the Company’s website at the
link: https://investor.gmrpui.com/pdf/1.CSR%20POLICY-GPUIL%20-%20Final.pdf.
The details of the CSR Committee are provided in the Corporate
Governance Report which forms part of the Board's Report.

The Company has identified the following focus areas towards
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the community services / CSR activities, which inter alia include:
«  Education

«  Health, Hygiene & Sanitation

«  Empowerment & Livelihoods

«  Community Development

The Company, as per the approved policy, may undertake other
need-based initiatives in compliance with Schedule VII of the
Act. During the year, the Company was not required to spend
any amount on CSR as it did not have relevant profits. Accordingly,
it has not spent any amount on CSR activities. The Annual Report
on CSR activities is annexed as “Annexure-C" to this Report.
However, the Company, through its subsidiaries/ associate
companies spent an amount of ¥ 8.82 crore, during the year, on
CSR activities. The details of such activities carried out with the
support of GMR Varalakshmi Foundation (“GMRVF"), Corporate
Social Responsibility arm of the GMR Group, have been
highlighted in Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report.

Risk Management and ESG Journey

The Board of Directors of the Company has a Risk Management
Committee which is responsible for monitoring and reviewing
the risk management plan and ensuring its effectiveness. The
Audit Committee has an additional oversight in the area of
financial risks and controls. In addition, the updates on
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) activities are shared on a
regular basis with Management Assurance Group (MAG), the
Internal Audit function of the Group.

The Company has in place the Risk Management Policy duly
approved by the Board of Directors designed to identify, assess
and mitigate risks appropriately.

Currently, in opinion of the Board, there are no risks that
threaten the existence of the Company. However, details of
the risk concerns, threats Identification, assessment, profiling,
treatment and monitoring including ESG concerns are covered
in MDA section, which forms part of this Report.

Internal Financial Controls

Your Company has adopted policies and procedures including
the design, implementation & review of internal financial controls
that were operating effectively to ensure orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of
fraud and errors, accuracy and completeness of accounting
records and the timely preparation of reliable financial disclosures
under the Companies Act, 2013.

These controls are embedded in various business processes and
are evaluated across all functional areas (including IT & SAP),
independently by Management Assurance Group (Internal
Auditors of the Company) during audits.

Mitigation plans (corrective & preventive) are put in place to
strengthen the controls where weaknesses have been identified
during the review and the testing results are reported to the
Audit Committee on a regular basis. Emphasis is always placed
on automation of controls within the process to minimise
deviations and exceptions.
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During the FY 2024-25, no reportable material weaknesses were
observed in the design or operating effectiveness of the controls,
except in few areas where there is a need to further strengthen
the controls.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

During the financial year ended 2024-25, the members of the
Company, in their 5! Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on
September 16, 2024, had approved the re-appointment of Mr.
G M Rao, and Mr. Srinivas Bommidala, who were liable to retire
by rotation, as Directors.

Further, members also approved the proposal for re-
appointment of the following Directors:

—  Mr. Srinivas Bommidala as Managing Director of the
Company for a further period of three years, from the expiry
of his present term of office, i.e., with effect from January
31, 2025 to January 30, 2028;

—  Mr. Subbarao Gunuputi as an Executive Director of the
Company for a further period of three years with effect from
January 31, 2025 upto January 30, 2028, and

—  Mr. Madhva Bhimacharya Terdal as an Executive Director of
the Company for a period of one year with effect from August
08, 2024.

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Subbarao Gunuputi and Mr.
Madhva Bhimacharya Terdal, Directors of the Company, are liable
to retire by rotation at the ensuing AGM of the Company and
being eligible, have offered themselves, for re-appointment. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board on the
basis of performance evaluation, recommended their re-
appointment, and the resolutions seeking Members’ approval
for the same, along with other required details forms part of the
Notice.

Subsequent to the end of the financial year, Mr. Madhva
Bhimacharya Terdal has resigned from his position as Executive
Director of the Company effective from July 31, 2025 on account
of superannuation and expressed his willingness to continue as
a Non Executive Non Independent Director on the Board. The
Board of directors accordingly at its meeting held on July 30,
2025, noted his continuation on the Board as Non Executive Non
Independent Director.

Further, based on the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and on the basis of performance
evaluation, the Board recommended the re-appointment of:

i.  Mr. Shantanu Ghosh as an Independent Director for a
second term of five years with effect from September 29,
2025 or upto the conclusion of the 11t Annual General
Meeting of the Company, whichever is earlier;

ii. Dr. Fareed Ahmed as an Independent Director for a second
term of five years with effect from September 29, 2025 or
upto the conclusion of the 11" Annual General Meeting
of the Company, whichever is earlier; and

iii. Ms. Suman Naresh Sabnani as an Independent Director for
a second term of five years with effect from September 29,
2025 or upto the conclusion of the 11% Annual General
Meeting of the Company, whichever is earlier.

Notice

The brief profile and other details pertaining to the directors
who are proposed to be re-appointed, as required to be disclosed
as per the provisions of the SEBI LODR/Secretarial Standard are
given in the Annexure to the Notice of the 6" AGM.

Board Evaluation

Annual performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and
Individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and
the corporate governance requirements under SEBI LODR have
been carried out. The performance of the Board and its
committees was evaluated based on the criteria like composition
and structure, effectiveness of processes, information and
functioning etc. in the manner as specified in the Corporate
Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
("NRC") reviewed the performance of the Individual Directors on
the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the Individual
Directors to the Board and committee meetings like preparedness
on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive
contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. In addition, the Chairman
was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role.

The Independent Directors at their separate meeting held during
the year had also reviewed the performance of the Non-
Independent Directors, Chairman and the Board as a whole.

Policy on Directors’ Appointment and Remuneration

The Company has devised a Nomination and Remuneration Policy
("NR Policy”), which inter alia, sets out the guiding principles for
identifying and ascertaining the integrity, qualification, expertise
and experience of the person for appointment as Director, Key
Managerial Personnel ("KMP") and Senior Management Personnel
("SMP"). The NR Policy further sets out guiding principles for the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee for determining and
recommending to the Board the remuneration of Managerial
Personnel, KMPs and SMPs. There has been no change in NR
Policy after its formulation.

The Company’s Nomination and Remuneration Policy for
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management is
available on the Company website at

https://investor.gmrpui.com/pdf/2.Nomination_Remuneration_Policy-r1.pdf.

In recognition of the importance of having a diverse Board
towards success of the organization, the Company has adopted
the Board diversity policy. The Policy provides for having an
appropriate blend of functional and industry experts on the Board,
diversity in terms of cultural background, gender, skillset etc.

Declaration of Independence

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent
Directors confirming that they meet and maintain the criteria of
Independence as prescribed both under Section 149(6) of the
Act and Regulation 16, 25(8) of SEBI LODR and there has been
no change in the circumstances affecting their status as
Independent Directors of the Company. The registration of all
the Independent Directors in the Independent Directors Data
Bank continues to be valid.

Further, the Independent Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Code for Independent Directors prescribed in
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Schedule IV to the Act and also complied with the Code of
Conduct for the Board of directors and senior management
personnel, formulated by the Company.

Auditors and Auditors’ Report
Statutory Auditors

Under Section 139(2) of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
it is mandatory to rotate the statutory auditors on completion
of two terms of five consecutive years and each such term would
require approval of the shareholders. In line with the requirements
of the Act, M/s Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants, Registration No. (001076N/N500013), were
appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company for a term of 5
(five) years from the conclusion of the 15t AGM held on October
16, 2020, till the conclusion of the 6'" AGM of the Company. The
term of office of M/s Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, as Statutory
Auditors of the Company is valid till the conclusion of the ensuing
AGM of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company, based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, at its meeting held on
July 30, 2025 approved the reappointment of M/s Walker
Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Registration No.
(001076N/N500013) as the Statutory Auditor of the Company to
hold office for the second term of five consecutive years from
the conclusion of 6™ AGM till the conclusion of the 11" AGM to
be held in the calendar year 2030, and recommended the same
to the shareholders of the Company for their approval at the
ensuing AGM. Your Company has obtained consent of M/s Walker
Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants and received a
certificate in accordance with Section 139, 141 and other
applicable provisions of the Act to the effect that their re-
appointment, if made, shall be in accordance with the conditions
prescribed and also as per the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and that they are
eligible to hold office as Statutory Auditors of the Company.

M/s Walker Chandiok & Co LLP have consented to their re-
appointment as the Statutory Auditors and have confirmed that
the re-appointment, if made, would be within the limits specified
under Section 141(3)(g) of the Act and that they are not
disqualified to be re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors in terms
of the provisions of Section 139 and 141 of the Act and the Rules
framed thereunder.

The Notice convening the 6™ AGM scheduled to be held on
September 29, 2025 sets out the details.

The Auditors’' Report for the FY 2024-25 does not contain any
qualification, reservation, adverse remark. The notes on
financial statement referred in Auditor’s Report are self -
explanatory and do not call for further comment.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 143(12) of the Act, the
Statutory Auditors has not reported any incident of fraud to
the Audit Committee or Board during the period under review.

Secretarial Auditor

The Board had appointed M/s. V. Sreedharan & Associates,
Company Secretaries in Practice, to conduct Secretarial Audit for
the FY 2024-25. The Secretarial Audit Report of the Company as
prescribed under Section 204 of the Act read with Regulation
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24A of the SEBI LODR, for the FY ended March 31, 2025 is annexed
herewith as “Annexure D" to this Report.

The Secretarial Audit report does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remarks. However, the Secretarial Auditor,
without qualifying its report has stated the following in the
Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year 2024-25. The
Management comments against which are also mentioned below:

As per Regulation 44(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, The
e-voting facility to be provided to shareholders in terms of sub-
regulation (1), shall be provided in compliance with the conditions
specified under the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, or amendments made thereto.
According to Rule 20 of the said Rules, cut-off date means a
date not earlier than seven days before the date of general
meeting for determining the eligibility to vote by electronic means
or in the general meeting. The Company had scheduled its Annual
General Meeting on September 16, 2024, and set the cut- off
date for e-voting as Friday, September 6, 2024. In this case, the
cut-off date was fixed nine days in advance which included two
non — working days (Saturday and Sunday). Further, the Cut-off
date was intimated to the Stock Exchange(s) vide their letter dt.
24/08/2024.

The Management has taken note of the same and explained that
the Company had scheduled its Annual General Meeting on
September 16, 2024, and set the cut- off date for e-voting as
Friday, September 6, 2024. In this case, the cut-off date was fixed
nine days in advance, which qualifies to be not earlier than 7
days prior to the meeting, and hence in order. Further, the Cut-
off date was intimated to the Stock Exchange(s) vide letter dt.
24/08/2024 and duly accepted.

It may be noted that based on the Audited Financial Statements
of the Company as on March 31, 2024 and relevant for the year
under review, the Company had four material unlisted subsidiaries
incorporated in India, i.e, GMR Warora Energy Limited, GMR
Energy Trading Limited, GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited and
GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited. The
Secretarial Audit reports of these material unlisted subsidiaries
of the Company, as required under Regulation 24A of the SEBI
LODR for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 have been
annexed as "“Annexure E1 to E4”.

Further, in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) and in accordance with Regulation 24A (1b) of SEBI LODR,
after evaluating and considering various factors such as industry
experience, competency of the audit team, efficiency in conduct
of audit, independence and specialization in the Audit of large
Corporates, the Board of Directors of the Company (‘Board’),
based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, at its
meeting held on July 30, 2025 approved the appointment of
M/s. V. Sreedharan & Associates, Company Secretaries, as the
Secretarial Auditor of the Company, for the first term of 5 (five)
beginning from the FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30, at such
remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors.

M/s. V. Sreedharan & Associates, Company Secretaries have
consented to their appointment as the Secretarial Auditor and
have confirmed that they are not disqualified to be appointed as
the Secretarial Auditors in terms of the provisions of Regulation
24A (1A) of SEBI LODR.
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The Notice convening the 6" AGM scheduled to be held on
September 29, 2025 sets out the details.

Pursuant to provisions of the Section 143(12) of the Act, the
Secretarial Auditors has not reported any incident of fraud to
the Audit Committee or Board during the year under review.

Cost Auditors

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, your Company with reference to
its EPC business was required to maintain the cost records and
the said cost records were also required to be audited. The Board
of Directors at its meeting held on August 14, 2024, had
appointed M/s. JSN & Co., Cost Accountants (Firm Registration
No. 000455), as cost auditors of the Company for conducting
the audit of cost records for the FY 2024-25. The Members of the
Company at their 5" AGM held on September 16, 2024, had
ratified the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors in terms
of Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014.

Your company has prepared and maintained Cost records for
the FY 2024-25 as per sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act
and the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014.

The Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation
of the Audit Committee, approved the re-appointment of M/s.
JSN & Co., Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 000455), as
Cost Auditors at its meeting held on July 30, 2025 for the F.Y.
2025-26, for conducting the audit of cost records of the Company
pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Act and the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(3) of the Act
read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended, the remuneration payable to Cost Auditors,
M/s. JSN & Co., Cost Accountants for conducting Cost Audit of
the Company for the FY 2025-26, as recommended by the Audit
Committee and approved by the Board, has to be ratified by the
Members of the Company. The same is placed for ratification of
Members and forms part of the Notice of the ensuing 6" AGM.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 143(12) of the Act, the Cost
Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Audit
Committee or Board during the period under review.

Secretarial Standards

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
Disclosures:

CSR Committee

The CSR Committee of the Company comprises Mr. G. Subba
Rao as Chairman, Dr. Emandi Sankara Rao and Dr. Satyanarayana
Beela, as members of the Committee.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises Independent
Directors only.

Below is the Composition of Audit Committee:-

Dr. Siva Kameswari Vissa as Chairperson, Dr. Satyanarayana Beela,

Notice

Dr. Fareed Ahmed and Ms. Suman Naresh Sabnani, as members
of the Committee.

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were
accepted by the Board during the year.

Further details on the above committees and other committees
of the Board are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy, which provides a
platform to disclose information regarding any purported
malpractice, fraud, impropriety, abuse or wrongdoing within the
Company, confidentially and without fear of reprisal or
victimisation. Your Company has adopted a whistleblowing
process as a channel for receiving and redressing complaints from
employees, directors and third parties, as per the provisions of
the Act, SEBI LODR and Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

The details of the Whistle Blower Policy is provided in the
Corporate Governance Report and also hosted on the website of
the Company.

Meetings of the Board

A calendar of Board and Committee Meetings is prepared and
circulated in advance to the Directors. During the year, five (5)
Board Meetings were held, the details of which are given in the
Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between two
consecutive Board Meetings was within the period prescribed
under the Act and SEBI LODR.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments

A statement regarding Loans / Guarantees given, Securities
provided and Investment made along with the purpose for which
the loan or guarantee or securities proposed to be utilised by
the recipient, is mentioned in the notes to the Financial
Statements. However, being an Infrastructure Company, the
provisions of Section 186 of the Act (except sub-section (1)) are
not applicable to the Company in terms of provisions of Section
186(11).

Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign
exchange earnings and outgo

The information on conservation of energy, technology
absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo stipulated
under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule 8 of The
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is provided in “Annexure F”
to this report.

Annual Return

Pursuant to Section 134 and Section 92(3) of the Act, as amended,
copy of the Annual Return for the FY 2024-25 has been placed
on the Company website at https://investor.gmrpui.com/annual-reports.

Particulars of Employees and related disclosures

The information required under Section 197(12) of the Act read
with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including amendments
thereto), is attached as “Annexure G" to this Report.

The information required under Rule 5(2) and (3) of The
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Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including amendments thereof), is
provided in the Annexure forming part of this Report. In terms
of the first proviso to Section 136 of the Act, the Report and
Accounts are being sent to the members excluding the aforesaid
Annexure. Any member interested in obtaining the same may
write to the Company Secretary at GPUIL.CS@gmrgroup.in.

With reference to Section 197(14), none of the Managerial
Personnel of the Company i.e., either managing or whole-time
director, draw any Commission from the Company. Some of them
are / were managerial personnel in the subsidiary of the Company
and draw / were drawing remuneration but no commission from
such respective subsidiaries.

Dividend Distribution Policy

The Board has adopted Dividend Distribution Policy in terms of
Regulation 43A of the SEBILODR. The Dividend Distribution Policy
is also disclosed on the website of the Company at the link:
https://investor.gmrpui.com/pdf/7.Dividend%20distribution%20policy.pdf

Developments in Human Resources and Organisation
Development

The Company has robust process of human resources
development, which is described in detail in Management
Discussion and Analysis section under the heading
“Developments in Human Resources and Organization
Development” at GMR Group.

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs)

During the year under review, the FCCBs issued by the Company
aggregating to USD 275 million to Kuwait Investment Authority
(KIA), were transferred by KIA to two new investors, i.e. Synergy
Industrials, Metals and Power Holdings Limited and Gram Limited,
and subsequently the same were converted into 11,12,41,666
equity shares of the Company on July 10, 2024, at the request of
the new investors.

Changes in Share capital

There was no change in the authorized share capital of the
Company.

On account conversion of FCCBs as referred hereinabove, the
issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company
increased from X 3,01,79,72,640/- as on March 31, 2024 to
¥ 3,57,41,80,970/- as on March 31, 2025.

Debentures

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 17, 2024, had
approved the issuance of 15,026 (Fifteen Thousand and Twenty
Six) listed, rated, secured, redeemable non-convertible
debentures (“NCDs") having face value of ¥ 1,00,000/- each, for
an aggregate amount of up to ¥ 150,26,00,000 (Rupees One
Hundred and Fifty Crores and Twenty-Six lakhs only) on a private
placement basis, at the coupon /interest rate of 10.9277% (ten
decimal nine two seven seven per cent) per annum.

These NCDs issued by the Company are having the maturity
period of more than one year and the same were listed on the
National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

As per the terms of the NCDs, during the financial 2024-25, the
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Company had made periodical payments of installments of the
principal and interest amounts on the due dates. Subsequently,
the Company has completed the full & final payment of the NCDs
on June 11, 2025.

Credit Rating

The details of credit rating are disclosed in the Corporate
Governance report forming part of the Annual Report.

Environment Protection and Sustainability

Since inception, sustainability has remained at the core of the
Company's business strategy. Besides economic performance,
safe operations, environment conservation and social well-being
have always been at the core of the philosophy of sustainable
business. The details of initiatives/ activities on environment
protection and sustainability are described in Business
Responsibility and Sustainability Report forming part of the
Annual Report.

Change of Registered office of the Company

Pursuant to receipt of the approval for shifting of Registered
Office from the Regional Director, Western Region, the Board of
Directors had approved the situation of the Registered Office at
Gurugram, Haryana with effect from October 16, 2024.
Consequently, the registered office of the Company is situated
at Unit No. 12, 18" Floor, Tower A, Building No. 5, DLF Cyber
City, DLF Phase-1III, Gurugram— 122002, Haryana, India. The CIN
of the Company was also changed to “L45400HR2019PLC125712".

Change in the nature of business, if any

The Company did not undergo any change in the nature of its
business during the financial year 2024-2025.

Significant and Material Orders passed by the Regulators or
Courts

There are no significant and material orders passed by the
Regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern
status and Company's operations in future.

Deposits

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted
any deposit from the public, as prescribed under Chapter V of
the Act.

Hence, there are no unclaimed deposits/ unclaimed/ unpaid
interest, refunds due to the deposit holders or to be deposited
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as on March 31,
2025.

Compliance by Large Corporates:

Your Company does not fall under the Category of Large
Corporates as defined by SEBI vide its Circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/
DDHS-RACPOD1/P/CIR/2023/172 dated October 19, 2023 and
as such no disclosure is required in this regard.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

Your Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in
line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women
at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
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2013. An Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to
address complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are
covered under this Policy.

There were no sexual harassment complaints pending or received
during the year ended March 31, 2025.

S.No Particulars

1. Number of complaints of sexual harassment
received in the year

2. Number of complaints disposed off during Nil
the year

3. Number of cases pending for more than
ninety days

Statement on compliance of Maternity Benefits

Your Company, during the period under review, has complied
with all the applicable provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act,
1961.

Place : Hyderabad
Date : August 22, 2025

Notice

Proceeding under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code and One-
time settlement

1. There are no proceedings initiated/pending against your
Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

2. During the year under review, the Company has not made
any one-time settlement with any bank or financial
institution.

Other than the matters disclosed in this Report, there are
no other disclosures to be made in terms of the provisions
of the Act.
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Your Directors are thankful to the lenders, banks, financial
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

G. M. Rao
Chairman
(DIN:00574243)
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

List of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate companies as per the Companies Act, 2013, as on March 31, 2025

GMR Enterprises Private Limited Holding Company
1. GMR Energy Trading Limited (GETL) Subsidiary
2. GMR Londa Hydropower Private Limited (GLHPPL) Subsidiary
3. GMR Generation Assets Limited (GGAL) Subsidiary
4. GMR Highways Limited (GMRHL) Subsidiary
5. GMR Ambala-Chandigarh Expressways Private Limited (GACEPL) Subsidiary
6. GMR Pochanpalli Expressways Limited (GPEL) Subsidiary
7. GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited (GHVEPL) Subsidiary
8. GMR Chennai Outer Ring Road Private Limited (GCORRPL) Subsidiary
9. Gateways for India Airports Private Limited (GFIAL) Subsidiary
10. GMR Corporate Services Limited (GASL) Subsidiary
11. GMR Aviation Private Limited (GAPL) Subsidiary
12. GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited (GKSIR) Subsidiary
13. Advika Properties Private Limited (APPL) Subsidiary
14. Aklima Properties Private Limited (AKPPL) Subsidiary
15. Amartya Properties Private Limited (AMPPL) Subsidiary
16. Baruni Properties Private Limited (BPPL) Subsidiary
17. Bougainvillea Properties Private Limited (BOPPL) Subsidiary
18. Camelia Properties Private Limited (CPPL) Subsidiary
19. Deepesh Properties Private Limited (DPPL) Subsidiary
20. Eila Properties Private Limited (EPPL) Subsidiary
21. Gerbera Properties Private Limited (GPL) Subsidiary
22. Lakshmi Priya Properties Private Limited (LPPPL) Subsidiary
23. Honeysuckle Properties Private Limited (HPPL) Subsidiary
24. Idika Properties Private Limited (IPPL) Subsidiary
25. Krishnapriya Properties Private Limited (KPPL) Subsidiary
26. Larkspur Properties Private Limited (LAPPL) Subsidiary
27. Nadira Properties Private Limited (NPPL) Subsidiary
28. Padmapriya Properties Private Limited (PAPPL) Subsidiary
29. Prakalpa Properties Private Limited (PPPL) Subsidiary
30. Purnachandra Properties Private Limited (PUPPL) Subsidiary
31. Shreyadita Properties Private Limited (SPPL) Subsidiary
32. Pranesh Properties Private Limited (PRPPL) Subsidiary
33. Sreepa Properties Private Limited (SRPPL) Subsidiary
34. Radhapriya Properties Private Limited (RPPL) Subsidiary
35. Asteria Real Estates Private Limited (AREPL) Subsidiary
36. Lantana Properties Private Limited (LPPL) Subsidiary
37. Honey Flower Estates Private Limited (HFEPL) Subsidiary
38. GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limited (GSPHL) Subsidiary
39. Suzone Properties Private Limited (SUPPL) Subsidiary
40. Lilliam Properties Private Limited (LPPL) Subsidiary
41. Dhruvi Securities Limited (DSL) Subsidiary
42. GMR Energy Projects (Mauritius) Limited (GEPML) Subsidiary
43. GMR Infrastructure (Singapore) Pte Limited (GISPL) Subsidiary
44, GMR Coal Resources Pte Limited (GCRPL) Subsidiary
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Notice

45, GMR Power and Urban Infra (Mauritius) Limited (GPUIML) Subsidiary
46. GMR Infrastructure Overseas Limited, Malta (GIOL) Subsidiary
47. GMR Infrastructure (Overseas) Limited (GI(O)L) Subsidiary
48. GMR Smart Electricity Distribution Private Limited (GSEDPL) Subsidiary
(Formerly known as GMR Mining & Energy Private Limited) (GMEL)
49. GMR Male International Airport Private Limited (GMIAL) Subsidiary
50. PT GMR Infrastructure Indonesia (PTGII) Subsidiary
51. GMR Energy Limited (GEL) Subsidiary
52. GMR Energy (Mauritius) Limited (GEML) Subsidiary
53. GMR Lion Energy Limited (GLEL) Subsidiary
54. Karnali Transmission Company Private Limited (KTCPL) Subsidiary
55. GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited (GKEL) Subsidiary
56. GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited (GVPGL)* Subsidiary
57. GMR (Badrinath) Hydro Power Generation Private Limited (GBHPL) Subsidiary
58. GMR Consulting Services Limited (GCSL) Subsidiary
59. GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited (GBHHPL) * Subsidiary
60. GMR Warora Energy Limited (GWEL) Subsidiary
61. GMR Bundelkhand Energy Private Limited (GBEPL) Subsidiary
62. GMR Rajam Solar Power Private Limited (GRSPPL) Subsidiary
63. GMR Maharashtra Energy Limited (GMAEL) Subsidiary
64. GMR Gujarat Solar Power Limited (GGSPL) Subsidiary
65. GMR Indo-Nepal Power Corridors Limited (GINPCL) Subsidiary
66. GMR Upper Karnali Hydropower Limited (GUKPL) Subsidiary
67. GMR Green Energy Limited (GGEL) (Formerly known as GMR Green Energy Private Limited) Subsidiary
68. GMR Kashi Smart Meters Limited (GKSML) Subsidiary
69. GMR Triveni Smart Meters Limited (GTSML) Subsidiary
70. GMR Agra Smart Meters Limited (GASML) Subsidiary
71. GMR Operations and Maintenance Private Limited Subsidiary
(Formerly known as GMR Tenaga Operations and Maintenance Private Limited (GTOMPL)'
72. Portus Ventures Private Limited Associate

Below is the Associate Company of a Subsidiary Company

1.

GMR Rajahmundry Energy Limited (GREL)**

£
¥

*%

Associate includes Joint Ventures.

does not include Company limited by guarantee.

GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited (GVPGL) ceased to be subsidiary of GEL and of the Company consequent to transfer
of 51% of the stake held in the Company by GEL to Synergy Investments Holding Limited w.e.f July 02, 2025.

GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Pvt. Ltd. (GBHHPL) ceased to be subsidiary of GEL and of the Company consequent to transfer of
70% shares of GBHHPL held by GMR Energy Limited to Synergy Investments Holding Limited dated May 08, 2025.

Name changed from GMR Tenaga Operations and Maintenance Private Limited to GMR Operations and Maintenance Private

Limited w.e.f. June 09, 2025.

Status of GREL changed since end of the financial year as explained under the heading ‘Holding Subsidiaries, Associate Companies

and Joint Ventures' forming part of this report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

Place : Hyderabad
Date : August 22, 2025

G. M. Rao
Chairman
(DIN:00574243)
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Notice

Annexure ‘C’ to the BOARD’S REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy vi) Heritage and Measures for the Culture;
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited (the Company), a part vii) Benefit of armed forces veterans, war widows and their
of GMR Group, has formulated a CSR Policy of the Company. dependents Central Armed Police Forces (CAPF) and
GMR Group (the Group) recognizes that its business activities Central Para Military Forces (CPMF) veterans, and their
have wide impact on the societies in which it operates and dependents including widows;
thergfore .an effect|.ve pract|ce. is required gl\'/lng O!“e viii) Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized
consideration to the interests of its stakeholders including . . ]
; . sports, Paralympic sports and Olympic sports;
shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers, business
partners’ local communities and other organizations_ IX) Contribution to the Prime Minister’'s National Relief
The C < dri by G L K Fund or any other fund set up by the Central
d'f: ompany '.:_ ::ven y ) roubp s wsp; tp ma eha Government or the State Governments for socio-
: erenf:e,dspe;n ically tof sc;‘aety y con(tjn. utmg.to the economic development and relief, and funds for the
ecoQom|c ) evelopment of the coghtry an 'mpm_"'”? .t € welfare of the Scheduled Castes, Scheduled Tribes, other
quality of life of the local communities. Towards this vision, . ]
] - backward classes, minorities and women;
the Company intends to support corporate social
responsibility initiatives across the country through GMR x)  Contributions or funds provided to technology
Varalakshmi Foundation or any other eligible implementing incubators located within academic institutions which
agency (implementing partner). The initiatives will be in are approved by the Central Government;
the areas of education, health, hygiene, sanitation, xi) Other rural development projects;
empowerment, livelihood and community development.
xii) Slum area development;
CSR Policy for GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
) ) S xiii) Such other activities included in Schedule VII of the
In .contlnuance to the community devglopment initiatives Companies Act, 2013 as may be identified by CSR
being undertaken by the Company and in pursuance of the Committee from time to time which are not expressly
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, the company as prohibited.
part of its CSR initiatives proposes to engage and work on o o
the following areas (with a special focus to geographical It may be r\oted that the above activities are |nd.|cat|ve énd
locations in India where GMR Power and Urban infra Limited are activities that the company may at any point of time
has presence), hereinafter referred to as the CSR Policy: engage but all such activities may not have been taken up
) ) by the Company during the year. While the activities
) Education; undertaken in pursuance of the CSR policy must be relatable
i) Health, Hygiene and Sanitation; to Schedule VII of the Companies Act 2013, the entries in
i E & Livelihoods: the said Schedule VII must be interpreted liberally so as to
liiy  Empowerment & Livelihoods; capture the essence of the subjects enumerated in the said
iv) Community Development; Schedule. The items enlisted in the amended Schedule VII
. S of the Act, are broad-based and are intended to cover a
v)  Environmental sustainability; ) o
wide range of activities.
2. Composition of CSR Committee:
Sl. Name of Director Designation/Nature Number of meetings Number of
No. of Directorship of CSR Committee meetings of CSR
held during the year Committee
attended during
the year
1. Mr. G. Subba Rao Chairman
2. Dr. Emandi Sankara Rao Member 1 1
3. Dr. Satyanarayana Beela Member
3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee and CSR CSR Projects: Not Applicable

projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website
of the company:

Composition of CSR Committee:
https://investor.gmrpui.com/commitee

CSR Policy: : https://investor.gmrpui.com/policies.

Executive summary along with web-link(s) of details of
Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance
of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the
report) -Not Applicable
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5.
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POWER &
URBAN INFRA

(a)

(b)

(@

Average net profit/ loss of the Company as per Section
135(5):

Average net loss: X 102.36 crore

Two percent of average net profit of the company as
per Section 135(5): NA

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes
or activities of the previous financial years- Nil

Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if
any-NIL

Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)- (d)]
- Nil

Amount spent on CSR projects (both ongoing project
and other than ongoing Project): Nil

Amount spent in Administrative Overheads- Not
Applicable

Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable- Not
Applicable

Place : New Delhi
Date : August 22, 2025

40

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

8.

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a) +(b)+(c)]

- Nil

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:
Nil
(f)  Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil

Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three
financial years: Not Applicable

Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired
through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent in
the Financial Year: Nil

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend
two per cent of the average net profit as per Section 135(5)-
Not Applicable

Due to non-availability of profits the Company was not
required to spend any amount on CSR activities during the
financial year 2024-25.

G. Subba Rao
Chairman, CSR Committee
(DIN: 00064511)

Srinivas Bommidala
Managing Director
(DIN: 00061464)
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Notice

ANNEXURE ‘D’ TO THE BOARD'’S REPORT

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025)

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

GMR POWER AND URBAN INFRA LIMITED
Unit no. 12, 18" Floor, Tower A, Building No. 5,
DLF Cyber City, DLF Phase III, Gurugram,
Haryana — 122002

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company, the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives and during the
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion,
the Company has, during the financial year ended March 31, 2025
("the audit period”) complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanisms in place to the extent, in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for
the financial year ended March 31, 2025, according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made
thereunder.

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and
the rules made thereunder.

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws
framed thereunder.

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and
regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment and Overseas Direct Investment. There was no
External Commercial Borrowings during the audit period.

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI
Act’):

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeover) Regulations, 2011.

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018.

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021
(Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period).

f)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing
of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars
to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client.

h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting
of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable
to the Company during the audit period); and

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback
of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the
Company during the audit period);

(vi) Other major laws applicable specifically to the Company,
namely:

a. The Inter State Migrant Workmen (Regulation of
Employment & Conditions of Service) Act, 1979

b. The Building and Other Construction Workers
(Regulation of Employment and Conditions of Service)
Act, 1979

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses
of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India on meetings of Board of Directors and
General Meeting.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with
the Stock Exchange(s).
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We have not examined compliance by the Company with
applicable financial laws, like Direct and Indirect tax laws, since
the same have been subject to review by Statutory Auditors and
other Designated Professionals.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with
the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. mentioned above and subject to our remark below:

Without qualifying our report, we wish to state that:

As per Regulation 44(2) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 - The
e-voting facility to be provided to shareholders in terms of sub-
regulation (1), shall be provided in compliance with the conditions
specified under the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, or amendments made thereto.
According to Rule 20 of the said Rules, cut-off date means a
date not earlier than seven days before the date of general
meeting for determining the eligibility to vote by electronic means
or in the general meeting. The Company had scheduled its Annual
General Meeting on September 16, 2024, and set the cut- off
date for e-voting as Friday, September 6, 2024. In this case, the
cut-off date was fixed nine days in advance which included two
non — working days (Saturday and Sunday). Further, the Cut-off
date was intimated to the Stock Exchange(s) vide their letter dt.
24/08/2024.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with a
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Directors. There were no changes composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the audit period.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at
least seven days in advance or at shorter notice and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by
the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were unanimous, and
no dissenting views have been recorded.

We further report that based on information provided by the
management, there are adequate systems and processes in the
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with other applicable
laws, rules, regulations, standards and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has
undertaken the following actions which have the major bearing
on the Company'’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws,
rules, regulations, standards, guidelines, etc.

Place: Bengaluru
Date: July 24, 2025

Approval for raising funds of X 3,000 crores through issuance
of equity shares and/ or other eligible securities through
Qualified Institutions Placement and/or through Foreign
Currency Convertible Bond as approved by the Board of
Directors in their meeting dated August 14, 2024, and
subsequently by shareholders in Annual General Meeting
dated September 16, 2024.

Approval of the issue of 15,026 secured, Listed, rated
redeemable, non-convertible debentures having face value
% 1,00,000 each on private placement basis and creating
security and approval of debenture documents which were
allotted on June 06, 2024.

Approval by shareholders for Material Related Party
Transaction between GMR Warora Energy Limited and GMR
Energy Trading Limited for an amount upto X 1,000 crore in
the Annual General Meeting held on September 16, 2024.

Allotment of 11,12,41,666 equity shares of ¥ 5 each pursuant
to conversion of US$ 275 Million 7.5% subordinated Foreign
Currency Convertible Bonds due 2075 on July 10, 2024.

Approval by shareholders for Material Related Party
Transaction for the following transactions through Postal
Ballot notice dated January 24, 2025.

a) Approval of Material Related Party Transaction Of
providing Corporate Guarantee for the credit facilities
being availed by GMR Agra Smart Meters Limited to
an extent of I 687.26 crores from Indian Renewable
Energy Development Agency Limited (“IREDA”").

b) Approval of Material Related Party Transaction of
providing Corporate Guarantee for the credit facilities
being availed by GMR Kashi Smart Meters Limited to
an extent of X 776.72 crores from Indian Renewable
Energy Development Agency Limited (“IREDA”").

c) Approval of Material Related Party Transaction of
providing Corporate Guarantee for the credit facilities
being availed by GMR Triveni Smart Meters Limited to
an extent of X 664.13 cores from Indian Renewable
Energy Development Agency Limited (“IREDA”").

d) Approval of Material Related Party Transaction of
providing Corporate Guarantee for refinancing of the
existing credit facilities to be availed by GMR Warora
Energy Limited amounting to upto X 2,570 crores.

e) Approval of Material Related Party Transaction Of
providing corporate guarantee for credit facilities to
be availed by GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited for an
amount upto X 1,650 crores.

For V. SREEDHARAN & ASSOCIATES

(V Sreedharan)

Partner

FCS: 2347; C.P. No: 833

UDIN: F002347G000856948

Peer Review Certificate No: 5543/2024

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure and forms an integral part of this report.
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Annexure

The Members

GMR POWER AND URBAN INFRA LIMITED
Unit no. 12, 18" Floor, Tower A, Building No. 5,
DLF Cyber City, DLF Phase III, Gurugram,
Haryana — 122002

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on a test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

7.  We have partly conducted online verification and examination of records, as facilitated by the Company for the purpose of
issuing this report.

For V. SREEDHARAN & ASSOCIATES

(V Sreedharan)

Partner

Place: Bengaluru FCS: 2347; C.P. No: 833
Date: July 24, 2025 UDIN: F002347G000856948
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ANNEXURE ‘E-1° TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

Secretarial audit report of GMR Warora Energy Limited

(Form No. MR-3)
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025)

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

GMR Warora Energy Limited

701, 7th Floor, Naman Centre A-Wing,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra,
Mumbai-400051, Maharashtra

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to corporate
practices by GMR Warora Energy Limited (CIN:
U40100MH2005PLC155140) (hereinafter called the Company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of Company’s books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and made available and other
records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, in our
opinion we hereby report that, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025
complied with the statutory provisions stated hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to
the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for
the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the
provisions of:

i.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made
thereunder;

ii.  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and
the rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-
laws framed thereunder;

iv. The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules
and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings; (Not Applicable during the
Financial Year under review)

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI
Act’) to the extent applicable:
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Vi.

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; (Not Applicable
during the Financial Year under review)

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
(Not Applicable during the Financial Year under
review)

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018; (Not Applicable during the Financial Year
under review)

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;
(Not Applicable during the Financial Year under
review)

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and
Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations,
2021; (Not Applicable during the Financial Year
under review)

f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars
to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client; (Not Applicable during the Financial Year
under review)

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting
of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable
during the Financial Year under review); and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback
of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not Applicable during
the Financial Year under review);

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and the Listing Agreements entered by the
Company with BSE Limited (Not Applicable during the
Financial Year under review);

The Company has identified and confirmed the following
laws as being specifically applicable to the Company:
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1. The Electricity Act, 2003 and the rules made thereunder;

2. The Boilers Act, 1923 and the rules and regulations
made thereunder;

3. The Electricity Regulatory Commissions Act, 1998;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable Clauses
of the following:

(i)  Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of
Directors (‘'SS-1") and General Meetings ('SS-2’) issued by The
Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

We report that, during the period under review, the Company
has complied with the provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations,
and Guidelines mentioned above to the extent applicable.

We further report that, based on the information provided and
the representation made by the Company and also on the review
of the compliances report of Company Secretary & Chief
Compliance Officer/Chief Financial Officer/Whole Time Director
and respective departmental heads taken on record by the Board
of Directors of the Company in their meetings and based on the
review of the compliance mechanism established by the Company
we are of the opinion that, adequate system and process exist in
the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the
company to monitor and ensure compliances with all applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines including Labour Laws and
Environmental Laws.

Place : New Delhi
Date : June 25, 2025

Notice

We further report that

«  The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted
with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors, and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during
the period under review were carried out in compliance with
the provisions of the Act.

« Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the
Board / Committee Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, except
where consent of directors was received for circulation of
the agenda and notes on agenda at a shorter notice and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

« All decisions of the Board and Committees thereof were
carried unanimously.

We further report that during the audit period no specific
events/actions have taken place in pursuance of the above
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc.
referred to above which may have a major bearing on the
company'’s affairs.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is
annexed as Annexure-‘A’ and forms an integral part of this
report.

For S. Behera & Co.
Company Secretaries

Shesdev Behera

Proprietor

CP No. 5980

ICSI UDIN: F008428G000656889
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Annexure-‘A’

To,

The Members,

GMR Warora Energy Limited

701, 7th Floor, Naman Centre A-Wing,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra,
Mumbai -400051, Maharashtra

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

Management'’s Responsibility

1. It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate
effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility

1. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures followed by the Company
with respect to secretarial compliances.

2. We have conducted the Audit as per the applicable Auditing Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

3. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’'s management is adequate and appropriate for us
to provide a basis for our opinion.

4.  Wherever required, we have obtained reasonable assurance whether the statements prepared, documents or records, in relation
to Secretarial Audit, maintained by the Company, are free from misstatement.

5. Wherever required, we have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc.
Disclaimer

1. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted affairs of the Company.

2. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

For S. Behera & Co.
Company Secretaries

Shesdev Behera

Proprietor
Place : New Delhi CP No. 5980
Date : June 25, 2025 ICSI UDIN: F008428G000656889
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Notice

ANNEXURE ‘E-2° TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

Secretarial audit report of GMR Energy Trading Limited

(Form No. MR-3)
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025)

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Member,

GMR Energy Trading Limited

25/1, Skip House, Museum Road,
Bangalore — 560 025, Karnataka, India

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by GMR Energy Trading Limited [CIN:
U31200KA2008PLC045104] (hereinafter called the ‘Company’).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on March 31, 2025, complied with the Statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the extent, in the manner
and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for
the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 according to the
provisions of;

1.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there
under;

2. The Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-
law framed hereunder;

4. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under
the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 1992 ('SEBI Act’);

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an
Issue and Share Transfers Agents) Regulations, 1993;

5. Other laws as may be applicable specifically to the company,
in respect of which the company has internal system for
ensuring compliances. On the basis of the reliance on due
compliances of other applicable laws, the management is
of the view that no further verification is required and hence
no comments offered.

During the period under review the Company has generally
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc mentioned above.

However, the following Acts, Rules, regulations Guidelines,
Agreement(s), required to be reported as per the prescribed
format are not applicable to the company during the audit period
since the securities of the Company are not listed or there are no
transaction(s) under the Act during the year under review, as the
case may be:

1. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and
the rules made there under;

2. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and
regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings;

3. The Listing Agreements including Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 entered into by the
Company with the Stock Exchange(s)

4. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under
the Securities and Exchange Board of India, 1992 ('SEBI Act’);

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulation, 2021;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and
Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations,
2021;

(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting
of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback
of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
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The compliance by the Company with applicable financial laws,
like direct and indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this
audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory
auditors and other designated professionals.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Act.

Based on the representation made by the Company and its
Officers, we herewith report that all decisions of the Board and
Committees thereof were carried out with requisite majority.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in

Place : New Delhi
Date : July 10, 2025
UDIN: A015151G000752965
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advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarification on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Based on the statutory compliance certificates taken on record
by the Board of Directors at the board meetings, there are
adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

We further report that during the Audit period there was no
specific event / action having a major bearing on the Company's
affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations
guidelines and/or standards, etc

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which
is annexed as “ANNEXURE A" and forms an integral part of this
report.

For Vikash Sethi & Associates
Company Secretaries

(Vikash Sethi)

Proprietor

M No. A 15151

CP No. 7863

Peer Review No. 1074/2021



To,
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‘ANNEXURE-A’

The Member,

GMR Energy Trading Limited
25/1, SKIP HOUSE MUSEUM ROAD
Bangalore — 560 025,

Karnataka, India

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit on sample check basis.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on the test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected
in Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company.

4.  Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about compliance of laws, rules and regulations and
happenings of events etc.

5. The compliance of provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Vikash Sethi & Associates

Company Secretaries

(Vikash Sethi)

Proprietor

Place : New Delhi M No. A 15151
Date : July 10, 2025 CP No. 7863
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ANNEXURE ‘E-3° TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

Secretarial Audit Report of GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited

FORM No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2025)

[Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited
25/1, Skip House, Museum Road
Bangalore, Karnataka-560025.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good
corporate practices by GMR KAMALANGA ENERGY LIMITED
(hereinafter called the "Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and
expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the GMR KAMALANGA ENERGY
LIMITED company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and
also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31t March,
2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by GMR
KAMALANGA ENERGY LIMITED (“the Company”) for the
financial year ended on 31%t March, 2025 according to the
provisions of:

1.  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there
under;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA") and
the rules made thereunder; (Not applicable to the company
during the audit period)

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-
laws framed there under;

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and
regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings, (Not applicable to the company
during the audit period)

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI
Act’): -
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a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (substantial
Acquisition of shares and Takeover) Regulations, 2011;
(Not applicable to the company during the audit period)

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition
of Insider trading) Regulations, 2015; (Not applicable
to the company during the audit period)

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2018;
(Not applicable to the company during the audit period)

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee
Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; The Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Shares Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the
company during the audit period)

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and
listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;
(Not applicable to the company during the audit period)

f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar
to an issue and shares transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client; (Not applicable to the company during the audit
period)

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting
of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to
the company during the audit period)

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback
of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the
company during the audit period)

6. The Electricity Act, 2003 and regulation framed thereunder.

7. The Boilers Act, 1923 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder.

8.  Electricity Regulatory Commissions Act, 1998.
9. Electricity (Supply) Act, 1948.
10. Other applicable Labour & Industrial laws.
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I have also examined compliance with applicable clauses of the
followings:

«  Secretarial Standard issued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with
the provision of the Act, Rules, Regulations, and Standards to
the extent applicable, as mentioned above.

I further report that

The board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors
and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board
Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at

Place : New Delhi
Date : June 14, 2025

Notice

least seven days /shorter notice in advance, and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

Board decision are carried out with unanimous consent and
therefore, no dissenting view required to be captured and
recorded as per of the minutes.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes
in the company commensurate with the size and operations of
the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period the company has
not any specific event /action having a major bearing on the
company’s affairs in pursuant of the above laws, rules, regulations,
guideline, standards etc.

For Arunesh Dubey & Co.
Company Secretaries

Arunesh Kumar Dubey
FCS: 7721

CP No.: 14054

PR No: 815/2020

UDIN: F0O07721G000598146

Note: This report is to be read with my letter of Even date which is annexed as Annexure-A as an integral part of this report.
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‘Annexure-A ’

To,

The Members,

GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited
25/1, Skip House, Museum Road
Bangalore, Karnataka-560025.

My report of Event date is to be read along with this supplementary testimony.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. Thave followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of
the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, the company had followed provide a reasonable basis for my
opinion.

3. Thave not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of
management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

5. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For Arunesh Dubey & Co.
Company Secretaries

Arunesh Kumar Dubey

FCS: 7721

CP No.: 14054

Place : New Delhi PR No: 815/2020
Date : June 14, 2025 UDIN: FO07721G000598146
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ANNEXURE ‘E-4' TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

Secretarial Audit Report of GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
(FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025)

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited
CIN: U45201KA2009PTC050109

25/1, SKIP House, Museum Road, Bangalore,

Karnataka -560025, India

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit pursuant to Section
204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule-9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, on the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by
GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited
(hereinafter called the “Company”) during the financial year from
April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2025 (‘the year’/ ‘audit period’/
‘period under review’).

We conducted the Secretarial Audit in a manner that provided
us a reasonable basis for evaluating the Company's corporate
conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereon.

We are issuing this report based on our verification of the
Company'’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company, the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the
explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations
made by the Management, we hereby report that in our opinion,
the Company has during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on March 31, 2025, generally complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

We report that, we have examined the books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed, and other records maintained by
the Company during the Audit Period according to the provisions
of (as amended):

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Rules made
there under read with notifications, exemptions and
clarifications thereto;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA’) and
the rules made there under;

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-
laws framed there under pursuant to rule 9 (A) (11) of
Companies (Prospects and Allotment of Securities) Rules
2014. The shareholders of the company hold all its share in
dematerialized form;

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and
regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct

Investment, Overseas Direct Investment, External
Commercial Borrowings - [Not Applicable to the Company
during the period under review];

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under
the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI
Act’) as amended: -

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011-
[Not Applicable to the Company during the period
under review];

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibitions
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015~ [Not Applicable
to the Company during the period under review];

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2018- [Not Applicable to the Company during the
period under review];

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations,
2021- [Not Applicable to the Company during the
period under review];

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and
Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021
- [Not Applicable to the Company during the period
under review];

(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars
to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting
of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009~ [Not Applicable
to the Company during the period under review];

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback
of Securities) Regulations, 2018- [Not Applicable to
the Company during the period under review];

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015- [Not Applicable to the Company during the
period under review];

Other Applicable Acts:
(@) Maternity Benefits Act, 1961;

(b) Payment of Wages Act, 1936, and rules made
thereunder;
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() The Minimum Wages Act, 1948, and rules made
thereunder;

(d) Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948, and rules made
thereunder;

(e) The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952, and rules made thereunder;

(f) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965, and rules made
thereunder;

(g) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, and rules made
thereunder;

(h) The Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970;
(i) Indian Stamp Act, 1899 & State Stamp Acts

() The Registration Act, 1908

(k) Indian Contract Act, 1872

() The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

(m) National Highways Authority of India Act, 1988

(n) Regulation under TNRDC

(o) The Motor Vehicles Act 1988

(

p) The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

(g) The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981
() The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act,

1974

(s) The Hazardous Waste (Management and Handling)
Rules, 1989

(t) The Andhra Pradesh Minor Mineral Concession Rules,
1966

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses
of the following: -

(i)

(i)

The Secretarial Standards with regards to meeting of Board
of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by
The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and;

The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with
Stock Exchange(s), if applicable; (Not Applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period under review).

During Audit Period under review, the Company has generally
complied with the provisions of the applicable Acts, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Secretarial Standards etc. as mentioned
above.

We further report that:

1.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted
with required numbers of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors, and Independent Directors.

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 10, 2025

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the
meetings of the Board and detailed notes on agenda were
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meeting duly recorded and signed
by the Chairman, all the decisions made in the Board/
Committee meeting(s) were carried out with unanimous
consent of all the Directors/ Members present during the
meeting and no dissenting views have been recorded.

We further report that Based on the information provided
by the Company during the Audit Period and also on the
review of quarterly compliance reports by the department
concerned, taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Company, in our opinion, adequate systems and processes
and control mechanisms exist in commensurate with its size
and operations, to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable general laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the period under review there
is no such specific events/actions having major bearing on
the Company’s affairs had taken place in pursuance to the
laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, and standards referred
to hereinabove except;

The Company, in accordance with the authorization by the
Board in its meeting held on July 21, 2022, has negotiated
and entered into Settlement Agreement on June 13, 2024
with NHAI for settlement of all the dispute and handing
over of the project asset to NHAI

As per the Settlement Agreement, net compensation amount
of 1,387.21 Crore was payable by NHAI to the Company in
full and final settlement in respect of all claims, counter
claims, including interest and all other disputes and matter
related thereto pending as on date of the Agreement and
the Company handover the project highway to NHAI w.e.f.
01.07.2024.

Further, the Company received the settlement amount in
two installments. The 1t installment of 850 Crore received
on 26.06.2024 after signing of Settlement Agreement to
enable the Company to repay the debt of senior lenders
along with interest and 2" installment of 537.21 Crore
received on 09.07.2024 after submission of No Dues
Certificate from senior lenders along with statutory auditor
certificate and taking over of the Project Highway by NHAL

With this settlement, all the disputes between the Company
and NHAI are settled and all the litigations which were at
various forums withdrawn.

For VAPN & Associates

Practicing Company Secretaries

ICSI Unique Code: P2015DE045500
Peer Review Certificate N0.975/2020

Prabhakar Kumar

Partner

FCS No: 5781 | COP No: 10630
ICSI UDIN: FO05781G000748083

Note: This report is to be read with letter of event date by the secretarial auditor, which is annexed as ‘Annexure A’ and forms an
integral part of this report.
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‘Annexure-A’

The Members,

GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited
CIN: U45201KA2009PTC050109

25/1, SKIP House, Museum Road, Bangalore,

Karnataka -560025, India

Our Secretarial Audit Report (Form MR-3) of even date for the period from April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2025, is to be read
along with this letter.

1.

The Company’s management is responsible for the maintenance of secretarial records and compliance with the relevant provisions
of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, and standards. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the secretarial records produced for our audit.

2. We have followed such audit practices and processes as we considered appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.

3. We have verified the secretarial records furnished to us on a test basis to see whether the correct facts are reflected therein. We
also examined the compliance procedures followed by the Company on a test basis. We believe that the processes and practices
we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

4. While forming an opinion on compliance and issuing this report:

(@) We have considered compliance-related action taken by the Company for the period from April 01, 2024 to March 31,
2025.
(b) We have taken an overall view, based on the compliance procedures and practices followed by the Company.

5. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statement (including attachments and annexures
thereto), financial records, and books of accounts of the Company, as they are subject to audit by the Auditors of the Company,
appointed under Section 139 of the Act.

6. We have obtained and relied on the Management's representation about the compliance of laws, rules, and regulations and
happening of events, wherever required.

7. Our Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For VAPN & Associates

Practicing Company Secretaries

ICSI Unique Code: P2015DE045500

Peer Review Certificate N0.975/2020

Prabhakar Kumar

Partner

Place: New Delhi FCS No: 5781 | COP No: 10630
Date: July 10, 2025 ICSI UDIN: F005781G000748083
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ANNEXURE ‘F' TO THE BOARD'S REPORT

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
[Section 134(3)(m) of The Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

(A) Conservation of energy:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

Since the Company is not engaged in any
manufacturing activity, the particulars are not
applicable.*

the steps taken by the company for utilising alternate
sources of energy:

Since the Company is not engaged in any
manufacturing activity, the particulars are not
applicable.*

the capital investment on energy conservation
equipments:

Since the Company is not engaged in any
manufacturing activity, the particulars are not
applicable.*

(B) Technology absorption:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the efforts made towards technology absorption:

Since the Company is not engaged in any
manufacturing activity, the particulars are not
applicable.*

the benefits derived like product improvement, cost
reduction, product development or import substitution:

Since the Company is not engaged in any
manufacturing activity, the particulars are not
applicable.*

in case of imported technology (imported during the
last three years reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year):

(@) the details of technology imported:

Since the Company is not engaged in any
manufacturing activity, the particulars are not
applicable.*

(b) the year of import:

Since the Company is not engaged in any
manufacturing activity, the particulars are not
applicable.*

(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed:

Since the Company is not engaged in any
manufacturing activity, the particulars are not
applicable.*

Place : Hyderabad
Date : August 22, 2025
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(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has
not taken place, and the reasons thereof:

Since the Company is not engaged in any
manufacturing activity, the particulars are not
applicable.*

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and

Development:

Since the Company is not engaged in any
manufacturing activity, the particulars are not
applicable.*

*However, various steps taken by the Group towards
energy efficiency, utilizing alternative resources and
technology absorption are covered under the Business
Responsibility and Sustainability Report forming part
of the Annual Report 2024-25.

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo during the year:

(i) The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows:-

(X in crore)

Particulars March 31,
2024

Interest / Miscellaneous NIL NIL
income
Proceeds from sale and 0.02 33.32
redemption on non-current
investments
Income from Management and NIL NIL
other services/Management
Consulting Services

(ii) Foreign Exchange outgo in terms of actual outflows:

(X in crore)

Particulars m
2024

Other Expenses 0.01 0.18
Interest on FCCB NIL NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

G. M. Rao
Chairman
(DIN:00574243)
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ANNEXURE ‘G’ TO THE BOARD’S REPORT

Disclosure of Managerial Remuneration for Financial Year ended March 31, 2025

a) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the financial

year:
Name of the Director (Mr./Ms./Dr.) Ratio of Director’s remuneration to the median remuneration
of the employees of the Company for the financial year
G. M. Rao, Chairman N.A.
Srinivas Bommidala, Managing Director 8.69
Grandhi Kiran Kumar, Non-Executive Promoter Director N.A.
B. V. N. Rao, Non-Executive Non-Independent Director N.A.
G. Subba Rao, Executive director 3.33
Madhva B. Terdal, Executive Director* 9.03
Siva Kameswari Vissa, Independent Director 0.12
Emandi Sankara Rao, Independent Director 0.06
Satyanarayana Beela, Independent Director 0.14
Suresh Narang, Independent Director 0.04
Suman Naresh Sabnani 0.13
Fareed Ahmed 0.11
Shantanu Ghosh 0.05

b) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary
or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

Name of the Director and Key Managerial Percentage increase/ (decrease) in
Personnel (Mr./Ms./Dr.) remuneration in the financial year
G. M. Rao, Chairman N.A.

Srinivas Bommidala, Managing Director” 20.73

Grandhi Kiran Kumar, Non-Executive Promoter Director N.A.

B.V.N. Rao, Non-Executive Non-Independent Director N.A.

G. Subba Rao, Executive Director 10.44

Madhva B. Terdal, Executive Director* 10.90

Siva Kameswari Vissa, Independent Director® 4.55

Emandi Sankara Rao, Independent Director® 22.22

Satyanarayana Beela, Independent Director® 13.04

Suresh Narang, Independent Director® Nil

Suman Naresh Sabnani$ 33.33

Fareed Ahmed* 23.53

Shantanu Ghosh?* 66.67

Suresh Bagrodia, Chief Financial Officer 1.66

Vimal Prakash, Company Secretary 8.21

AConsidering the significant contributions and breakthrough achievements of Mr. Srinivas Bommidala, has was reappointed
for a period of three years commencing from January 31, 2025, at the revised remuneration based on an independent
benchmarking report issued by AON, justifying the percentage increase, which was approved by the shareholders, at the 5%
AGM.

* Designation changed to Non-Executive Non-Independent Director w.e.f. July 31, 2025.

$The Independent Directors are paid sitting fee for each of the meeting attended. The difference in payment of sitting fee is
depending upon the number of meetings held during the year. Higher number of meetings were held during the financial year
under review as compared to the previous financial year.

i.  The percentage Increase/ (decrease) in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: (23.51)%"

#The decrease in the median remuneration of employees was mainly on account of cessation/movement of staff who were
in receipt of higher remuneration.
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ii.  The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the company as on March 31, 2025: 10

iii. Average percentile/percentage increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in
the last financial year, its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration, justification thereof and
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

Average percentage increase in the remuneration of the Managerial persons was 9.46% and percentage increase in the
remuneration of the other employees was about 8.56% which is in line with the industry benchmark.

iv. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:

It is affirmed that the remuneration is as per the ‘Remuneration Policy’ of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

G. M. Rao
Place : Hyderabad Chairman
Date : August 22, 2025 (DIN:00574243)
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Report on Corporate Governance

Company'’s Philosophy on Code of Governance

The chosen vision of your Company is an institution in
perpetuity. The Company is deeply conscious that while
doing business successfully, it will actively cater to the
building of the nation and society around it. The long-term
interest of the Company, particularly in the infrastructure
domain, is closely woven with stakeholders' alignment. Your
Company has a large number of stakeholders in all spheres
of business and society. It will be our endeavor to constantly
promote and enhance the stakeholders' legitimate interests.
We acknowledge that the principles of good governance
are critical to sustainable long-term growth and improving
stakeholder value. We are a responsible corporate
organization committed to upholding the highest levels of
corporate governance in all aspects of our business.

It is our sense of conviction that good corporate governance
is more than just compliance with regulations; it is a moral
responsibility that is the foundation for building trust
between the Company and its stakeholders. Hence, it
becomes everyone in the organization's responsibility to
adhere to these governance principles and ensure our
actions are in line with GMR Group's Values & Beliefs and
our commitment to ethical conduct and stakeholder
engagement.

By good governance, we intend to establish a resilient,
ethical, and forward-looking organization that contributes
to the nation's economy and society at large.

Ethics / Governance

The Company endeavors to conduct its businesses and
strengthen relationships in a manner that is dignified,
distinctive and responsible. The Company adheres to ethical
standards to ensure integrity, transparency, independence

and accountability in dealing with all stakeholders. In this
regard, the Company has adopted various codes and policies
to carry out its duties in an ethical manner. Some of these
codes and policies are:

«  Code of Conduct for Board Members
*  Code of Conduct for Senior Management

«  Code of Business Conduct and Ethics applicable to
employees

«  Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and
Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosures
of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information

«  Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
- Dividend Distribution Policy

«  Nomination and Remuneration Policy
«  Policy on Whistle Blower

»  Policy on Related Party Transactions

«  Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework Policy
and Guidelines

«  Policy on Preservation of Documents and Archival of
documents

«  Policy on disclosure of material events and information
«  Policy on Material Subsidiaries

«  Policy against sexual harassment

*  Business Responsibility Policy

«  Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Policy

«  Board Diversity Policy

«  Climate Resilience Policy

«  Treasury Policy

IL.

Board of Directors

Board composition and category of Directors

The Company’s policy is to maintain an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors. The composition of

the Board and category of Directors is as follows:

( Promoter Directors )
N J N
Mr. G. M. Rao Mr. Srinivas Bommidala
(Non-Executive Chairman) (Managing Director)
Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar
(Non-Executive Director)
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( . . N
L Executive Directors )

Mr. G. Subba Rao
(Executive Director)

Mr. Madhva B. Terdal*
(Executive Director)

*Designation changed to Non-executive Non Independent Director w.e.f July 31, 2025.

(

L Non-Executive & Non-Independent Directors

N

( Mr. B.V. N. Rao )

( Non-Executive Independent Directors ) \
( Dr. Siva Kameswari Vissa ) ( Ms. Suman Naresh Sabnani )
( Dr. Emandi Sankara Rao ) ( Dr. Fareed Ahmed )
( Dr. Satyanarayana Beela ) ( Mr. Shantanu Ghosh )
( Mr. Suresh Lilaram Narang )

)
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Mr. G.M. Rao is the father of Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar and
father-in-law of Mr. Srinivas Bommidala and therefore, are
deemed to be related to each other. None of the other
directors are related to any other director on the Board.

Board Composition

23%

. . 54% —
Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors T 23%

Independent Directors

The present strength of the Board reflects a proper mix of
qualification, competence, skillset and sound knowledge
which enables the Board to provide effective leadership to
the Company.

Selection of Independent Directors

Taking the requirement of skill sets for the Board into
consideration and also in alignment with the Board Diversity
Policy eminent persons having independent standing in their
respective field or profession and who can effectively
contribute to the Company’s business and policy decisions
are considered by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, for appointment, as Independent Directors on
the Board. The Committee considers qualification, positive
attributes, area of expertise, the skillset required for directors
of the Company and number of Directorships and
Memberships held in various committees of other companies
by such persons for selection of Independent Directors.

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

Further, the prescribed criteria under Companies Act, 2013
and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(hereinafter referred to as "SEBI LODR ") is taken into account
andfor determining directors’ independence. The Board
considers the Committee’'s recommendations, takes
appropriate decision and recommends to the shareholders
for the appointment of Independent Directors.

The Independent Director(s), at the first meeting of the Board
in which they participate as Director, thereafter at the first
meeting of the Board in every financial year or whenever
there is any change in the circumstances which may affect
their status as an Independent Director, give a declaration
that they meet the criteria of independence as provided
under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI LODR, as amended
from time to time.

Familiarisation programs for Board Members

At the time of appointment, an appointment letter setting
out of the role, functions, duties and responsibilities and
performance evaluation process etc. is given to the
Independent Directors. The Board members are provided
with necessary documents, viz.,, Company's corporate profile,
its Mission, Vision, Values and Beliefs, Organization Structure,
the Company's history and milestones, Annual Reports, a
brief background on the business of the Company,
Institutional Building and highlights of its performance, major
policies of the Company, Code of Conduct, fund raising
history etc. The Board also has an active communication
channel with executive management which allows free flow
of communication among Directors in terms of raising
queries, seeking clarifications for enabling a good
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understanding of the Company and its various operations.
Periodic presentations are made to the Board on business
and performance updates of the Company, global business
environment, risk management, subsidiary information and
changes in the regulatory environment applicable to the
corporate sector and to the industry in which it operates
and other relevant issues.

The details of such familiarization programs for Independent
Directors are posted on the website of the Company and
can be accessed at https://investor.gmrpui.com/policies.

Meetings of Independent Directors

As per the requirement of Regulation 25 of SEBI LODR and
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, the Independent
Directors of the Company meet at least once in a financial
year (“FY") without the presence of Non-Independent
Directors and management personnel. Such meetings enable
Independent Directors to discuss matters pertaining to the
Company'’s affairs and matters mentioned in Regulation 25
of SEBI LODR and Schedule 1V to the Companies Act, 2013.
The Independent Directors take appropriate steps to present
their views to the Chairman. One meeting of the Independent
Directors was held during the FY 2024-25, on August 09, 2024.

e.

Notice

Code of Conduct

As per the requirement of Regulation 26(3) of SEBI LODR,
the Board has laid down a Code of Conduct (“the Code") for
all Board members and senior management personnel of
the Company. The Code is posted on the website of the
Company https://investor.gmrpui.com/code-of-conduct. All
Board members and senior management personnel affirm
compliance with the Code on an annual basis and the
declaration to that effect by Mr. Srinivas Bommidala,
Managing Director is attached to this report.

A Code of Business Conduct and Ethics applicable to all the
employees of the Group is communicated and affirmed by
them periodically, which is to be followed in the day to day
work life and which enables the employees to maintain
highest standards of values in their conduct to achieve
organisational objectives.

The Company has various other polilcy and procedures to
ensure good conduct and ethical behavior in all aspects of
the Company’s governance including policy against sexual
harassment, as mentioned above under the Ethics/
Governance disclosure.

Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings, last Annual General Meeting (AGM) and number of other Directorships and
Chairmanship / Membership of Committees of each Director in various Companies and shareholding in GMR Power and

Urban Infra Limited:

SI. | Name of Director DIN A | Category@ Number of Number of committee | Board Meetings during Whether No. of
No. Directorship held in Chairmanship/ the period from present at shares
other Public Limited | membership held in April 01, 2024 to the Previous | held***
Companies as on other Public Limited March 31, 2025 AGM held on
March 31, 2025% Companies as on September 16,
March 31, 2025 2024
Chairman | Director | Chairman | Member Held | Attended*
during the
tenure
1. | Mr. GM. Rao 00574243 [ NEC 8 - - 5 5 Yes 173233¢
2. | Mr. Srinivas Bommidala 00061464 [ MD 1 7 1 5 4 Yes 45266°
3. | Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar 00061669 [ NEPD 1 7 1 - 5 4 Yes 87316
4. | Mr.B.V.N. Rao 00051167 | NENID 3 4 1 5 5 Yes 18214
5. | Mr. G. Subba Rao 00064511 | ED 6 - 5 4 Yes 37,600
6. | Mr. Madhva Bhimacharya 05343139 [ED 4 1 5 4 Yes Nil
Terdal**
7. | Dr. Emandi Sankara Rao 05184747 | NEID 1 6 1 6 5 5 Yes Nil
8. | Dr. Satyanarayana Beela 09462114 | NEID - - - 5 5 Yes 200
9. | Dr. Siva Kameswari Vissa 02336249 [ NEID 6 2 3 5 5 Yes Nil
10. [ Mr. Suresh Lilaram Narang [ 08734030 | NEID 1 5 4 Yes Nil
11. | Ms. Suman Naresh Sabnani | 10223343 | NEID 4 4 5 5 Yes 5000
12. | Dr. Fareed Ahmed 09698462 | NEID 2 1 5 5 Yes Nil
13. | Mr. Shantanu Ghosh 00041435 [ NEID - - - 5 5 Yes Nil

A

DIN - Director Identification Number

@ NEC-Non-Executive Chairman, MD - Managing Director, NEPD — Non-Executive Promoter Director, NENID - Non-Executive
Non-Independent Director, NEID - Non-Executive Independent Director, ED- Executive Director

#  The total number of Directorship are disclosed for position of held in all public limited companies, whether listed or not
including deemed to be public companies and all other companies including Private limited, Foreign Companies, Section

8 Companies are excluded.

*  Committee, Chairmanship / Membership are disclosed in accordance with Regulation 26 of SEBI LODR i.e. only Audit
Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of all public limited companies, whether listed or not including
deemed to be public companies and all other companies including Private limited, Foreign Companies, Section 8 Companies

are excluded.
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**

Designation changed to Non-Executive Non-Independent Director with effect from July 31, 2025

*** No convertible instrument was held by the Directors

$$ Attendance includes participation through Video Conference.

4 Shareholding includes shares held as Karta of HUF and Trustee of Trust.

L3
Meetings were held during the FY ended March 31, 2025

on
) ) ( October 25, 2024 )

( January 17, 2025 ) ( January 29, 2025 )

/

C

May 17, 2024 ( August 14, 2024

/

At least one board meeting was held in each Quarter. Further, the gap between any two consecutive board meetings did not
exceed 120 days.

62

g. Name of the listed entities, other than GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited, where a director of the Company, is a
director as on March 31, 2025:
Sl. No. | Name of Director Name of other listed entities Category
1. Mr. G.M. Rao GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited* | Executive Chairman
Delhi International Airport Limited* Executive Chairman
GMR Goa International Airport Limited* Non-Executive Chairman
GMR Airports Limited Non-Executive Chairman
(formerly GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited)
2. Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar GMR Airports Limited (formerly Managing Director & CEO
GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited)
Delhi International Airport Limited* Non-Executive Director
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited* [ Non-Executive Director
GMR Goa International Airport Limited* Non-Executive Director
3. Mr. Srinivas Bommidala Delhi International Airport Limited* Non-Executive Director
GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited* [ Non-Executive Director
GMR Airports Limited (formerly Non-Executive Director
GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited)
GMR Goa International Airport Limited* Non-Executive Director
4. Mr. B.V.N. Rao GMR Hyderabad International Airport Limited* | Non-Executive Director
5. Mr. G. Subba Rao Nil Nil
6. Mr. Madhva Bhimacharya Terdal Nil Nil
7. Dr. Emandi Sankara Rao GMR Airports Limited (formerly GMR Non-Executive Independent Director
Airports Infrastructure Limited)
Coastal Corporation Limited Non-Executive - Independent
Director-Chairperson
Delhi International Airport Limited* Non-Executive Independent Director
Patel Engineering Limited Non-Executive Independent Director
Dr. Satyanarayana Beela Nil Nil
Dr. Siva Kameswari Vissa VST Tillers Tractors Limited Non-Executive - Independent Director
GMR Goa International Airport Limited* Non-Executive - Independent Director
10.  [Mr. Suresh Lilaram Narang GMR Airports Limited (formerly GMR Airports | Non-Executive -Independent director
Infrastructure Limited)
11.  |Dr. Fareed Ahmed Nil Nil
12.  [Ms. Suman Sabnani Nil Nil
13. [Mr. Shantanu Ghosh Nil Nil

* Debt listed Company

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
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h. The following is the list of core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the Board of directors required for effective
functioning as required in the context of the Company’s business(es) and sectors for it to function effectively.

Technical & Functional
Skills

Networking
Abilities Strategic & Business
Skills
Broader
Governance

Perspective
& Leadership
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Audit Committee
Composition of Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee comprises of the following Directors:

Name

Designation

Dr. Siva Kameswari Vissa (Non-Executive Independent Director)

Chairperson

Dr. Satyanarayana Beela (Non-Executive Independent Director) Member
Dr. Fareed Ahmed (Non-Executive Independent Director) Member
Ms. Suman Sabnani (Non-Executive Independent Director) Member

Mr. Vimal Prakash, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, acts as Secretary to the Audit Committee.

Dr. Siva Kameswari Vissa, Chairperson of the Audit Committee had attended the previous AGM held on September 16, 2024

and was available to address the queries of Shareholders.

Meetings and attendance during the year:

\_

on

L3
Meetings were held during the FY ended March 31, 2025

\

C May 16, 2024 ) C August 14, 2024

) C October 25, 2024 )

C January 29, 2025 )

C

March 28, 2025 )

/

The attendance of the Audit Committee members was as under:

Names No. of the Meetings
Held during Attended
the tenure

Dr. Siva Kameswari Vissa 5 5

Dr. Satyanarayana Beela 5 5

Dr. Fareed Ahmed 5 5

Ms. Suman Sabnani 5 5

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as
under:

i.  Oversee the Company'’s financial reporting process and
the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that
the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

ii. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and
terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;

iii. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other
services rendered by the statutory auditors;

iv. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial
statements and auditors’ report thereon before
submission to the board for approval, with particular
reference to:

(a) Matters required to be included in the Director's
Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board’s Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section
3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

(b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and
practices and reasons for the same;

Vi.

(c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based
on the exercise of judgment by management;

(d) Significant adjustments made in the financial
statements arising out of audit findings;

(e) Compliance with listing and other legal
requirements relating to financial statements;

(f) Disclosure of any related party transactions; and
(g) Qualifications in the draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial
statements before submission to the board for approval;

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses
/ application of funds raised through an issue (public
issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement
of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated
in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the
report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring
the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue
and making appropriate recommendations to the Board
to take up steps in this matter;
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Vii.

viii.

Xi.

Xil.

Xii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVi.

Review and monitor the auditor's independence and
performance and effectiveness of audit process;

Approval or any subsequent modification of
transactions of the Company with related parties;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company,
wherever it is necessary;

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk
management systems;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of
statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal
control systems;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if
any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading
the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant
findings and follow up thereon;

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations
by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal
control systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the Board;

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of
concern;

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the

IV. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

a. Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

XViil.

XiX.

XX.

XXi.

XXil.

XXili.

payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared
dividends) and creditors;

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower
mechanism;

Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the Whole-time
Finance Director or any other person heading the
finance function or discharging that function) after
assessing the qualifications, experience and background
etc., of the candidate.

Review the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/
investment in any subsidiary exceeding X 100 crore or
10% of the asset size of such subsidiary, whichever is
lower including existing loans / advances / investments.

Review compliance with the provisions of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 at least once in a financial year and
shall verify that the systems for internal control are
adequate and are operating effectively.

Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and
impact of schemes involving merger, demerger,
amalgamation etc., on the Company and shareholders
and such other as may be specified by Securities and
Exchange Board of India from time to time in respect
any type of restructuring.

Any other item or subject that may be required by the
Companies Act, 2013 or SEBI Listing Regulations, as
amended from time to time or under any other
applicable law or statute.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of the following Directors:

Names Designation
Dr. Fareed Ahmed (Non-Executive Independent Director) Chairman
Dr. Siva Kameswari Vissa (Non-Executive Independent Director) Member
Mr. B.V.N. Rao (Non-Executive Non Independent Director) Member
Dr. Satyanarayana Beela (Non-Executive Independent Director ) Member

Mr. Vimal Prakash, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, acts as the Secretary to the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee.

Dr. Fareed Ahmed, Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee had attended the previous AGM held on
September 16, 2024 and was available to answer the queries of Shareholders.

rm
L

Meeting was held during the FY ended March 31, 2025

on

( August 12, 2024 )
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Meetings and Attendance during the year:

Notice

The attendance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee members was as under:

Names No. of the Meetings
Held during Attended
the tenure

Dr. Fareed Ahmed 1 1

Mr. B.V.N. Rao 1 1

Dr. Satyanarayana Beela 1 1

Dr. Siva Kameswari Vissa 1 1

The terms of reference of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee are as under:

i.  Identify persons who are qualified to become directors
and who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to
the Board their appointment and removal;

ii. Specify the manner for effective evaluation of
performance of Board, its committees and individual
directors to be carried out either by the Board, by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by an
independent external agency and review its
implementation and compliance and to review the
performance of Independent Directors;

iii. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration for the directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees;

iv. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent
Directors and the Board;

v.  Devising a policy on Board diversity;

vi. Ensuring that the Board comprises of a balanced
combination of Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Directors;

vii. All information about the Directors / Managing
Directors / Whole time Directors / Key Managerial
Personnel i.e., background details, past remuneration,
recognition or awards, job profile shall be considered
and disclosed to shareholders, where required;

viii. The Committee shall take into consideration and ensure
the compliance of provisions under Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013 for appointing and fixing
remuneration of Managing Directors / Whole time
Directors;

ix. While approving the remuneration, the Committee shall
take into account financial position of the Company,
trend in the industry, qualification, experience and past
performance of the appointee;

Xx. Recommending to the Board, all remuneration, in
whatever form, payable to senior management;

xi. The Committee shall be in a position to bring about
objectivity in determining the remuneration package
while striking the balance between the interest of the
Company and the shareholders.

xii. Evaluation of the balance of skills, knowledge and

experience on the Board for every appointment of an
independent director, and on the basis of such
evaluation, prepare a description of the role and
capabilities required of an independent director. The
person recommended to the Board for appointment
as an independent director shall have the capabilities
identified in such description. For the purpose of
identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may:

a. use the services of an external agencies, if required;

b. consider candidates from a wide range of
backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and

c. consider the time commitments of the candidates.

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent
Directors and Board

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee oversees the
annual self-evaluation of the Board including committees
thereof and of individual directors. It reviews and discusses
all matters pertaining to the performance of all directors
including independent directors, periodically as may be
necessary on the basis of the detailed performance
parameters set forth. The Committee also periodically
evaluates the usefulness of such performance parameters
and makes necessary amendments.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid
down the criteria/questionnaires for performance evaluation
of Board, Committees and Directors (including Chairman and
Independent Directors) which is based on certain parameters
inter-alia including the following:

i.  Frequency of meetings and attendance of Directors.
ii.  Timeliness of circulating Agenda for meetings.

iii. Quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information
to the Board.

iv. Promptness with which Minutes of the meetings are
drawn and circulated.

v.  Opportunity to discuss matters of critical importance,
before decisions are made.

vi. Familiarity with the objects, operations and other
functions of the Company.

vii. Level of monitoring of Corporate Governance
Regulations and compliance.

viii. Involvement of Board in Strategy evolution and
monitoring.

ix. Performance of the Chairperson of the Company
including leadership qualities.
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x.  Director’s contribution for enhancing the governance,
regulatory, legal, financial, fiduciary and ethical
obligations of the Board.

xi. Director's adherence to high standards of integrity,
confidentiality and ethics.

xii. Overall performance and contribution of directors at
meetings.

xiii. Overall performance of the Board/Committees.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

In terms of the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI LODR, the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (NRC) is responsible for
formulating the criteria for determining qualification, positive
attributes and independence of Directors. The NRC is also
responsible for recommending to the Board a policy relating
to the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management. In line with this
requirement, the Board has adopted the Nomination and
Remuneration Policy. The said Policy is available on the
website of the Company at https://investor.gmrpui.com/

policies.

Details of Remuneration to Directors:

Details of remuneration paid during the FY ended March
31, 2025 to the Directors are furnished hereunder:

There was no pecuniary relationship or transaction between
the Non-Executive Directors and the Company during the
FY 2024-25.

Criteria for making payments to Non-Executive Directors-
The Independent Directors may receive remuneration by way
of fees for attending meetings of Board or Committees
thereof. The Sitting fee as decided by the Board is reasonable
and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Independent
Directors (taking into consideration the challenges faced by
the Company and its future growth imperatives). However,
it is ensured that the amount of such fees does not exceed
the amount prescribed by the Central Government from time
to time.

Other than the above, no other payments are made to the
Non- Executive Independent Directors of the Company.

Name Category | Salary, Commission | Perquisites Sitting Fees Total )
and allowance(s) ®) ®

Mr. G.M. Rao NEC - - - -
Mr. Srinivas Bommidala MD 3,13,34,501 19,30,113 - 3,32,64,614
Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar NEPD - - - -
Mr. B.V.N. Rao NENID - - - -
Mr. G. Subba Rao ED 1,27,64,103 - - 1,27,64,103
Mr. Madhva Bhimacharya Terdal* ED 3,38,17,141 7,50,000 - 3,45,67,141
Dr. Emandi Sankara Rao NEID - - 2,20,000 2,20,000
Dr. Satyanarayana Beela NEID - - 5,20,000 5,20,000
Dr. Siva Kameswari Vissa NEID - - 4,60,000 4,60,000
Mr. Suresh Narang NEID - - 1,60,000 1,60,000
Ms. Suman Sabnani NEID - - 4,80,000 4,80,000
Dr. Fareed Ahmed NEID - - 4,20,000 4,20,000
Mr. Shantanu Ghosh NEID - - 2,00,000 2,00,000

*Change in designation from Executive Director to Non-Exeutive Non-Independent Director effective from July 31, 2025

Note: The Company does not have any stock option plan or performance linked incentive for the Director(s) other than details

provided hereinbelow.

The remuneration of Mr. Srinivas Bommidala includes Performance Linked Incentive Pay (“PLIP”), in terms of the following Key
Performance Indicators (KPI) as approved by the Board for an amount of upto X 2.15 crore p.a. with an annual increment of 10%

Yoy.
S.No | KPI Weightage
1 Consolidated EBIDTA — achieving the EBIDTA numbers as may be approved by the Board 80%
2 Net Debt to EBIDTA, as per the AOP 10%
3 ESG initiatives 10%

The Remuneration majorily comprises basic salary, special and other allowances, rent free accommodations, if any, contribution to

provident fund, etc.

No service contract, notice period and severance fee are applicable to Managing Director/Executive Director(s).

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
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VI. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

a. Composition of the Committee:

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee comprises of the following Directors:

Name Designation
Dr. Satyanaryana Beela (Non-Executive Independent Director) Chairman
Ms. Suman Sabnani (Non-Executive Independent Director) Member
Mr. G. Subba Rao (Executive Director) Member

Mr. Vimal Prakash, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, acts as Secretary to the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee.

Dr. Satyanaryana Beela, Chairman of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee had attended the previous AGM held on
September 16, 2024 and was available to answer the queries of shareholders.

b. Meetings and attendance during the year:

L4
Meetings were held during the FY ended March 31, 2025
on

(

May 15, 2024 ) C August 13, 2024 ) C October 22, 2024 ) C January 27, 2025 )

The attendance of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee members is as under:

Names No. of the Meetings
Held during Attended
the tenure

Dr. Satyanarayana Beela 4 4

Mr. G Subba Rao 4

Ms. Suman Sabnani 4 4

c. The terms of reference of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee are as under:

i.
ii.

iii.
iv.

Vi.
Vii.

viii.

Xi.

Allotment of all types of securities to be issued by the Company;

Transfer, transposition and transmission of securities;

Issuance of duplicate shares or other securities;

Dealing with complaints about non-receipt of declared dividend, non-receipt of Annual Reports, issue of new/duplicate
certificates, general meetings etc.;

Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed dividends, if
any, and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders;

Investigate into security holders/ other investor's complaints and take necessary steps for redressal thereof;

Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders;

To perform all functions relating to the interests of shareholders / security holders/ investors of the Company as may be
required by the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Listing Agreements with the Stock Exchanges and guidelines
issued by the SEBI or any other regulatory authority;

Authorise Company Secretary or other persons to take necessary action;

Appointment and fixation of remuneration of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent and Depositories and to review their
performance; and

Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being rendered by
the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

d. The details of complaints received during the FY 2024-25 and the status of the same are as below:

Number of complaints pending as on April 1, 2024 : NA
Number of shareholder complaints received : 9
Number of complaints resolved : 9
Number of complaints not resolved to the satisfaction of shareholders : NIL
Number of complaints pending as on March 31, 2025 : NIL
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VII. Risk Management Committee
a. Composition of Risk Management Committee:

The Risk Management Committee comprises of the following:

Name Designation
Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar (Non-Executive Promoter Director) Chairman
Mr. Srinivas Bommidala (Managing Director) Member
Dr. Siva Kameswari Vissa (Non- Executive Independent Director) Member
Mr. Suresh Bagrodia (CFO) Member

Mr. Vimal Prakash, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, acts as Secretary to the Risk Management Committee.

b. Meetings and attendance during the year:

4 )
L2 J

Meetings were held during the FY ended March 31, 2025

on

( August 12, 2024 )

C

March 7, 2025 )

The attendance of the Risk Management Committee members is as under:

Names No. of the Meetings
Held during Attended
the tenure

Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar 2 2

Mr. Srinivas Bommidala 2 1

Dr. Siva Kameswari Vissa 2 2

Mr. Suresh Bagrodia 2 2

c. The terms of reference of the Risk Management
Committee are as under:

(i) To formulate a detailed risk management policy which
shall include:

(@) A framework for identification of internal and
external risks specifically faced by the listed entity,
in particular including financial, operational,
sectoral, sustainability (particularly, ESG related
risks), information, cyber security risks or any other
risk as may be determined by the Committee.

(b) Measures for risk mitigation including systems and
processes for internal control of identified risks.

(c) Business continuity plan.

(i) To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and
systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks
associated with the business of the Company;

70 GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk
management policy, including evaluating the adequacy
of risk management systems;

To periodically review the risk management policy, at
least once in two years, including by considering the
changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity;

To keep the board of directors informed about the
nature and content of its discussions, recommendations
and actions to be taken;

Performing such other functions as may be necessary
or appropriate for the performance of its oversight
function and do other activities related to this Charter
as may be requested by the Board of Directors or to
address issues related to any significant subject within
its term of reference;

(vii) The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration

of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject to review
by the Risk Management Committee.
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VIII. Other Committees:

1.

a.

Environment Social and Governance (ESG) Committee
Composition of ESG Committee:

The ESG Committee comprises of the following:

Name Designation
Mr. Srinivas Bommidala (Managing Director) Chairman
Mr. B.V.N. Rao (Non- Executive Non-Independent Director) Member
Dr. Satyanarayana Beela (Non- Executive Independent Director) Member
Ms. Suman Sabnani (Non- Executive Independent Director) Member

Mr. Vimal Prakash, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, acts as Secretary to the ESG Committee.

Meetings and attendance during the year:

rm
L

Meeting was held during the FY ended March 31, 2025

on

C March 27, 2025* )

* The Meeting was adjourned and reconvened on April 23, 2025.

The attendance of the ESG Committee members is as under:

Names No. of the Meetings
Held during Attended
the tenure

Mr. B.V.N Rao 1 1

Mr. Srinivas Bommidala 1 0

Dr. Satyanarayana Beela 1 1

Ms. Suman Sabnani 1 1

The terms of reference of the ESG Committee are as
under:

Terms of Reference of ESG Committee:

« Oversee the development of and make
recommendations to the Board regarding the
Company'’s ESG policies, strategy, initiatives, priorities
and best practices.

«  Oversee the effective implementation and adoption of
ESG practices into the business.

« Identify the relevant ESG matters that are likely to affect
the business, operation, performance of the Company.

« Identify opportunities related to ESG matters impacting
the Company.

Monitor and reviews current and emerging ESG trends,
key risks and stakeholder priorities.

Set appropriate strategic goals/targets related to ESG
matters, road map to achieve those targets.

Oversee and review the Company's progress on ESG
targets, initiatives and best practices.

Work in conjunction with the Risk Committee to oversee
the identification and mitigation of risks relating to ESG
matters.

Report to the Board on a periodic basis on ESG matters
including Committee’s reviews and assessments on ESG
Matters and make appropriate recommendations.

Perform such other duties, tasks and responsibilities
relevant to ESG matters as may be suggested by the
Board of Directors from time to time.
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Management Committee

a.

72

b.

Composition of Management Committee:

The Management Committee comprises of the following Directors:

Name Designation
Mr. G.M. Rao (Non-Executive Chairman) Chairman
Mr. Srinivas Bommidala (Managing Director) Member
Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar (Non-Executive Promoter Director) Member
Mr. B.V. N. Rao (Non-Executive Non-Independent Director) Member

Mr. Vimal Prakash, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, acts as Secretary to the Management Committee.

Meetings and attendance during the year:

- (20] 2

Meetings were held during the FY ended March 31, 2025

on
( April 15, 2024 ) ( April 27, 2024 ) ( June 04, 2024 ) ( June 06, 2024 )

( July 05, 2024 )( July 10, 2024 ) ( July 26, 2024 )(September11,2024)

(Two Meetings)

(September 27, 2024) (September 30, 2024) ( October 16, 2024 ) (November 07, 2024)

(December 17, 2024) (December 27, 2024) ( January 06, 2025 ) ( January 30, 2025 )

( February 25, 2025 ) ( March 28, 2025 ) ( March 29, 2025 ) /

-

The attendance of members is as under:

Names No. of the Meetings
Held during Attended/
the tenure Participated*
Mr. G.M. Rao 20 20
Mr. Srinivas Bommidala 20 20
Mr. Grandhi Kiran Kumar 20 20
Mr. B.V. N. Rao 20 20

* Includes participation through Audio

The terms of reference of the Management Committee are as under:

Approval relating to operational matters such as investments in new projects, financial matters, providing loans, borrowings,
giving corporate guarantees, providing securities, capital expenditure, HR related matters, Bank accounts related matters
and other matters, proposals, agreements, declarations, undertaking, authorizing officials to represent the Company before
statutory authority/court/Tribunal including settlement of case, apply for any licenses/registration required for business,
authority for filing any return/documents.

The Board of Directors from time to time delegates specific powers to the Management Committee.

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

a.

b.

Composition of CSR Committee:

The CSR Committee comprises of the following Directors:

Name Designation
Mr. G. Subba Rao (Executive Director) Chairman
Dr. Emandi Sankara Rao (Non-Executive Independent Director) Member
Dr. Satyanarayana Beela (Non-Executive Independent Director) Member

Mr. Vimal Prakash, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, acts as Secretary to the CSR Committee.

Meetings and attendance during the year:

L1
Meeting was held during the FY ended March 31, 2025
on

( August 13, 2024 )

The attendance of CSR Committee members was as under:

Names No. of the Meetings
Held during Attended
the tenure

Mr. G Subba Rao 1 1

Dr. Emandi Sankara Rao 1 1

Dr. Satyanarayana Beela 1 1

The terms of reference of the CSR Committee are as follows:

Vi.

Vii.

Preparation of Corporate Social Responsibility Policy for the Company and to recommend the Board for its approval;

Recommendation of projects or programmes relating to activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in
Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013;

To recommend on CSR activities to be undertaken by the Company on its own or in collaboration with any registered
trust / society or a company established under Section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956 or under Section 8 of the
Companies Act, 2013;

Formulate and recommend to the Board, an annual action plan in pursuance of its CSR policy, which shall include the
following, namely: -

(a) the list of CSR projects or programmes to be undertaken in areas or subjects specified in Schedule VII of the Act;
(b) the manner of execution of such projects or programmes;

(c) the modalities of utilisation of funds and implementation schedules for the projects or programmes;

(d) monitoring and reporting mechanism for the projects or programmes; and

(e) details of need and impact assessment, if any, for the projects undertaken by the company

To institute a transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of the CSR projects or programs or activities
undertaken by the Company or trust / society / company mentioned in point no.(iii);

To report periodically on the CSR activities of the Company to the Board and in the Board's report;

To seek expert advice on CSR activities of the Company that may be appropriate to discharge its responsibilities; and

viii. To take up any other roles and responsibilities delegated by the Board from time to time.
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IX. Senior management:

In terms of Clause 5B of Schedule V of SEBI LODR, the particulars of Senior Management Personnel as on March 31, 2025, were

as under:

S.No

Name

Designation

1.

Mr. Suresh Bagrodia

Chief Financial Officer

2.

Mr. Vimal Prakash

Company Secretary & Compliance officer

3.

Ms. Shallu Malhotra

Head-MAG

There was no change in the details of Senior management personnel since the closure of the previous financial year.

X. General Body Meetings

a. Annual General Meetings

The venue, date and time of the Annual General Meetings (AGMs) held during the preceding three years and the Special
Resolutions passed thereat were as under:

Year Venue Date and Time Special Resolutions passed
2023-24 Through Video Monday Re-appointment of Mr. Srinivas Bommidala (DIN: 00061464)
Conferencing (VC) September 16, 2024 as Managing Director of the Company.
at11:00 am. Re-appointment of Mr. Subbarao Gunuputi (DIN: 00064511)
as an Executive Director of the Company.
Re-appointment of Mr. Madhva Bhimacharya Terdal (DIN:
05343139) as an Executive Director of the Company.
Alteration of Articles of Association of the Company.
Approval for raising of funds through issuance of equity
shares and/or other eligible securities through Qualified
Institutions Placement and/or Foreign Currency Convertible
Bond.
2022-23 Through Video Monday Appointment of Mr. Shantanu Ghosh (DIN: 00041435) as an
Conferencing (VC) September 18, 2023 Independent Director.
at 11:00 a.m.

Appointment of Dr. Fareed Ahmed (DIN: 09698462) as an
Independent Director.

Appointment of Ms. Suman Sabnani (DIN:10223343) as an
Independent Director.

Approval for raising of funds through issuance of equity
shares and/or other eligible securities through Qualified
Institutions Placement and/or Foreign Currency Convertible
Bonds.

Approval for shifting of the registered office of the Company
from the State of Maharashtra to the State of Haryana and
consequent alteration in the Memorandum of Association
of the Company.
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Year Venue Date and Time Special Resolutions passed
2021-22 Through Video Tuesday 1. Appointment of Mr. G.M. Rao (DIN: 00574243) as Director of
Conferencing (VC) September 27, 2022 the Company.
at 11:00 a.m. 2. Appointment of Mr. Srinivas Bommidala (DIN: 00061464) as
Managing Director of the Company.
3. Appointment of Mr. Madhva Bhimacharya Terdal
(DIN:05343139) as Executive Director of the Company.
4. Appointment of Mr. Subba Rao Gunuputi (DIN: 00064511)
as Executive Director of the Company.
5. Appointment of Dr. Siva Kameswari Vissa (DIN: 02336249)
as an Independent Director.
6. Appointment of Mr. Suresh Narang (DIN: 08734030) as an
Independent Director.
7. Appointment of Dr. Satyanarayana Beela (DIN: 09462114) as
an Independent Director.
8. Appointment of Mr. Subodh Kumar Goel (DIN: 00492659) as
an Independent Director.
9. Appointment of Dr. Emandi Sankara Rao (DIN: 05184747) as
an Independent Director.
10. Appointment of Mr. LV. Srinivasa Rao (DIN: 01541362) as an

11.

Independent Director.

Approval for raising of funds through issuance of equity
shares and/or other eligible securities through Qualified
Institutions Placement and/or Foreign Currency Convertible
Bond.

Extraordinary General Meetings

No Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) was held during the three years except the year ended March 31, 2022. The venue,
date and time of the EGM and the Special Resolutions passed thereat are as under:

Year Venue Date and Time Special Resolutions passed
2021-22 Nectar Wednesday, 1. Approval to create charge/mortgage over the properties of
Conference Room, August 04, 2021 the Company under section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act,
New Udaan Bhawan, at 11:00 AM. 2013 for an amount of upto X 20,000 crore.
Opp. IGI Airport, 2. Approval under section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013
New Delhi 110037 for borrowing power of upto ¥ 20,000 crore.
3. Approval for making investments in securities for an amount

of upto X 20,000 crore.

Special Resolution passed through postal ballot:

During the year under review, no special resolution was
passed through the exercise of postal ballot. No Special
Resolution is proposed to be conducted through Postal
ballot at the ensuing Annual General meeting of the
Company.

Means of Communication

The Annual Report for the financial year ended March 31,
2025 including Notice of the Annual General Meeting is
being sent to the shareholders only through e-mail as
permitted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). Notice and
Annual report shall also be available on the website of the
Company.

«  The quarterly/annual results of the Company as per the
requirement of SEBI LODR, are generally published in
the ‘Business Line’ and / or ‘'Financial Express’ and ‘Nav
Shakti’ (a regional daily in Marathi language). However,
post shifting of registered office of the company from
the state of Maharashtra to State of Haryana, quarterly
/ annual results of the company as per requirement of
SEBI LODR, were published in ‘Business Line’ and
‘Punjab Kesari'. Quarterly and Annual Financial Results,
along with segment report, if any, and Quarterly
Shareholding Pattern are posted on the Company's
website (https://investor.gmrpui.com/newspaper-advertisement)
and intimated to stock exchanges. The presentations
made to analysts, if any and others including official
news release are also posted on the Company’s website
and intimated to stock exchanges. All periodical and
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other filings including the price sensitive information,
press release etc., are filed electronically through NSE
Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS), BSE
Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (BSE Listing
Centre) and are updated on Company’s website.
Investor complaints are being redressed directly
through the Company and SEBI Complaints Redress
System (SCORES). Further, recently, SEBI vide Circular
dated July 31, 2023 (updated as on December 20, 2023),
introduced the Online Dispute Resolution (ODR) Portal.
Through this ODR portal, the aggrieved party can
initiate the mechanism, after exercising the primary
options to resolve its issue, directly with the Company
and through the SEBI Complaint Redress System
(SCORES) platform. The Company has complied with
the above circulars and the same is available at the
website of the Company:

General Shareholder Information

a.

https://investor.gmrpui.com//smart-odr.

Further, in terms of regulation 36(1)(b) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations, 2015, those shareholders who have yet
registered their e-mail addresses with the Company/
RTA/ DPs, the Company is sending separate letters
containing the web-link along with the exact path and
QR code to access the AGM Notice and Annual Report
of Company.

Other than the above, in order to alert the shareholders
whose shares were lying with the Investor Education
Protection Fund (“IEPF") and for claiming the same, the
Company has also sent reminder letters to such
shareholders.

Annual General Meeting to be held for the financial year 2024-25:

Day : Monday

Date : September 29, 2025

Time : 11.00 A.M. (IST)

Venue Through Video conferencing as set out in the notice convening the meeting

Financial Calendar:

The Financial year is 15t April to 31t March every year and for the FY 2025-26, the financial results are proposed to be

declared as per the following tentative schedule:

Particulars

Schedule

Financial reporting for the quarter ended June 30, 2025

Declared on July 30, 2025

Financial reporting for the quarter / half year ending September 30, 2025

First fortnight of November 2025

Financial reporting for the quarter / nine months ending December 31, 2025

First fortnight of February 2026

Financial reporting for the quarter / year ending March 31, 2026

During the month of May 2026

Annual General Meeting for the year ending March 31, 2026

August / September 2026

Dividend Payment Date:

Your directors have not recommended any dividend for the FY 2024-25.

Listing on Stock Exchanges:

(i) Equity Shares:

The Company'’s equity shares are listed on the following Stock Exchanges with effect from March 23, 2022:

Name of the Stock Exchange Address Stock Code
National Stock Exchange Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, GMRP&UI
of India Limited Bandra-Kurla Complex Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051.
BSE Limited Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001. 543490

The Company paid Annual listing fees for the FY 2025-26 to both Stock Exchanges.

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited



Corporate Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements Notice

(ii) Non-convertible Debentures

The Company had issued 15,026 Secured, rated, redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures (“NCDs") of Rs. 1,00,000
each and the same were listed on the Stock Exchange with effect from June 10, 2024:

Name of the Stock Exchange

Address Stock Code

National Stock Exchange
of India Limited

Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, N.A.
Bandra-Kurla Complex Bandra (E),
Mumbai - 400 051.

Further, subsequent to the end of the Financial year, the said NCDs issued by the Company were fully redeemed on
June 11, 2025 and consequently were delisted from the National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Contact details of Debenture Trustee:

Axis Trustee Services Ltd.

The Ruby, 2nd Floor,

SW, 29 Senapati Bapat Marg,

Dadar West, Mumbai — 400028,

Tel No. +91-22-62300451

Website: www.axistrustee.in

Email: debenturetrustee@axistrustee.in

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA)

KFin Technologies Limited (Formerly KFin Technologies Private Limited)

CIN : L72400MH2017PLC444072

Unit: GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
Selenium Building, Tower-B, Plot No 31 & 32,
Financial District, Nanakramguda,
Serilingampally, Hyderabad, Rangareddy,
Telangana, India - 500 032.

Toll free no. 1800-309-4001

WhatsApp Number: (91) 910 009 4099

Email ID: einward.ris@kfintech.com

Website: www.kfintech.com

Share Transfer System:

In terms of Regulation 40 of SEBI LODR, as amended,
no transfer of shares in physical mode is permitted.
Transfer of shares is permitted only in dematerialised
form. The dematerialised shares are directly transferred
by the depositories to the beneficiaries without
involvement of the Company.

A summary of the de-materialisation request / re-
materialisation requests is placed every quarter, before
the meeting of the Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee.

The Company has a Board-level Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee to oversee and provide

guidance towards redressal of investors’ complaints.
The status on complaints and request for demat/remat
of shares is placed before the Committee. Securities of
listed companies can be transferred only in
dematerialised form effective April 1, 2019. Further, SEBI
vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/
P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022, has mandated
all listed companies to issue securities in dematerialised
form only, while processing the service request of issue
of duplicate securities certificate, claim from Unclaimed
Suspense Account, renewal/exchange of securities
certificate, endorsement, sub-division/splitting of
securities certificate, consolidation of securities
certificates/ folios, transmission and transposition.
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In view of the same and to eliminate all risks associated
with physical shares and avail various benefits of
dematerialisation, Members are advised to
dematerialise the shares held by them in physical form.
Members can contact the Company or RTA, for
assistance in this regard.

Also, share transactions in electronic form can be
effected in a much simpler and faster manner. After a
confirmation of a sale/purchase transaction from the
broker, shareholders should approach the Depository
Participant ('DP’) with a request to debit or credit the
account for the transaction. The DP will immediately
arrange to complete the transaction by updating the
account.

Distribution of equity shareholding as on March 31, 2025

Shareholders should communicate with Company’s RTA
i.e. KFin Technologies Limited quoting their folio
number or Depository ParticipantID ('DP ID") and Client
ID number, for any queries related to their securities.
Shareholders are advised to refer the latest SEBI
guidelines/ circular(s) issued for all the security holders
of listed companies in physical form from time to time
and keep their KYC details updated at all times, to avoid
freezing their folio as prescribed by SEBI. Further, the
Company's RTA has implemented various investor
initiatives, available on their website, as part of their
endeavor to enhance investor servicing. The
Shareholders may avail the facility as per the
requirements.

Distribution by Category

0%

6%

43%

Distribution by category

B BANKS

FPI and NRI

B PROMOTERS

Others

Description No. of Cases* | Total Shares % Equity

1 BANKS 2 2824276 0.40
2 FOREIGN PORTFOLIO - CORP 74 35697955 4.99
3 NON RESIDENT INDIANS 4267 6460673 0.90
4  PROMOTERS 23 361288914 50.54
5 MUTUAL FUNDS 6 2389684 0.33
6  ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT FUND 2 1736507 0.24
7 QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER 1 9434706 132
8 NBFC 4 24195 0.00
9 BODIES CORPORATES 1099 170573546 23.86
10 TEPF 1 603016 0.08
11 RESIDENT INDIVIDUALS 350179 117996866 16.51
12 TRUSTS 7 11296 0.00
13 HUF 4750 5794366 0.81
14 CLEARING MEMBERS 5 194 0.00
TOTAL 360420 714836194 100

*Calculated on PAN Basis (with Grouping)

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
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Distribution by size

Notice

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Sl. | Category (Shares) |No of Share| % To No. of %To [No of Share| % To No. of % To
No. Holders* | Holders Shares Equity Holders* | Holders Shares Equity
1 ]1-500 342048 93.12 21295054 2.98 348138 92.64 21750723 3.60
2 [501-1000 12025 3.27 9522530 1.33 13083 3.48 10624832 1.76
3 (1001 - 2000 6102 1.66 9121492 1.28 6858 1.82 10498155 1.74
4 2001 - 3000 2115 0.58 5424964 0.76 2379 0.63 6127843 1.02
5 13001 - 4000 1001 0.27 3607597 0.50 1071 0.29 3867053 0.64
6 |[4001-5000 992 0.27 4727502 0.66 1111 0.30 5326299 0.88
7 [5001 - 10000 1517 0.41 11460937 1.60 1577 0.42 12268046 2.03
8 [ 10001 and above 1537 0.42 649676118 90.88 1570 0.42 | 533131577 88.33
TOTAL: 367337 100.00 | 714836194 100.00 375787 | 100.00 | 603594528 | 100.00

*Calculated on folio basis.

Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity

The Company’s shares are available for dematerialisation with both the Depositories i.e., National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). The Company has established connectivity with
both the depositories i.e., NSDL and CDSL.

Demat ISIN Number in NSDL and CDSL for equity shares: ISIN: INEOCU601026 (Fully Paid Shares)

Description No. of No. of Shares % Equity
Shareholders*

NSDL 161620 609992524 85.33

CDSL 205717 104843670 14.67

Physical 0 0 0

Total 367337 714836194 100.00

*Calculated on folio basis.

The Company's shares are regularly traded on the BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and were
never suspended from trading during the period under review.

Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity:

GDRs / ADRs:

The Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs in the past and hence as on March 31, 2025, the Company does not
have any outstanding GDRs / ADRs.

Warrant:

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any warrant and there is no warrant outstanding for
conversion which is likely to impact on equity.

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs):

GMR Airports Limited (formerly GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited) (GAL) the erstwhile Holding Company had on
December 10, 2015 issued and allotted US$ 300,000,000 7.5% Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) due in
2075 to the Kuwait Investment Authority (KIA).

In terms of the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement (“Scheme”) approved by the Hon'ble NCLT,
Mumbai, the Demerged Undertaking of GAL comprising of the EPC Business and the Urban Infrastructure Business,
were demerged into the Company. Pursuant to the Scheme and in accordance with the requirements of Section
2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, and pursuant to the part of liability pertaining to the outstanding FCCBs of GIL
attributable to the Demerged Undertaking stood vested to the Company. Accordingly, the FCCBs aggregating US$
275,000,000 (United States Dollar Two Hundred and Seventy-Five Million) stood vested to the Company. The tenure
of FCCBs was 60 years from the date of allotment by the Company and convertible into 11,12,41,666 equity shares of
the Company.
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On July 10, 2024, KIA has transferred the FCCBs to two new investors- Synergy Industrials, Metals and Power Holdings
Ltd. and Gram Ltd. The new bondholders exercised the right to convert the FCCBs into equity shares of the Company.
Accordingly, at the request of the bondholders, the Company allotted 11,12,41,666 equity shares and got the same

listed on the Stock Exchanges.

Commodity Price Risk/ Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging activities:

Commodity Exposure in INR

commodity

Exposure in Quantity
Name towards the particular terms towards the

% of such exposure hedged through
commodity derivatives

particular commodity

Domestic International market Total
market
OoTC OoTC Exchange

The details of foreign currency exposure and hedging are disclosed in note no. 36 to the standalone financial statements.

Plant locations:

In view of the nature of the Company'’s business viz.
providing infrastructure facilities, the Company, through
its subsidiaries / associates / joint venture, operates
from various offices in India and abroad.

The international locations where the Company
operates through its subsidiaries / associates joint
venture are

*  Nepal
. Indonesia

. Dubai.

National locations (States) where the Company operates
by itself and through its subsidiaries, JVs, Associates in
India are

. Delhi STRARRTA \
‘¥, , -
- ——

. Karnataka Kabuif
an 5 g
. Maharashtra ,’s@‘i@’
AisTAN y g ";;“ -y
- Odisha i s
> whenosde /L
+  Tamil Nadu © o LV
o e Norovafs
. Uttar Pradesh e \
g <
. Andhra Pradesh e Sy ot g Za
. Himachal Pradesh e )

*  Gujarat
«  Uttarakhand
*  Punjab and

. Haryana

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

Address for correspondence:

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
(Corporate Secretarial Department)

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

CIN: L45400HR2019PLC125712

Registered office: Unit No. 12, 18th Floor,
DLF Cyber City, Building No. 5, Tower A.
Phase III, Gurugram - 122002, Haryana

T +91 124 6637750

Corporate Office: New Udaan Bhawan,

Opp. Terminal 3 IGI Airport, New Delhi - 110037
T +91 11 4253 2600

F+91 114719 7181

E-mail: GPUIL.CS@gmrgroup.in

Prevention of Insider Trading:

In accordance with the requirements of SEBI (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended, the
Company has instituted a comprehensive Code of
Conduct for prevention of insider trading, in the
Company’s shares and Code of practices and
procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price
sensitive information.

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:

As stipulated by SEBI, a qualified Practicing Company
Secretary carries out the Reconciliation of Share Capital
Audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with NSDL
and CDSL and the total issued and paid-up capital. This
audit is carried out every quarter and the report thereon
is submitted to Stock Exchanges and is placed before
the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee and the
Board of Directors of the Company. The audit, inter alia,
confirms that the total listed and paid-up capital of the
Company is in agreement with the aggregate of the
total number of shares in dematerialised form held with
NSDL and CDSL.
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Equity Shares in the Suspense Account:

As per Schedule V read with Schedule VI, Regulation 34(3) and 39(4) of the SEBI LODR, the details in respect of equity
shares lying in the suspense / escrow account are as under:

Particulars Number of | Number of equity
share holders shares held

Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense / 522 65063

escrow account (maintained with NSDL) lying as on April 1, 2024.

Number of shareholders who approached the Company for transfer of shares 10 4755

from suspense / escrow account (maintained with NSDL) during the year

Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from the suspense / 10 4755

escrow account (maintained with NSDL) during the year

Aggregate Number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense 512 60308

account (maintained with NSDL) lying as on March 31, 2025*

The voting rights on the shares outstanding in the aforesaid suspense account as on March 31, 2025 shall remain frozen till

the rightful owner of such shares claims the shares.

*In terms of the Scheme of Demerger and in accordance with the share exchange ratio, the equity shares of the Company

to be issued against the equity shares of GMR Airports Limited (previously known as GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited

) ("GAL"), held in physical form, were issued by the Company in the demat form and credited to the Unclaimed Suspense

Account of the Company. Similarly, against the shares of GAL that were lying in unclaimed suspense account of GAL, were
also issued shares in the demat form and credited to Unclaimed Suspense Account of the Company.

List of all credit rating obtained:

The Company has obtained following credit rating during the financial year ended March 31, 2025.

S.No. | Name of Credit rating agency

Rating assigned Date of credit rating

Infomerics Valuation and Rating Ltd.

IVR BBB-/ Stable March 03, 2025
(IVR Triple B Minus with Stable Outlook)

Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

In accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act)” read with the Investor
Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting,
Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for
the time being in force) (IEPF Rules), all unclaimed
dividends, if not claimed for a period of seven (7) years
from the date of transfer to Unclaimed Dividend
Account of the Company, are required to be transferred
by the Company to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF).

Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement Sanctioned
by NCLT, Mumbai, the Company had allotted 6,03,016
number of equity shares in favour of IEPF, against the
shares of GMR Airports Limited (Formerly GMR Airports
Infrastructure Limited) that had already been transferred
to IEPF by GAL. The eligible shareholders would be able
to reclaim these shares from the IEPF authorities subject
to the procedure prescribed under the Act.

The members can claim the shares transferred to the
IEPF Authority by submitting an online application in
web Form No. IEPF-5 available on the website
www.iepf.gov.in as per the procedure prescribed under
the Act. No claim shall lie against the Company in

respect of the shares so transferred.

In accordance with IEPF Rules, the Board of Directors
have appointed Mr. Vimal Prakash, Company Secretary
of the Company, as the Nodal Officer for the purpose
of verification of claims and for co-ordination with IEPF
Authority.

Details of the Nodal Officer for the purpose of co-
ordination with the IEPF Authority are available on the
website of the Company at

https://investor.gmrpui.com/contact-us/details-of-nodal-officer-under-iepf

f. Subsidiary Companies

The Company reviews the performance of its subsidiary
companies, inter-alia, by the following means:

i.  The financial statements, including the investments
made by subsidiary companies, are reviewed by the
Audit Committee of the Company, periodically.

ii.  The minutes of the Board / Audit Committee Meetings
of the subsidiary companies are reviewed and noted at
the Board / Audit Committee Meetings respectively of
the Company.

iii. The details of significant transactions and arrangements
entered into by the subsidiary companies are placed
periodically before the Board of the Company.
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Detailed update on various businesses carried out by
the subsidiaries of the Company and joint ventures, is
presented to the Board of directors of the Company,
on a quarterly basis.

Utilization of loans/advances given or investment made
in Subsidiary Companies, exceeding Rs. 100 crores or
10% of asset size of subsidiary, whichever is lower is
reviewed periodically by the Audit Committee of the
Company.

Other Disclosures

a.

Disclosures on materially significant related party
transactions i.e., transactions of the Company of
material nature, with its promoters, Directors or
their relatives, management, its subsidiaries etc.,
that may have potential conflict with the interests
of the Company at large:

All the transactions entered into with the Related Parties
as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
LODR, during the Financial Year 2024-25 were in the
ordinary course of business and at arm’s length basis.
None of the transactions with related parties were in
conflict with the interests of the Company. The
transactions with related parties are mentioned in note
no. 32 of the standalone financial statements.

Details of non-compliance by the Company,
penalties and strictures imposed on the Company
by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory
authority, on any matter related to capital markets
during the last three years:

There has been no instance of non-compliance by the
Company on any matter related to capital markets
during the last three years and hence, no penalty or
stricture was imposed by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI
or any statutory authority.

Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism:

To maintain high level of legal, ethical and moral
standards and to provide a gateway for employees to
voice concern in a responsible and effective manner
about serious malpractice, impropriety, abuse or
wrongdoing within the organisation, the Company has
a Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism in place,
applicable to the Company and its subsidiaries.

This mechanism has been communicated to all
concerned and posted on the Company's website
https://investor.gmrpui.com/policies.

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

The Company has set up an “Ethics Helpline”, with a
toll free number and entrusted the running of the said
helpline to an external agency so as to address issues
relating to protection of confidentiality of information
and identity of the whistle blower.

We affirm that during the year under review no one
has been denied access to the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee under the Whistle Blower Policy.

The Company has complied with the mandatory
requirements of SEBI LODR. Further, the Company
has also put its best endeavor to comply with non-
mandatory requirement(s).

The Company has framed a Material Subsidiary
Policy and the same is placed on the Company’s
website and the web link for the same is
https://investor.gmrpui.com/policies.

The Company has framed Related Party Transaction
Policy, and the same is placed on the Company’s
website and the web link for the same is
https://investor.gmrpui.com/policies.

During the FY ended March 31, 2025, the Company
did not engage in commodity price risk and
commodity hedging activity.

Details of utilization of funds raised through
preferential allotment or qualified institutional
placement as specified under Regulation 32(7A): The
Company has not raised any fund during the year
through preferential allotment or qualified institutional
placement.

Certificate from Company Secretary in practice that
none of the directors on the board of the Company
have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as directors of companies
by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any
such statutory authority is annexed hereinafter.

The Board has accepted all reccommendations of the
Board committees which were mandatorily required
in relevant FY.

Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity &
its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the
statutory auditors and all entities in the network
firm/ network entity of which the statutory auditors
are a part, is ¥ 2.80 Crore (including reimbursement
of expenses).
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.  Disclosure in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (prevention, prohibition, & redressal) Act,
2013:

a.  Number of complaints filed during the financial year : Nil
b. Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year : Nil
c.  Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year : NA

m. Disclosure of loans and advances by the Company and its subsidiaries in the nature of loans to firms/companies in
which directors are interested are as follows:

During FY 2024-25, no loans/advances were given to firms/companies in which directors are interested.

n. Details of material subsidiaries of the Company are as follows:

S. [ Name of material Date of Place of Name of the Date of appointment/
No.| subsidiary incorporation incorporation statutory auditor(s) of the statutory
auditor(s)
1. | GMR Warora August 04, Mumbai, M/s S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP [ September 30, 2024
Energy Limited 2005 Maharashtra
2. | GMR Kamalanga December 28, Bengaluru, M/s Walker Chandiok & Co., LLP | September 30, 2024
Energy Limited 2007 Karnataka
3. [GMR Energy January 29, Bengaluru, M/s DTS & Associates, LLP September 27, 2022
Trading Ltd. 2008 Karnataka
4 |GMR Power and December 18, Mauritius RSM Mauritius March 31, 2015
Urban Infra 2007
(Mauritius) Limited
5 | GMR Infrastructure | February 10, Singapore CA.sg PAC March 31, 2015
Singapore Pte Ltd 2009
6. [ GMR Hyderabad June 11, 2009 Bengaluru, M/s Chaturvedi & Shah LLP August 30, 2024
Vijayawada Karnataka
Expressways
Private Limited*

*Ceased to be material subsidiary of the Company for FY 2025-26

There has been no instance of non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report as prescribed
under SEBI LODR.

Disclosure of certain types of agreements binding listed entities

There are no agreements that require disclosure or reporting in the annual report in terms of Regulation 30A of SEBI (Listing
obligations Disclosure requirements) Regulations 2015.

Adoption of Non-Mandatory Requirements as stipulated in Part E of Schedule II of SEBI LODR:

a. The Company has maintained an office for its Non-Executive Chairman.

b. Reporting of Internal Auditor
The Head, Management Assurance Group, Internal Auditor of the Company is a permanent invitee to the Audit Committee
Meetings and attends the Meetings and reports the findings of internal audit, directly to the Audit Committee.
THE COMPANY HAS FULLY COMPLIED WITH THE APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27
AND CLAUSE B TO CLAUSE I OF SUB-REGULATION 2 OF REGULATION 46 OF THE SEBI LODR.
Certificate on corporate governance:

Pursuant to Schedule V of the SEBI LODR, the Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary on Corporate Governance is
annexed hereinafter.
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Declaration on compliance with Code of Conduct

To,
The Members of GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

Sub: Declaration by the Managing Director under Para D of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

I, Srinivas Bommidala, Managing Director of GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited, to the best of my knowledge and belief, declare
that all the members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with
the Code of Conduct of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025.

Srinivas Bommidala
Place: New Delhi Managing Director
Date: May 19, 2025 (DIN:00061464)

Corporate Governance Compliance Certificate

Corporate Identity Number: L45400HR2019PLC125712
Nominal Capital: ¥ 5,50,00,00,000

The Members of

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

Unit no. 12, 18th Floor, Tower A, Building No. 5,
DLF Cyber City, DLF Phase III,

Gurgaon, Haryana - 122002

We have examined all the relevant records of GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited for the purpose of certifying compliance of the
conditions of the Corporate Governance under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025. We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of certification.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examination was limited to the
procedure and implementation process adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the corporate
governance.

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations and information furnished to us, we certify that
the Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said Regulations
during the period under review.

As regards Discretionary Requirements specified in Part E of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the company has complied with item No. A and No. E.

For V Sreedharan & Associates

(V. Sreedharan)

Partner

FCS: 2347 CP. No:833

Date: August 20, 2025 UDIN: F002347G001044432
Place: Bengaluru Peer Review Certificate Number: 5543/2024
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Managing Director and CFO certification pursuant to Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of
Schedule II of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To
The Board of Directors
GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited

We hereby certify that:

a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025 and
that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

i.  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading;

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with the existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are
fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

c¢) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have evaluated the
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the
auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are
aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies, if any.

d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee (wherever applicable):

i.  significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii. significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements; and

iii. instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or
an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

For GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited For GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
Srinivas Bommidala Suresh Bagrodia
Date: May 19, 2025 Managing Director CFO
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

GMR POWER AND URBAN INFRA LIMITED
Unit no. 12, 18th Floor, Tower A, Building No. 5,
DLF Cyber City, DLF Phase III, Gurgaon,
Haryana - 122002

We have examined the relevant records and disclosures received from the Directors of GMR POWER AND URBAN INFRA LIMITED
having CIN:L45400HR2019PLC125712 and having registered office at Unit no. 12, 18th Floor, Tower A, Building No. 5, DLF Cyber
City, DLF Phase III, Gurgaon, Haryana - 122002 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before us by the Company for
the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the
Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN)
status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company and its officers, we
hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended on March 31,
2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Details of Directors:

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment
in Company
1. Mr. Mallikarjuna Rao Grandhi 00574243 06/01/2022
2. Mr. Srinivas Bommidala 00061464 06/01/2022
3. Mr. Kiran Kumar Grandhi 00061669 06/01/2022
4. Mr. Boda Venkata Nageswara Rao 00051167 06/01/2022
5. Mr. Subbarao Gunuputi 00064511 06/01/2022
6. Mr. Madhva Bhimacharya Terdal 05343139 06/01/2022
7. Dr. Siva Kameswari Vissa 02336249 31/01/2022
8. Mr. Suresh Lilaram Narang 08734030 31/01/2022
9. Dr. Satyanarayana Beela 09462114 31/01/2022
10. Dr. Emandi Sankara Rao 05184747 31/01/2022
11. Mr. Shantanu Ghosh 00041435 04/08/2023
12. Dr. Fareed Ahmed 09698462 04/08/2023
13. Ms. Suman Naresh Sabnani 10223343 04/08/2023

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of
the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs
of the Company.

For V. Sreedharan & Associates

(V Sreedharan)

Partner

FCS 2347; CP No. 833

Place: Bengaluru UDIN: F002347G001044511
Date: August 20, 2025 Peer Review Certificate No. 5543/2024
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Management Discussion & Analysis

Forward-looking Statements

This document contains certain forward-looking statements
based on the currently held beliefs and assumptions of the
management of GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
(“GPUIL"), which are expressed in good faith, and in its opinion
and judgment, are fairly reasonable. For this purpose, forward-
looking statements mean statements, remarks or forecasts that
address activities, events, conditions or developments that the
Company expects or anticipates which may occur in the future.
Because of the inherent risks and uncertainties in the social and
economic scenarios, the actual events, results or performance
can differ materially and substantially from those indicated by
these statements. GPUIL disclaims any obligation to update these
forward-looking statements to reflect future events or
developments.

Introduction

FY 2024-25 was a very important year for GPUIL. The Company
focused on rationalisation and management of corporate debt
and addressing stressed assets while building a platform for
growth for the future. During the year, significant steps were
taken to reduce debt through monetisation of stressed assets.
At the same time, the Company laid groundwork to expand
operations in selected areas under our Energy 2.0 strategy. The
impact of these new revenue streams from new business areas
will become visible in medium term.

In regard to global economic outlook, during the past year
inflation has moderated, which gave central banks across the
world confidence to cut interest rates, which has in turn given
boost to global growth outlook. However, the new US
administration has taken up the target to reduce US trade deficit
by implementing higher tariffs on imports from various countries.
These steps may result in re-organisation of global supply chains,
which may result in short to medium term supply chain
disruptions resulting in higher inflation.

As a consequence, Governments have prioritised economic
security and diversified supply chains, leading to increased
protectionist measures and select trade deals. Climate Change
and Energy Security issues remained high on the global agenda,
with nations competing for dominance in green energy
technologies and critical mineral resources. The increasing
reliance on digital infrastructure has made cybersecurity a critical
geopolitical concern, with potential for state-sponsored attacks
and disruptions.

In summary, the past year witnessed a turbulent geopolitical
landscape marked by ongoing conflicts and escalating tensions,
alongside a significant realignment of global power dynamics
driven by super-power competition, economic nationalism, and
rapid technological advancements. This complex environment
poses both challenges and opportunities for global cooperation
and stability in the coming years.

Overall, the geo-political situation remains uncertain, as various
flashpoints are present which may flare up intermittently. Macro-

economic outlook also remains uncertain as global repercussions
of US tariff policy are still unfolding. Amid these uncertainties,
India has been performing relatively well with stable inflation,
good GDP growth numbers and increasing financial discipline.
In fact, during the year India surpassed Japan to become the 4"
largest economy in the world.

Economic overview
Global economic scenario

The Year 2023 was a challenging year for global growth. Growth
was impacted by high inflation, high interest rates across most
countries and regional conflicts. Still, there were some bright
pockets of growth, due to which global growth remained resilient
and grew by ~3.3% during 2023.
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As we entered 2024, things looked up with inflation levels
normalising across major economies. This gave central banks the
confidence to cut interest rates to support growth. As a result,
global economy grew at ~3.3% during the year, in spite of various
geo-political and trade related tensions. Average inflation levels
came down to 5.8% from 6.8% in 2023.

Repo rates across major economies
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US economy in 2024, was supported by exceptional domestic
demand and initial rate cuts by Federal bank. USA recorded a
GDP growth of 2.8% in 2024, up from 2.5% in 2023. However, as
we enter 2025, consumer spending seems to be on a decline
and Federal bank has put a pause on rate cuts. The new US tariff
policy is expected to adversely impact inflation levels. As a result,
growth outlook for 2025 remains uncertain. IMF projects US
growth rate to fall to ~1.8% during 2025.
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In the Euro area, domestic demand exhibited tepid growth as
the economies digested the impact of energy prices due to Russia
— Ukraine conflict and ECB supported growth by slashing interest
rates from a high of 4.5% in May 2024 to 2.4% in May 2025. As a
result, Euro area GDP grew at 0.9% in 2024 as compared to 0.4%
in 2023. IMF projects GDP growth rate for 2025 at ~0.8%.

China continues to face weakness in real estate sector and
depressed domestic demand resulting from a weakened
consumer confidence. In addition, rising trade tensions with US
have also adversely affected Chinese economy. In 2024, China’s
GDP grew by 5%, down from 5.2% in 2023. As per IMF forecast,
Chinese economy growth rate expected to further slow down to
4.0% in 2025.

Way forward

Since early 2025, the economic landscape has changed
dramatically as governments around the world reoriented policy
priorities. A series of new tariff measures by the United States
and countermeasures by its trading partners have been
announced and implemented, potentially being a major negative
shock to growth. The unpredictability with which these measures
have been unfolding also has a negative impact on economic
activity and the outlook. The swift escalation of trade tensions
and extremely high levels of policy uncertainty are expected to
have a significant impact on global economic activity.

The above situation is aggravated by the various geo-political
tensions. According to the latest IMF World Economic Outlook,
the global growth is estimated at 3.3% for 2024 and is expected
to significantly decelerate to 2.8% in 2025. On the positive side,
headline inflation is expected to decrease further. Global average
inflation decreased from 6.8% in 2023 to 5.8% in 2024 and is
expected to further reduce to 4.5% by end of 2025.

Recent history has taught us that despite various challenges,
global economy tends to perform better than expected. This is
mainly because more countries are responding to these
challenges with agility and pragmatism. We live in an increasingly
multi-polar world characterised by economic nationalism, where
countries will change military and economic alliances, when the
situation calls for such a change. Even amid many geopolitical
fractures, new alliances and partnerships are emerging. Trading
partners may change, but global trade should continue to grow.
Even regional tensions and temporary flare-ups have failed to
make a major dent in global growth forecast.

Going forward, we expect energy prices to remain low, as OPEC
nations and US ramp up production. Low energy prices along
with further decreasing inflation should provide some room for
Central banks to reduce interest rate further. This should act as a
major impetus for global growth.

Indian economic scenario

While global economic and geo-political uncertainties have
threatened to de-rail global growth, India has remained a positive
factor contributing to global growth outlook.

India continues to be the fastest growing major economy in the
world. During the year, India overtook Japan to become the fourth
largest economy in the world. With its economic growth
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trajectory, India is expected to become third largest economy by
2030. According to RBI, India’s GDP growth in 2024-25 was
recorded at 6.5% and a similar level of growth is expected for
2025-26, maintaining its position as a major driver of global GDP
growth. Such growth has been made possible by strong domestic
demand, substantial infrastructure development initiatives, rural
consumption coming back and effective government policy

measures.
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At the start of FY 2025-26, CPI inflation eased to a 6-year low in
April 2025 at 3.16% and WPI reached a 13-month low at 0.85%
in April 2025 as prices of crude oil fell and food inflation tapered
off. This gave RBI confidence to cut repo rate to accelerate GDP
growth. RBI has reduced repo rates from 6.5% to 5.5% during
the past 12 months. In addition, to shore-up liquidity position,
RBI has committed to reduce CRR (cash reserve ratio) by 100
basis points bringing it down to 3% in four tranches starting
September 2025. By cutting both the repo and CRR in tandem,
the central bank has sent a strong signal that it is ready to inject
liquidity and revive demand aggressively, while keeping a close
eye on inflation numbers.

While the economic growth has remained stable, Indian rupee
has been lately experiencing some pressure due to US tariff risks
and wild swings in crude oil prices. Indian Rupee depreciated by
~2.4% against USD during FY 2024-25 after falling by 1.5% in FY
2023-24.Indian currency depreciated significantly against EURO
by ~3.2% in FY 2024-25 vs ~ 1.3% in FY 2023-24. Subsequently,
Rupee has depreciated further vis-a-vis Euro by ~8.5% reaching
a conversion rate of 1 EURO = ~100. However, risk of further
depreciation is mitigated to some extent due to India’s rising
forex reserves. By June 2025, India’s forex reserves crossed USD
700 Bn, up from ~USD 620Bn in April 2024. This does give RBI
some manoeuvring space to protect against any drastic
depreciation in Rupee.

With stable GDP growth driven by increased economic activity,
India’s GST collections have continued to rise. GST collection in
FY 2024-25 stood at 22 Tn, up 9.4% year on year. April 2025 saw
the highest-ever GST collection at 2.36 Tn. Other economic
indicators have also performed well. India’s index of industrial
production continues to exhibit good month on month growth
rates. Both India services and manufacturing PMI have also been
inching upwards during the year. Such indicators give confidence
that economic activity in India will continue to expand.

Indian government has also made a visible effort to rein in fiscal
deficit, which had significantly increased during the pandemic,
as government tried to support the impacted population and
economy through social and other infrastructure spending.
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On the geo-political front, situation heated up as India responded
to a terrorist attack in Jammu and Kashmir in April 2025, leading
to a 4-day confrontation with Pakistan in May 2025. The conflict
escalated quickly, but eventually a cease-fire was reached. While
the conflict cemented India’s military prowess and no-tolerance
policy towards terrorism, it has resulted in closure of Pakistan
airspace for Indian commercial aircrafts.

Amid other geo-political conflicts and increasing political
fragmentation, India has followed its philosophy of ‘Vasudhaiva
Kutumbakam’ (The world is one family) to navigate through
geopolitical pressures and obligations with sufficient success
while maintaining strategic autonomy.

Way forward

In the Union Budget for 2025-26, the Indian government has
lowered its fiscal deficit target to 4.4% of GDP for FY 2026. This
reduction is supported by increasing GST collections, significant
surplus transfer from the central bank to government as dividends
and robust economic performance. A reduced fiscal deficit is
anticipated to boost foreign investor confidence and enhance
India’s chances for a sovereign rating upgrade.

India has emerged as the fourth largest major economy in world.
This has been enabled by accelerated pace of economic reforms
over the last few years in the domains of fiscal, digital and physical
infrastructure. Initiatives like Unified Payments Interface (UPI),
creation of National Investment and Infrastructure fund (NIIF),
National Single Window System (NSWS), MSME trade enablement
and marketing, Production Linked Incentive (PLI) and many more
are improving ease and cost of doing business, and positioning
India for higher and sustainable growth. In addition, India’s vibrant
start-up ecosystem with more than 161,000 DPIIT recognised
start-ups and 100+ unicorns are spearheading innovation and
fostering opportunities across sectors and becoming catalysts
for India’s economic growth.

On the global front, India is improving its competitiveness by
establishing bilateral ties with partnering nations. In this direction,
India and the UK finalised a landmark free trade agreement (FTA)
which will build strategic partnership between both nations and
catalyse trade and investments in both economies. Currently
bilateral trade between both the nations is about USD 60 Bn,
which is projected to double by 2030. India’s trade deal with
USA is also expected during FY 2026. Additionally, India is also in
conversation with major partners like EU, and ASEAN countries
and exploring new agreements with Africa, Latin America, and
Middle East as well, aimed at strengthening bilateral and regional
trade partnerships.

Notice

Infrastructure Initiatives

Indian Government to achieve its ambition of Viksit Bharat (India
as a developed nation) by 2047, has taken various initiatives. The
government has particularly stepped-up infrastructure spending
outlay. In FY 2025-26, budget allocation towards infrastructure
sector was at X 11.21 lakh crore, which is approximately 3.1% of
GDP, building on the previous year's X 10.2 lakh crore.

Capital expenditure by Government as % of GDP
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To increase private sector participation in infrastructure projects,
Ministries have been guided to develop a three-year pipeline of
projects to be implemented in PPP mode. State Governments
are also being encouraged to follow the same path. Additionally,
for capital expenditure and to incentivise infrastructure reforms,
an outlay of ¥ 1.5 lakh crore is allocated for states in the form of
50-year interest free loans. This capital outlay aims to advance
logistic ecosystems, focus on industrial development and
encourage public private partnership models in the country.

Recognising the role of consumption in economic growth, during
the year government made radical changes to the direct tax
regime. The government significantly lowered tax rates in the
new tax regime translating to a net zero tax for income up to
% 12 lakhs annually. This major reduction will increase
discretionary spending of the growing Indian middle class income
group and thus leading to greater urban consumption.

Government also recognises the importance of energy security
to attain the objective of sustainable development. In this
direction, budget FY 2025-26 increased its thrust on adding more
capacity from green, nuclear and traditional sources. Thus, budget
allocation for the Ministry of New and Renewable Energy (MNRE)
was increased from ¥ 19,100 crore during previous year to
% 26,549 crore in FY 2025-26. Additionally, for the Ministry of
Power, ¥ 21,847 crore was allocated in this year's budget versus
% 20,502 crore allocated during previous year.

In addition, Government has set a target of 100 GW nuclear
energy capacity from the current ~8 GW by 2047. Accordingly,
an allocation of X 20,000 crore has been made towards nuclear
energy mission focusing on R&D of Small Modular Reactors
(SMRs) with aim to operationalise at least five SMRs by 2033.
Additionally, to encourage private sector participation in nuclear
energy, government is proposing amendments in the Atomic
Energy Act and Civil Liability of Nuclear Damage Act.

Advancing the momentum towards strengthening of power
distribution infrastructure and reducing aggregate technical and
commercial losses, Government allotted X 16,021 crore in budget
towards Revamped Distribution Sector Scheme (RDSS). The
scheme also aims to improve operational efficiency and financial
stability of State DISCOMS. Moreover, depending on
89
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implementation of specific reforms by State Governments, an
additional borrowing of 0.5% of the State Gross Domestic Product
(GSDP) can be availed.

Impact on sectors in which GPUIL operates

Introduction of reforms and various initiatives by the government
have bolstered the infrastructure sector. Power sector is
essentially the fuel on which the Indian economy runs. As the
economy grows, so does the power requirement. Hence, major
impetus has been given for the power sector growth. Further for
the past almost 10 years, government has laid great focus on
transition to clean energy to enable the nation to fulfil its
decarbonisation goals and achieve energy security.

As a result, power sector has witnessed continuous expansion,
with total installed capacity reaching 476 GW by June 2025
compared to 305 GW in 2015-16.

Installed power capacity over the years (GW)

Total 476 GW

Total 305 GW

2015-16

2024-25

mFossil  mNon Fossil

Majority of this power capacity growth has been driven by
renewables, where capacity has increased by ~72% since FY 2015-
16 and now contributes to ~49% of India’s total power capacity.
This transition to clean energy is expected to happen at a faster
pace, as India aims to reach 500 GW of installed capacity by 2030
in line with its commitments announced in COP26.

Total Installed power capacity mix (476 GW)

Bio Power, 2%

Hydro power, 11%
Wind power, 11% ‘
Nuclelar power, 2%
Solar power, 23“

Source: Ministry of Power

Thermal Power, 51%

As of June'25

This transition has been enabled by favourable policy support
by the government and increased private sector participation.

While India’s power generation capacity has been increasing
significantly, government also recognised a need to improve
power distribution network infrastructure. This will result in
increased billing efficiency and reduce Aggregate Technical &
Commercial (AT&C) losses, which in turn should result in better
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financial health of State Power Distribution Companies
(DISCOMS). To further this objective, the government has earlier
launched the Revamped Distribution Sector Scheme (RDSS)
setting an ambitious target to install 250 million smart consumer
meters along for all distribution transformers and feeders in India.
The projects are being executed in Public Private Partnership in
TOTEX (CAPEX+ OPEX) mode. Through bidding process DISCOMs
will be selecting advanced metering infrastructure service
providers (AMISPs) which will be in charge for handling end to
end metering responsibility, covering costs through equity and
debt financing under TOTEX model with concession period of 10
years. Till July 2025, approximately X 1.30 lakh crore have been
sanctioned for smart meters and a physical progress of ~12%
has been achieved across India. Contracts of ~120mn meters
have already been awarded.

Status of consumer metering in India as of July 2025

(Million)
I u
Target Sanctioned Awarderd

Another step taken by India towards energy security and
reduction in carbon emissions was the launch of scheme National
Green Hydrogen Mission (NGHM) in January 2023 with an
allocation of ¥ 600 crore till 2030, with a goal to become global
leader in production and export of green hydrogen. By 2030,
India expects production capacity to reach to SMMT per annum.

To supplement this effort towards clean energy and increase self-
reliance in renewable energy supply chain, the National
Manufacturing mission will support manufacturing related to
clean-tech. The policy intends to increase domestic value addition
and create the ecosystem for EV batteries, grid scale batteries,
Solar PV cells, wind turbines, voltage transmission equipment.
Custom duties have also been lowered on solar modules and
cells.

Demonstrating its commitment towards accelerating EV adoption
in the country, government announced complete exemption of
duties on 25 critical minerals that are not available domestically.
And to spur lithium-ion battery manufacturing, 35 capital goods
are also included in the exempted list. These steps are expected
to reduce costs, increase competitiveness and advance India’s
battery manufacturing capabilities.

Additionally, Ministry of Heavy Industry (MHI) launched the FAME
II scheme that included financial support for development of
public charging Infrastructure. Ministry of Power has also taken
up several initiatives and developed guidelines to support the
acceleration of public charging infrastructure development in the
country. Currently, India has over 12,000 operational EV charging
stations.
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While power sector acts as the fuel for economic growth of India,
government also recognises the role of transport infrastructure
in growth of the economy. With an aim to reduce logistics costs
and time and thus increase economic productivity, Government
increased its allocation to Ministry of Road Transport and
Highways (MoRTH). As an outcome of government’s continuous
focus on transport infrastructure, National Highway network in
India till December 2024 increased by 60% to 146,195 Km from
2014.

National Highway network in India till Dec 2024
(KM)

2014 2024

B <2 Lane u 2 lane/ 2 lane with paved shoulder
® 4 lane and above = High speed corridors

Further, to ensure seamless movement of traffic and increase
efficiency in toll operations, the National Electronic Toll Collection
(NETC) program was implemented. By December 2024, total 10.3
crore FASTags were issued enabling a 98.5% penetration in total
fee collection.

Key Developments at GPUIL

Over the past few years, we have consolidated our position,
focused on rationalisation and management of corporate debt
and addressing stressed assets while building a platform for
growth for the future. We have taken many significant steps in
implementing our stated strategy to strengthen the balance sheet
through improved cash flows driven by increased profitability,
debt reduction through asset monetisation, value unlocking and
prudent working capital management while creating avenues for
growth.

During the year, your Company has taken up various initiatives
in this direction. Some of these initiatives are mentioned below:

1. Conversion of FCCBs with interest waiver

Pursuant to the Demerger of GMR Airports Limited's
(formerly GMR Airports Infrastructure Limited) (“GAL") non-
Airport business into the Company (GPUIL), during January
2022, the FCCBs (Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds)
liability of GAL was split between GAL and GPUIL.
Accordingly, USD 275 Mn 7.5% subordinated FCCBs due
2075 were issued to Kuwait Investment Authority (“KIA") by
GPUIL. KIA, in July 2024 transferred the FCCBs to two new
parties, i.e., Synergy Industrials Metals and Power Holdings
Limited (“Synergy”) (USD 154 Mn) and to GRAM Limited
("GRAM") (USD 121 Mn) who subsequently exercised their
option of converting their respective FCCB holdings into
equity shares in GPUIL.

The GPUIL FCCBs were converted into 111,241,666 number

of equity shares of ¥ 5/- each, proportionately to both the
FCCB holders. As part of the overall commercials, the
outstanding interest on the FCCB was waived off. Post the
above conversion, Synergy held 8.71% of the equity capital
of the Company and GRAM held 6.85% of the equity capital
of the Company.

Settlement of Hyderabad-Vijayawada toll project
disputes

GMR Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited
("GHVEPL") had executed a Concession Agreement in
October 2009 to construct, operate and maintain a two-
lane 181.50 km stretch between Hyderabad and Vijayawada
on the NH-65. In view of significant loss of revenue on
account of bifurcation of the stretch between two states i.e.
Telangana and Andhra Pradesh post the date of
commissioning of the project, GHVEPL had raised claims in
terms of the agreement with National Highways Authority
of India ("NHAI"), seeking compensation against such losses,
arising due to the provisions of change in law. Both parties
decided to amicably settle all the disputes without further
intervention of court / tribunal. In this regard, a settlement
was agreed between GHVEPL and NHAI as per which NHAI
agreed to pay an amount of X 1,387.21 crore to GHVEPL as
claim and project was handed back to NHAI on July 1, 2024.

GREL One time settlement

GMR Rajahmundry Energy Limited (“GREL"), an associate of
GPUIL in which GMR Generation Assets Limited ("GGAL"), a
subsidiary of GPUIL held about 45% of the equity share
capital and balance 55% was held by the GREL lenders, had
set up a 768 MW (2x384 MW) gas based Combined Cycle
Power Plant (CCPP) project in Andhra Pradesh.

Despite several attempts of finding alternatives and various
representations at appropriate forums to revive the plant,
due to non-availability of affordable natural gas, GREL could
not commence regular operations and accordingly as a force
majeure provision, the Company approached for a One-Time
Settlement (OTS) proposal with its lenders. The total amount
outstanding by GREL to its lenders including sustainable and
unsustainable debt was ¥ 837.70 crore of term loan, ¥ 261.40
crore of Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) and ¥ 940.60
crore of Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (“CRPS").
The consortium of lenders of GREL approved to accept the
One-time settlement (“OTS") amount of ¥ 657.00 crore
towards full and final settlement of entire exposure including
Term Loan, NCDs, CRPS, Interest Payable and Equity Shares
and for closure of Corporate Guarantees, and your Company
accepted the proposal. Post the payment of entire amount
as per agreed schedule, the OTS now stands completed.

Monetisation of select energy assets

In furtherance to the OTS reached with lenders of GREL,
GPUIL decided to divest the Company’s non-operating and
other non-strategic assets.

In this regard, GMR Energy Limited (“GEL"), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and GMR Generation Assets
Limited (“GGAL") a subsidiary of the Company, signed a
framework agreement with Synergy Investments Holding
Limited (“Synergy”) for the divestment of their respective
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stakes in: (@) GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private Limited
(“Bajoli Holi"), (b) GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
("Vemagiri”) and (c) GMR Rajahmundry Energy Limited
("GREL").

According to the Framework Agreement, (a) GEL was to
transfer 79.86% of the equity shares of Bajoli Holi and the
relevant GMR Group entities were to transfer 100% of the
compulsorily convertible debentures issued by Bajoli Holi,
to Synergy; (b) GEL was to transfer 51% of the equity shares
of Vemagiri to Synergy; and (c) GGAL was to transfer 51% of
the equity shares of GREL to Synergy, upon completion of
the OTS.

The consolidated consideration for the transfer of securities
pursuant to the transactions contemplated (for all the above
3 entities) under the Framework Agreement was ¥ 653.00
crore. While significant parts of the divestments have been
completed, a balance of 9.86% equity of Bajoli Holi is yet to
be transferred and the same is expected to be concluded
by September 2025. One of the objective for this transaction
as envisaged was to enable the Company to meet the
proposed OTS with the lenders of GREL, deleverage the
balance sheet by ~ ¥ 4,400 crore and spin off the non-
operational gas plants and other selected assets of GPUIL,
which will further improve the bottom line of the Company.

5. Foray into the Smart Meter Sector

Advancing our Energy 2.0 strategy, GMR won a smart
metering project in Uttar Pradesh through competitive
bidding and was chosen as the Advanced Metering
Infrastructure Service Provider (AMISP) for the project to
install 75.69 lakh smart meters across three districts of Uttar
Pradesh. The project entails the installation, integration and
maintenance of around 75.69 lakh smart meters. In order to
implement the whole project, GMR Smart Electricity
Distribution Private Limited (“GSEDPL"), a subsidiary of the
Company, incorporated three Special Purpose Vehicles
(SPVs). Additionally, GSEDPL entered into an arrangement
with Bosch Global Software Technologies (“BGSW"), the
technology partner for the Project. As a part of the
arrangement, BGSW will be investing 10% equity capital in
each of the three project SPVs, and GSEDPL will hold the
balance 90% of the equity capital of these SPVs.

The project is under implementation at a pegged cost of
T 3,467 crore, to be funded through a mix of debt, equity
and internal accrual. Indian Renewable Energy Development
Agency Limited (“IREDA") has sanctioned a total project loan
of ¥ 2,128 crore (to be disbursed in tranches) to the three
project SPVs.

Energy Sector Outlook and Future Plan

Indian Economy - Power Sector Scenario

India continues its march toward becoming the world’s third-
largest economy, backed by a resilient growth trajectory and
structural reforms. Despite this progress, per capita electricity
consumption in India remains modest at approximately 1,380
kWh in FY 2024-25, still well below the global average and
indicating a significant headroom for growth.

The country’s expanding economic base, rapid urbanisation,
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manufacturing push under PLI schemes, rising demand from
electric mobility, railway electrification, irrigation, Al-driven data
centres, and digital infrastructure are collectively driving a
structural surge in electricity demand. During FY 2024-25, power
demand rose by approximately 4.2% to reach 1,810 Bn Units (BU),
maintaining the strong momentum built in the previous fiscal.

Higher demand has also resulted in merchant prices shooting
up which resulted in improved profitability and improved PLF
for power generating companies. Consequently, Distribution
Companies (DISCOMs), in a bid to shield themselves from
merchant price volatility, are anticipated to solicit bids for long-
term contracts from conventional sources such as thermal power.
Additionally, to ensure reliable power supply amidst the growing
penetration of intermittent renewables, DISCOMs will continue
to rely on thermal power. This strategy involves entering into
new long-term contracts and drawing additional power from
existing capacities, ultimately contributing to improved average
Plant Load Factors (PLFs) in the sector in short period and
expansion and addition of generation capacity in the long term.

As of March 31, 2025, India’s total installed power generation
capacity stood at approximately 467 GW, reflecting a continuing
expansion to meet the nation’s growing energy needs.
Conventional sources, primarily coal-based thermal power,
accounted for around 250 GW (54% of total capacity), while
renewable energy sources reached a cumulative capacity of
approximately 170 GW (36%). The remaining ~47 GW was
contributed by nuclear and large hydro installations.

Conventional Power: Resurgence of Thermal

« Theincrease in power demand and limited storage capacity
for renewables resulted in a tight power supply situation,
especially during peak summer months. Consequently,
merchant market prices surged, improving realisations and
profitability for generators.

« Higher demand and pricing triggered a resurgence in
thermal PLFs, prompting DISCOMs to seek fresh long-term
Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs) from existing and new
thermal capacities.

«  Given the intermittency of renewables, thermal generation
continues to serve as the backbone of grid reliability,
particularly during evening peak hours and seasonal demand
spikes.

«  AsperCentral Electricity Authority of India (“CEA”") estimates,
India would require an additional 80 GW of coal-based
capacity by 2032, reinforcing the transitional role of coal in
supporting a reliable energy ecosystem.

Coal Availability and Pricing Trends

«  Coal remained the dominant fuel, accounting for over 72%
of power generation in FY 2024-25.

«  Domestic coal production crossed 1,050 million tonnes, a
5% increase YoY, driven by higher output from Coal India
Limited and improved logjistics.

« Coal imports moderated, aided by improved domestic
supply and a cooling of global coal and LNG prices, which
had spiked post-Ukraine crisis. This led to better coal stock
positions at thermal plants and helped stabilise PLFs.
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«  Cost-effective fuel availability supported short-term and
merchant market operations, ensuring affordability while
maintaining grid stability.

Renewables: Strong Momentum, Global Leadership

« India retained its position as a global clean energy leader,
ranking 4" in total RE capacity, 4" in wind, and 5" in solar,
according to the International Energy Agency (“IEA").

e In FY 2024-25, India added a record 26 GW of renewable
capacity, led by solar (over 20 GW), driven by strong policy
tailwinds, investor appetite, and improving storage
economics.

«  The cumulative renewable energy capacity rose to 170 GW,
advancing India’s target of 500 GW of non-fossil fuel capacity
by 2030 under the Panchamrit commitments.

«  Theyearalso witnessed momentum in green hydrogen, with
pilot projects announced and progress towards the 2030
target of 5 million tonnes of production supported by 125
GW of RE.

India’s power sector is at an inflection point balancing the
growth imperative with the sustainability agenda. As the
country moves toward becoming a global economic
powerhouse, the energy ecosystem must evolve to:

« Integrate firm RE-backed capacity (including RTC, hybrid,
and BESS solutions)

«  Modernise grid infrastructure and interregional transmission

« Continue reforming DISCOMs and deepening energy
markets (DAM, RTM, GDAM)

»  Foster climate resilience and energy security in parallel

In summary, India’s power sector is entering a phase of
accelerated transformation, where conventional and
renewable sources will co-exist to power economic
aspirations. The emphasis will remain on achieving a low-
carbon trajectory, while ensuring 24x7 affordable, reliable,
and sustainable electricity for all.

Progress on Energy 2.0 Initiative

India’s power and energy sector is undergoing a paradigm shift,
with profit pools transitioning from conventional generation to
renewables, distributed energy, digitalisation, and consumer-
centric models. The sector is also witnessing deeper integration
with adjacent domains such as e-mobility, smart metering, energy
trading, and technology-enabled services.

GMR Energy remains aligned with this evolving landscape. While
continuing to enhance operational performance of the existing
assets and pursuing organic growth, GMR Energy has articulated
a clear roadmap to expand its presence in next-generation energy
opportunities under the Energy 2.0 vision.

The smart metering foray gained strong momentum during the
year. GMR Energy continued implementation of its first large-
scale AMISP project for UP DISCOMs, covering 7.56 million smart
meters. Post receiving the order, it made substantial progress on
the ground and started smart meter installation backed up with
technology infrastructure. It is actively pursuing adjacent
opportunities in analytics, customer engagement platforms, and
energy efficiency services to maximise lifecycle value from the

Notice

smart metering vertical. It also continues to look for more AMISP
opportunities so as to attain economies of scale.

In EV charging infrastructure, it is leveraging synergies with GMR
Group's Airport and urban infrastructure assets, positioning itself
to serve high-footfall, strategic locations. This vertical will play a
key role in enabling green mobility while opening consumer-
facing monetisation models.

Additionally, the Energy 2.0 Strategy includes a focus on exploring
avenues for expanding the Company’s clean energy portfolio with
a focus on C&I and hybrid (solar + wind) power supply. This
strategy underscores the Company's shift towards sustainable
energy solutions, aiming to reduce carbon footprints and
promote environmental stewardship. It also intends to explore
opportunity to use land bank at the existing projects for this
purpose.

Its engagement in power trading is expected to deepen as India
transitions to more dynamic and real-time electricity market. It
is exploring participation in DAM, RTM, GDAM, and green power
corridors with innovative solutions that balance flexibility, cost-
efficiency, and compliance. All of the above initiatives are
anchored on a strong technology backbone.

The world is entering a new energy era, and India is at the
forefront of this transformation—committed to a clean,
affordable, and resilient power future. GMR Energy, a key arm of
GPULL, is fully aligned with this transition. Its ambition is to build
aresilient Energy 2.0 platform, blending sustainability, innovation
and consumer engagement, thus positioning it as a future-ready
energy player.

Transportation and Urban Infrastructure Sector Outlook and
Future Plan

Transportation
Railways

The Group made a big leap into Railway EPC Projects in 2015,
when the Dedicated Freight Corridor Corporation of India Limited
("DFCCIL") awarded two packages on the Eastern Dedicated
Freight Corridor (“EDFC") in the State of Uttar Pradesh. The
projects for a total length of about 422 Km between New Bhaupur
and New Deen Dayal Upadhyaya junction have been
commissioned. As on date about 200+ Gross Million Tonnes
("GMT") moved on this EDFC Track.

Subsequently in 2016, two more DFCCIL packages (Contract
Package - 301 & 302) on the EDFC were awarded in States of
Punjab-Haryana-Uttar Pradesh (Ludhiana —Khurja — Dadri). The
projects are already commissioned.

Going forward, the Company will be exploring new projects under
DFCCIL/IR in PPP /EPC mode that are expected to come up during
FY 2025-26 and beyond. The Company has knowledge and
experience in undertaking such big Railway Projects. In addition,
Company has heavy plant and machinery and fleet of track
machines including fully mechanised NTC (New Track
Construction) machines, that can be effectively utilised in future
Railway projects as well.

Apart from the construction of railway tracks, Government has
opened private participation opportunities in Operation &
Maintenance (O&M) of Railway Tracks. Your Company has
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requisite track machines and skilled manpower to undertake such
O&M opportunities, if they align with the overall Group Strategy.

Highways

For the fiscal year 2024-25, the National Highways Authority of
India (“"NHAI") has been actively engaged in several significant
projects and outlook is also aimed at such initiatives expanding
and enhancing the national highways infrastructure.

Ambitious Construction Targets

Working relentlessly towards development of the National
Highway infrastructure in the country, NHAIL during the FY 2024-
25, constructed 5,614 km of National Highways against the target
of 5,150 km for the year.

Currently in FY 2025-26, it targets 10,000 KMs of Highway
Construction, continuing its efforts to upgrade India’s road
infrastructure and attract private investment.

The Capital Expenditure by NHAT in FY 2024-25 for development
of National Highway Infrastructure reached an all-time high of
over X 2.50 Tn (provisional) against a target expenditure of
3 2.40 Tn. This highest ever capital expenditure in a financial year
by NHAI includes both Government budgetary support and
NHAI's own resources.

Monetisation and Private Participation:

During FY 2024-25, NHAI leveraged three modes for monetisation
that included Toll Operate Transfer ("TOT"), Infrastructure
Investment Trust (InvIT) and Toll Securitisation. During the
financial year, NHAI monetised assets worth ¥ 28,724 crore. This
includes NHAI's highest ever single round InvIT receipt worth
3 17,738 crore.

Digital Highway Development

NHAI plans to develop 10,000 km of optic fibre cable
infrastructure across India, facilitating internet connectivity in
remote areas and supporting the deployment of advanced
telecom technologies.

The Delhi-Mumbai Expressway (1,367 km) and Hyderabad-
Bangalore corridor (512 km) have been identified as pilot routes
for digital highway development. Presently, this initiative is
pushed back as the Authority has failed to procure cables from
the market.

Project Awards and Construction

The Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs has approved the
development of 8 important National High Speed Corridor
projects with a length of 936 km at a cost of ¥ 50,655 crore across
the country.

Conclusion

NHAI's performance in FY 2024-25 highlights significant
achievements in highway construction and project awards,
supported by increased budget allocations and financial
prudence. Looking ahead to FY 2025-26, NHAI aims to further
increase its construction activities, reduce its debt burden, and
develop a comprehensive digital highway network. The continued
focus on financial management and strategic project execution
will be crucial for achieving these goals.
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Your Company'’s current highways portfolio consists of two BOT
(Annuity) and one BOT (Toll) projects with a total operating length
of 888 lane kilometres. These include Ambala-Chandigarh
Highway project, Chennai Outer Ring Road and Adloor — Gundla
- Pochanpalli highway.

Urban Infrastructure

GPUIL's subsidiary, GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited ("GKSIR") is
developing the Special Investment Region (“SIR") in phases. GKSIR
has already sold about 504 acres in Phase 1 to M/s. Tata
Electronics Private Limited (“TEPL"). TEPL has established a
greenfield mobile phone component manufacturing facility with
a projected investment of ¥ 4,500 crore and with employment
potential of 18,000 persons and commercial production has
already started.

In Phase 2, GKSIR has leased ~101 acres of land to TEL
Components Private Limited during the current financial year or
their greenfield Mobile phone assembly plant. During the FY
2024-25, the Group has sold around 407 acres including around
286 acres to Tamil Nadu State Government Agency (SIPCOT).

GKSIR is planning to develop ~75 acres of land in Phase 3 by
creating infrastructure facilities suitable for prospective clients
for setting up their industrial units

Integrating ESG into the business.

GPUIL continues to demonstrate its commitment to sustainability
and responsible business practices through a structured, policy-
driven approach that fully integrates Environmental, Social, and
Governance (ESG) considerations across its operations. The
Company operates under robust systems and frameworks focused
on enhancing its Environment, Health and Safety performance
across all facilities. Its major assets are certified under globally
recognised standards including ISO 14001 for Environmental
Management, ISO 45001 for Occupational Health and Safety, and
ISO 50001 for Energy Management. These certifications ensure
systematic and responsible environmental and safety
performance. The Company continues to report publicly its
sustainability and ESG performance through its annual
Sustainability Report and the SEBI mandated Business
Responsibility and Sustainability Report (BRSR), demonstrating
transparency and accountability to its stakeholders.

During the reporting year, GPUIL intensified its efforts to reduce
environmental impact. Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emission
inventorisation as per ISO 14064 was carried out at both major
power assets at Warora (Maharashtra) and Kamalanga (Odisha),
underscoring the Company’s commitment to rigorous emissions
monitoring. Both facilities were also certified under ISO 46001
Water Efficiency Management System, highlighting GPUIL's focus
on responsible water use and stewardship.

GPUIL's Warora plant received significant recognition for its
environmental leadership, winning the CII Excellence Award in
Water Management for its integrated watershed management
approach, becoming India’s first thermal power plant to achieve
a Gold Rating under the CII Blue Rating Program, and receiving
CII's National Award for Excellence in Energy Management for
the 8™ time (for 7" consecutive year) along with National Energy
Leader status for the 5™ time. Kamalanga was similarly recognised
with the National Award for Excellence in Water Management
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from CII and received the prestigious Sword of Honor from the
British Safety Council for its robust Occupational Health and Safety
Management System.

GPUIL has continued to expand renewable energy adoption within
its operations, with 642/kW of rooftop solar capacity installed at
Kamalanga and 70/kW at Warora. The Company is also working
to reduce value chain emissions by maximising fly ash evacuation
via rail instead of road, lowering transportation-related carbon
impacts. Nearly 100% of fly ash generated at both power plants
was utilised or diverted from landfill, supporting a circular
economy and reducing environmental liabilities. At Warora, a
Biomass Pellet Machine with a capacity of 100/kg/hr was installed
to convert horticultural waste into biomass fuel. Extensive
greenbelts covering over 33% of land at major assets further
support biodiversity while helping to maintain biodiversity and
mitigate dust and emissions.

Environmental Stewardship and Resource Efficiency

GPUIL's approach to environment management goes well beyond
compliance, focusing on long-term resilience, biodiversity
protection, and the responsible use of natural resources. The
Company maintains a proactive stance on environment
monitoring, deploying advanced systems to manage and
transparently report performance across its project sites.
Circularity is central to its operations, with systematic tracking
and nearly 100% utilisation of fly ash for cement and construction
materials, eliminating landfill disposal and supporting resource
efficiency.

To further minimise emissions, GPUIL prioritised rail transport
for fly ash evacuation, reducing road transport emissions, installed
a biomass pellet machine at Warora to convert local horticultural
waste into usable fuel and adopted Hot-in-Place recycling
methods for road maintenance to reduce material consumption
for highways business. Air quality initiatives included the
deployment of fog cannons to reduce fugitive dust emissions,
while energy-efficient LEDs are installed across highway
operations to lower energy consumption.

Social Responsibility and Inclusive Development

GPUIL's social responsibility agenda is built on its commitment
to inclusive and participatory development in the communities
where it operates. Through the GMR Varalakshmi Foundation,
the Company implements a broad range of programs in
education, healthcare, and livelihoods development to improve
quality of life. This is supported by participatory rural appraisal
tools, structured community engagement, and robust grievance
redress mechanisms to ensure responsiveness to local needs. In
FY 2025, Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR") efforts of the
Company made a significant impact, positively benefiting over
seventy thousand lives, with more than 95% of these beneficiaries
coming from vulnerable and marginalised communities. This
underscores GPUIL's commitment to driving inclusive growth and
social development in the communities where it operates.

GPUIL's commitment to social accountability is further
demonstrated through Warora'’s certification under the SA 8000
Social Accountability Standard, highlighting its adherence to high

Notice

standards of employee welfare. Employee well-being and diversity
remain central priorities, with ongoing health and safety training,
ethics awareness initiatives, and inclusive hiring practices. The
Company fosters a work environment that values mental well-
being, safety, respect, and continuous professional development.

Governance Excellence and ESG Oversight

Strong governance is central to GPUIL's sustainability agenda.
The Company has implemented a robust ESG governance
framework with dedicated oversight by the ESG Committee at
the Board level, ensuring ESG aspects are integrated into strategic
decision-making. GPUIL remains fully committed to meeting all
regulatory obligations, including compliance with SEBI's Business
Responsibility and Sustainability Reporting (BRSR) framework.

Ethical conduct is maintained through mandatory employee
training, effective whistleblower mechanism, and rigorous anti-
corruption safeguards. On the digital front, GPUIL has
implemented strong cybersecurity and data protection protocols,
with reviews to ensure operational resilience and safeguard data
and information.

Charting a Sustainable Future

GPUIL's sustainability strategy is guided by its vision to create
long-term value for society through responsible and resilient
infrastructure of national importance. By embedding ESG
principles across all aspects of its business, from energy transition
and operational efficiency to stakeholder engagement and
governance, the Company continues to position itself as a leader
in India’s evolving energy and infrastructure landscape. These
integrated efforts support national and global sustainable
development goals while ensuring positive and enduring
outcomes for all stakeholders and communities.

Discussion and analysis of financial conditions and
operational performance

The consolidated financial position as at March 31, 2025 and
performance of the Company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates during the financial year ended on that date are
discussed hereunder:

Further, during the previous year ended March 31,2024, the
Company on November 21, 2023 acquired 1,051.15 mn equity
shares of GMR Energy Limited (GEL) representing 29.14% of the
equity share capital of GEL, from Power and Energy International
(Mauritius) Limited, a subsidiary of Tenaga Nasional Berhad. With
this complete buy-out of Tenaga stake, the Shareholders
Agreement with Tenaga stood terminated. The Group accounted
for the acquisition of additional stake in GEL by applying
acquisition method of accounting in accordance with Ind AS 103
‘Business Combination’ thereby enabling control over GEL and
subsidiaries and full line-by-line consolidation of Assets, Liabilities,
Revenues and Earnings of GEL and subsidiaries with the Group
with effect from November 22, 2023 which was earlier done on
an equity method in accordance with Ind AS 28 ‘Investment in
associates and joint venture’. For more details on business
combination, refer note 50 of the consolidated financial
statement.
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ASSETS- NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)

PPE has decreased from X 7,889.38 crore as at March 31,
2024 to X 7,124.94 crore as at March 31, 2025 primarily
due to depreciation charged during the year and due to
transfer of PPE of GMR Vemagiri Power Generation Limited
(GVPGL) to ‘Assets included in disposal group held for sale’.

Right of use asset

Right of use asset has decreased from ¥ 284.13 crore as at
March 31, 2024 to X 275.46 crore as at March 31, 2025
due to amortization during the year.

Capital work- in -progress

Capital work in progress increased from X 357.38 crore as
at March 31, 2024 to X 505.26 crore as at March 31, 2025,
mainly on account of purchase of asset which was not
ready to use as on March 31, 2025.

Investment Property

Investment property has decreased from X 339.71 crore
as at March 31, 2024 to X 165.02 crore as at March 31,
2025 primarily due to transfer of Investment property to
‘Assets included in disposal group held for sale’ and also
sale of stake of subsidiary during the year.

Goodwill

There is no change in the value of Goodwill amounting
% 36.93 crore.

Other Intangible Assets

Other Intangible assets have decreased from ¥ 2,387.48
crore as at March 31, 2024 to X 564.34 crore as at March
31, 2025 primarily due to full amortization of balance
carrying value of carriage ways on account of handover of
project pursuant to amicable settlement between GMR
Hyderabad Vijayawada Expressways Private Limited
(GHVEPL) and NHAL

Investments accounted for using equity method

Investments accounted for using equity method has
decreased from X 197.86 crore as at March 31, 2024 to X
4.00 crore as at March 31, 2025 primarily due to transfer
of investment in GMR Bajoli Holi Hydropower Private
Limited (GBHHPL), to ‘Assets included in disposal group
held for sale’ due to divestment of the stake.

Other Investments

Other investments have decreased from ¥ 215.32 crore as
at March 31, 2024 to X 113.64 crore as at March 31, 2025
mainly due to transfer of Investment in debentures in
GBHHPL to ‘Assets included in disposal group held for
sale’.

Non-current trade receivables

Non-current trade receivables have decreased from
110.20 crore as at March 31, 2024 to X 31.99 crore as at
March 31, 2025 due to reclassification of trade receivables
from non-current to current.

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
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Loans

Loans have decreased from X 870.17 crore as at March 31,
2024 to X 66.86 crore as at March 31, 2025 due to
realisation of loans and conversion of loans into
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures .

Other financial assets

Other financial assets have decreased from X 945.68 crore
as at March 31, 2024 to X 803.06 crore as at March 31,
2025 mainly due to realization from Receivable against
service concession arrangements (SCA) and due to receipt
of refund of deposit from NHAI in GHVEPL on account of
handover of project pursuant to amicable settlement
between GHVEPL and NHAL

. Other non-current assets

Other non-current assets have decreased from ¥ 58.85
crore as at March 31, 2024 to ¥ 51.07 crore as at March 31,
2025 in normal course of business.

ASSETS - CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories

Inventories have increased from X 211.88 crore as at March
31,2024, to ¥ 394.84 crore as at March 31, 2025 primarily
on account of inventory of smart meters pursuant to
commencement of operations in smart metering
companies during the year.

Financial assets — Investments

Investments have increased fromX 237.11 crore as at March
31, 2024 to X 247.37 crore as at March 31, 2025 primarily
on account of investment in mutual fund during the year.

Financial assets — Trade receivables

Trade receivables has increased from ¥ 1,541.04 crore as
at March 31, 2024 to % 1,704.94 crore as at March 31, 2025
primarily on account of account of increase in trade
receivables in group entities in normal course of business.

Financial assets — Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and Cash equivalents have increased from X 430.22
crore as at March 31, 2024 to X 688.67 crore as at March
31, 2025 mainly on account of borrowing taken by the
group companies.

Financial assets — Bank balances other than cash and
cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
increased from ¥ 251.59 crore as at March 31, 2024 to X
297.68 crore as at March 31, 2025 in the normal course of
business.

Loans

Loans have increased from ¥ 19.79 crore as at March 31,
2024 to X 25.63 crore as at March 31, 2025 in the normal
course of business.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets have decreased from X 2,258.79 crore
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as at March 31, 2024 to X 2,215.35 crore as at March 31,
2025 is primarily due to decrease in Interest accrued
receivable and realisation of SCA receivable in normal
course of business.

Other current assets

Other current assets have increased from I 472.87 crore
as at March 31, 2024 to % 694.24 crore as at March 31,
2025 primarily due to increase in advances to supplier in
normal course of business.

Assets included in disposal group held for sale

Assets classified as held for sale increased from X 319.53
crore as at March 31, 2024 to X 948.74 crore as at March
31, 2025 mainly due to divestment of stake in GVPGL and
GBHHPL pursuant to framework agreement entered with
Synergy Investments Holding Limited (“Synergy”).

EQUITY

Increase in equity share capital from ¥ 301.80 crore as on
March 31, 2024 to ¥ 357.42 crore as on March 31, 2025,
mainly due to shares issued pursuant to conversion of
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) into Equity.

Other equity has increased from X (3,219.02) crore as at
March 31, 2024 to X 229.49 crore as at March 31, 2025
primarily on account of increase in securities premium,
waiver of interest payable pursuant to conversion of FCCBs
into Equity and also due to receipt of claim on account of
handover of GHVEPL project to NHAI pursuant to amicable
settlement between GHVEPL and NHAL

Non-controlling interest have increased from ¥ (65.09)
crore as at March 31, 2024 to X 130.82 crore as at March
31, 2025 mainly due to share of profit of minority and
acquisition of non-controlling interests during the year
ended March 31, 2025.

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings

Non-current borrowings have decreased from¥ 11,684.16
crore as at March 31, 2024 to X 8,770.47 crore as at March
31, 2025 pursuant to conversion of FCCBs into Equity.

Lease Liabilities

Lease liabilities have increased from X 16.22 crore as at
March 31, 2024 to X 17.16 crore as at March 31, 2025 in
normal course of business.

Other Financial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities have decreased from ¥ 1,022.81
crore as at March 31, 2024 to X 956.04 crore as at March
31, 2025, mainly due to reclassification of interest payable
to current financial liability as per the repayment terms.

Provisions

Provisions have decreased from ¥ 147.87 crore as at March
31, 2024 to X 135.92 crore as at March 31, 2025 mainly
due to decrease in provision for operation and
maintenance in highway entities.
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Other non-current Liabilities

Other non-current liabilities have decreased from X 47.01
crore as at March 31, 2024 to ¥ 20.52 crore as at March 31,
2025 on account of transfer of Government grant payable
of GVPGL to ‘Liabilities included in disposal group held
for sale’.

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities have increased from X 44.33 crore
as at March 31, 2024 to X 75.37 crore as at March 31, 2025
mainly due to deferred tax liabilities created during the
year.

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings

Borrowings have decreased from % 2,170.72 crore as at
March 31, 2024 to X 1,467.83 crore as at March 31, 2025
mainly due to repayment of working capital and related
party loans.

Trade Payables

Trade payables have decreased from X 2,595.88 crore as
at March 31,2024 to X 1,154.96 crore as at March 31, 2025
mainly due to adjustment of payable to NHAI on account
of handover of project pursuant to amicable settlement
between GHVEPL and NHAL

Lease Liabilities

Lease liabilities have decreased from X 4.51 crore as at
March 31, 2024 to X 3.82 crore as at March 31, 2025 in
normal course of business.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities have decreased from X 2,621.10
crore as at March 31, 2024 to X 1,864.16 crore as at March
31, 2025 mainly due to decrease in interest payable to
FCCB holders pursuant to conversion of FCCBs into Equity
and also due to settlement of liability towards put option.

Provisions

Provisions have decreased from ¥ 759.09 crore as at March
31, 2024 to X 420.20 crore as at March 31, 2025 mainly
due to reversal of provision for loss in associate pursuant
to One-time Settlement ('OTS’) with the consortium of
lenders of GMR Rajahmundry Energy Limited ('GREL")

Other current liabilities

Other current liabilities have decreased from X 1,276.97
crore as at March 31, 2024 to X 1,088.86 crore as at March
31, 2025 mainly due to decrease in advance from
customers and Statutory dues payable in the normal course
of business.

Liabilities directly associated with the assets classified
as held for sale

Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held
for sale increased from X 23.10 crore as at March 31, 2024
to ¥ 255.14 crore as at March 31, 2025 mainly due to
divestment of stake in GVPGL pursuant to framework
agreement entered with Synergy Investments Holding
Limited (“Synergy”).
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Overview of our results of operations

The following table sets forth information with respect to the revenues, expenditure, and profit/(loss) on a consolidated basis

Particulars

(R in crore)

March 31, 2024

Continuing operations
Income
Revenue from operations (including other operating income) 6,343.97 4,488.57
Other income 513.85 344.63
Total Income 6,857.82 4,833.20
Expenses
Revenue share paid / payable to concessionaire grantors 56.57 211.99
Consumption of fuel 2,519.23 895.09
Cost of material consumed 297.13 107.51
Purchase of traded goods 660.14 1,393.35
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress - (9.24)
Transmission and distribution charges 11.82 1.33
Sub-contracting expenses 160.92 200.39
Employee benefits expense 251.89 149.12
Other expenses 719.17 470.55
Total expenses 4,676.87 3,420.09
EBITDA from continuing operations 2,180.95 1,413.11
Depreciation and amortization expenses 599.85 286.27
Finance costs 1,571.01 1,476.54
Profit/(loss) before share of loss of investments accounted for using equity 10.09 (349.70)
method, exceptional items and tax from continuing operations
Share of loss of investments as per accounting under equity method (133.53) (154.85)
Loss before exceptional items and tax from continuing operations (123.44) (504.55)
Exceptional items 1,899.72 456.00
Profit/ (loss) before tax from continuing operations 1,776.28 (48.55)
Tax expenses 38.38 33.63
Profit/ (loss) after tax from continuing operations (i) 1,737.90 (82.18)
Discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations before tax expenses (185.65) (45.29)
Tax expenses = -
Loss after tax from discontinued operations (i) (185.65) (45.29)
Total profit /(loss) after tax for the year (A) (i+ii) 1,552.25 (127.47)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (B) (73.68) (10.01)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (A+B) 1,478.57 (137.48)
Sales/Operating Revenue
The segment wise break-up of the Sales/Operating Revenue are as follows:
(R in crore)

Particulars For the year ended

m March 31, 2024
Revenue from Operations:
Power segment 5,330.85 3,176.05
Smart Meter Infrastructure segment 320.54 -
Road segment 396.69 717.26
EPC segment 190.75 340.88
Others segment 315.23 586.26
Inter segment revenue (210.09) (331.88)
Total Revenue from operations 6,343.97 4,488.57
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Operating revenue from power segment

Revenue from our power segment consists of generation and
sale of electrical energy from GMR Warora Energy Limited (GWEL),
GMR Kamalanga Energy Limited (GKEL) and GMR Gujarat Solar
Power Limited (GGSPL). Also, it includes energy and coal trading
revenue from GMR Energy Trading Limited (GETL) and GMR
Infrastructure (Singapore) Pte Limited (GISPL) respectively. Other
major operating energy entities include GBHHPL, which are
assessed as Joint Venture.

The operating revenue from power segment has increased 67.85%
from X 3,176.05 crore in FY 2023-24 to X 5,330.85 crore in FY
2024-25 primarily due to consolidation of revenue for full year
for major operating energy entities like GWEL, GKEL and GGSSPL
in FY 2024-25. However, revenue of these entities was
consolidated only for four months approximately in FY 2023-24
as these were assessed as subsidiaries of the group on acquisition
of additional stake in GMR Energy Limited (GEL) with effect from
November 22, 2023.

Operating revenue from smart meter infrastructure segment

Revenue from smart meter infrastructure segment mainly consists
of revenue from smart meters installation & control and
maintenance. The SPVs have started installing the meters at
consumer premises meeting all performance obligations outlined
in the contract. Accordingly, revenue is recorded in accordance
with Ind AS 115 since smart meters are operational and all
performance obligations are met.

Operating revenue from road segment

Revenue from our road operations is derived from annuity
payments received from NHAI for our annuity projects and toll
charges collected from road users of the toll road projects.

The operating revenue from road segment has decreased by
44.69% fromX 717.26 crore in FY 2023-24 to X 396.69 crore in FY
2024-25 mainly due to closure of operation in GHVEPL on account
of handover of project pursuant to amicable settlement between
GHVEPL and NHAL

Operating revenue from EPC segment

Revenue from our EPC segment is derived from the execution of
engineering, procurement and construction works in connection
with railways and road.

During the FY 2024-25, the EPC sector operating revenue has
decreased by 44.04% from I 340.88 crore in FY 2023-24 to
% 190.75 crore in FY 2024-25 as DFCC project is completed and
track is handed over to DFCCIL for operations. However, certain
ancillary works are pending completion, which company is in
process of completion.

Operating revenue from Other Sectors

Revenue from other sector includes management services
revenue, investment revenue and operating revenue of aviation
businesses. During the FY 2024-25, other sector has contributed
3 315.23 crore to the operating revenue as against Y 586.26 crore
in FY 2023-24.

Notice

Expenditure
Revenue share paid/payable to concessionaire grantors

The revenue share paid/payable to various concessionaires has
decreased from X 211.99 crore in FY 2023-24 to X 56.57 crore in
FY 2024-25 primarily on account of handover of project pursuant
to amicable settlement between GHVEPL and NHAIL

Operating and administrative expenditure

Sub-Contracting expenses

The decrease in Sub Contracting expenses is mainly on account
decrease in corresponding revenue in ongoing DFCC project as
DFCC project is completed and track is handed over to DFCCIL
for operations. However, certain ancillary works are pending
completion, which company is in process of completion.

Consumption of fuel

The increase in Consumption of fuel is mainly as the major
operating energy entities like GWEL and GKEL are consolidated
for full year in FY 2024-25. However, these entities were
consolidated only for four months approximately in FY 2023-24
as these were assessed as subsidiaries of the group on acquisition
of additional stake in GMR Energy Limited (GEL) with effect from
November 22, 2023.

Purchase of Traded goods

The decrease in purchase of traded goods in the FY 2024-25 is
mainly on account of decrease in corresponding revenue in coal
trading.

Cost of material consumed

The increase in cost of materials consumed in the FY 2024-25 is
corresponding to recognizing smart meter revenue for the first
time in current financial year.

Employee benefits expenses

The increase in employee benefit costs in the current year is
mainly on account of consolidation of GEL and its subsidiaries
for full year in FY 2024-25. However, these entities were
consolidated only for four months approximately in FY 2023-24
as these were assessed as subsidiaries of the group on acquisition
of additional stake in GMR Energy Limited (GEL) with effect from
November 22, 2023.

Other expenses

Other expenses include:

«  Consumption of stores and spares, electricity and water
charges, manpower hire charges, rentals, repairs and
maintenance, legal and professional charges, provision for
doubtful advances, fair valuation on financial instruments
through PL, write off/provision towards investments,
travelling and conveyance, communication, foreign
exchange differences and other miscellaneous expenses.

There is increase in other expenses in FY 2024-25 mainly on
account of consolidation of GEL and its subsidiaries for full year
in FY 2024-25. However, these entities were consolidated only
for four months approximately in FY 2023-24 as these were
assessed as subsidiaries of the group on acquisition of additional
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stake in GMR Energy Limited (GEL) with effect from November
22,2023.

Finance Cost

The increase in finance cost mainly on account of consolidation
of GEL and its subsidiaries for full year in FY 2024-25. However,
these entities were consolidated only for four months
approximately in FY 2023-24 as these were assessed as
subsidiaries of the group on acquisition of additional stake in
GMR Energy Limited (GEL) with effect from November 22, 2023.

The same is offset by decrease in finance cost pursuant to
conversion of FCCBs into Equity and repayment of borrowings
during the year.

Exceptional items

Exceptional items comprise of the impairment of investment in
joint venture and associates, reversal of impairment of
investments, gain/(loss) on disposal/ liquidation of investment
in subsidiaries, share of exceptional item of its associate, write
back /waiver of liability, write off/ provision against receivables/
loans, reversal of provision of receivables, settlement of claim
and provision / loss on investment property

Share of profit / (loss) of investments as per accounting under
equity method.

Decreased in share of loss of JV and Associates mainly due to
accounting of share of profit/(loss) consolidation of GEL and its
subsidiaries which were assessed as joint ventures of the group
till November 21, 2023.

Tax expenses

Tax expense mainly comprises of current tax expense and deferred
tax expense .There is increase in tax expenses in 2024-25 as
compared to 2023-24 mainly on account of increase in taxable
profits in GWEL.

Significant changes in key financial ratios, along with detailed
explanations

In compliance with the requirement of listing regulations, details
of significant changes (i.e. Change of 25% or more as compared
to the immediately previous financial year) in key financial ratios
and any changes in return on net worth of the company (on
standalone basis) including explanations therefor are given below:

Particulars Numerator Denominator March 31, | Variance | Reasons for variance
2024
Interest Coverage | Earnings before interest, Interest 1.05 0.95 10.21% Not applicable
Ratio taxes, depreciation and Expenses
amortisation
Operating Profit | Earnings before interest, Revenue 63.75% 54.47% 17.05% Not applicable
Margin taxes, depreciation and
amortisation
Return on Net Profit / (loss) Equity (excluding| 45.14% 124.25% (63.67%) Due to conversion
Net Worth fare valuation of FCCBs into Equity
through other share Capital
comprehensive
income)

Also refer note 40 of the standalone financial statements for key
on standalone basis.

Corporate Social Responsibility

GMR Varalakshmi Foundation (“GMRVF") is the Corporate Social
Responsibility arm of the GMR Group. The Group has been
undertaking CSR activities on a significant scale since 1991.
GMRVF supports the companies under the Group in
implementing their CSR mandates. GMRVF's purpose is to work
in the fields of Education, Health and Empowerment such that
its activities directly benefit mainly the communities in the
immediate neighborhood of the Group’s projects. Currently,
GMRVF is working with selected communities in about 20
locations in India. The locations are spread across different states
namely Himachal Pradesh, Odisha, Maharashtra, Punjab, Tamil
Nadu and Telangana.

During the FY 2024-25, GMRVF implemented the CSR activities
in the areas of Education, Health and Livelihoods in all its project
areas.

Significant achievements of GMRVF in the year FY 2024-25 are
as below:
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financial ratios including reason for variances (other than above),

Initiated CSR activities at Varanasi, Agra and Prayagraj
clusters around GMR Smart Meter projects in UP.

Precision farming program through Drone use and IoT in
Agriculture were introduced at Warora demonstrating the
Foundation’s commitment to support farming communities
by leveraging advanced technology.

At Kamalanga, GMRVF facilitated formation of a Farmer
Producer Company to facilitate collective initiatives of the
farmers.

At Warora, 110 families from 7 villages were supported for
construction of Individual Sanitary Lavatories demonstrating the
Group's commitment to the cause of Swachh Bharat.

Risk Concerns and Threats Identification, assessment,
profiling, treatment and monitoring the risks

The Company, having recognised the need for a
comprehensive Risk Management Framework, is in the process
of reviewing and revising its existing Group ERM Policy and
Framework during the year.
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During the year, the Company hired an industry expert to help
it review the existing ERM framework and amend and develop
a new ERM Policy and Framework. This process is currently in
its final phase, with the revised policy and framework being
rolled out across the organisation.

The revised policy and framework take into account best
practices in Enterprise Risk Management, and amendments
have been primarily focused on the following aspects:

«  Establish stronger linkage between Corporate Strategy
and Risk Management functions which has been designed
to help the Company focus on key strategic risks.

«  Detailed risk assessment will be seamlessly integrated into
the Company’s annual exercise of Strategy-setting and
Annual Operating Plan, with stronger governance being
put into place to track and report key risks across the
organisation.

«  For organisation to quickly adapt to disruptions while
maintaining continuous business operations and
safeguarding people, assets and overall brand equity, the
Business Continuity Plans (“BCP") and Disaster Recovery
Plans (“DRP") for key assets have been integrated into
the framework.

« Company's commitment to sustainability and
demonstrable efforts to reduce, eradicate or mitigate the
impact of its operations on the environment and
community have also become more comprehensive. The
Company’s ESG program is rooted in materiality that has
helped us organise and prioritise relevant ESG factors.

During FY 2024-25, the Company has prioritised the Top Risks
among other identified risks that it regards as significant for its
business operations and strategies. These top risks have been
described hereunder along with existing and proposed mitigation
measures:

» Arbitration/ Litigation risks

GPUIL and/or its subsidiaries have ongoing arbitrations/
litigations in both energy and transportation sectors.

« It has outstanding receivables/ arbitrations going on
with various DISCOMs and other parties (coal pass-
through, change in law, SEPCO, etc.)

« Italso has arbitrations/ litigations in its transportation
business:

o Two of the highway assets have ongoing
litigation with NHAI (Ambala-Chandigarh, case
of competing highways and Pochanpalli).

o The DFCC railway project is in arbitration for
prolongation claims.

For addressing these risks:

*  GPUIL relies on its robust in-house mechanism for
dispute risk assessment, which provides the
management with an early evaluation of the risks and
costs associated with every potential arbitration /
litigation, before the same is triggered.

Notice

« The Company would typically work with a
combination of strong in-house counsel both
corporate and sectoral, and specialist external
counsel as per the specific requirements.

«  Positive outcomes received during FY 2024-25:

o DFCC: DAB (Dispute Adjudication Board)
awarded X 517 crore against a claim of ¥ 1,826
crore, both parties issued notice of
dissatisfaction.

o GWEL and GKEL claims against DISCOMs
significant amount of long pending regulatory
receivables received.

» Financial Risks
« Liquidity Risks

*  GPUIL, being the holding company with limited
operating cash flows, has been constrained to service
or refinance the corporate debt / outstanding loans.

« Additionally, at the subsidiary level, there remains a
liquidity risk to meet obligations including debt
servicing/ repayment on account of the following:

o Continued outstanding regulatory receivables
from DISCOMs

o Any adverse outcome of ongoing litigations

o ESG pressures may increase the funding
requirements (e.g. additional capex for Flue Gas
Desulfurisation ("FGD"))

« Liquidity requirements for Smart Meters project,
renewable assets at thermal Plants/ airports, other
Energy 2.0 and other new business initiatives will need
to be arranged.

There have been positive developments during the
year that have mitigated some risks and the Company
is monitoring other developments:

«  Strategic Sale transaction: Framework agreement
signed with Synergy for divestment of stake in Bajoli
Holi, Vemagiri and Rajahmundry. Divestment has
enabled the one-time settlement with the lenders of
GREL, reduction of loan and spin off the non-
operational gas plants and stressed assets.

 Hyderabad Vijayawada arbitration claim award
received: Settlement was agreed between GHVEPL
and NHAI as per which NHAI has paid an amount of
% 1,387.21 crore to GHVEPL as claim and project was
handed back to NHAI on July 01, 2024.

- Significant progress has been made on the recovery
of regulatory receivables from DISCOMs.

- Significant land monetisation at Krishnagiri SEZ has
been achieved so far

. DFCC: PBGs, RBGs & CGs of ¥ 294 crore will be
released during Q2 FY 2026 after completion of
Defect Liability period.
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Government of India has categorised thermal power
plants into three categories (A, B, and C) based on
their location. Category C is exempted from installing
FGD. GWEL is in category C. GKEL, currently category
B, has appealed to be considered as category C.

GWEL and GKEL refinancing targeted in FY 2026;
change in debt covenants to enable cash upstreaming
to GPUIL.

« Interest Rate risk

Risk from heightened inflation leading to high
interest rates.

High interest rate for Holding Company Debts.

Existing Debt at various assets also contribute to
interest rate risk.

Some development in the direction of mitigating the
interest rate risks are:

o Inflation moderated during FY 2024-25, RBI cut
repo rates by 100 bp during last 12 months.

o Refinancing of HoldCo Debt targeted during FY
2025-26; will lead to significant reduction in
interest rates.

o Potential Refinancing of Debt at GWEL and GKEL
targeted FY 2025-26, will lead to reduction in
interest costs.

o Divestment of stake in Bajoli Holi, Vemagiri and
Rajahmundry has led to substantial reduction in
consolidated debt.

o Company has initiatives to increase operating
cash flows and further reduce corporate debt at
holding company to sustainable levels. Existing
project entities are focused on improving
operating cash flows and improve their ratings
to access cheaper debt.

. Credit risk
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The Company's exposure to sale of electricity to
DISCOMs may expose us to credit risk.

Although historically, the credit risks from DISCOMs
have been materially high, but in recent years,
DISCOMs have been relatively regular in making
payment for operational dues.

However, in case of regulatory dues, DISCOMs have
been mostly taking the litigation route and delaying
the payments (covered under Regulatory Risks).

Smart Meters business may be exposed to credit risk
due to exposure to payments from DISCOMs.

For mitigating Credit Risk:

o All receivables are being closely monitored and
reviewed frequently by the top management.

o In order to encourage DISCOMs to clear their
current operation dues, the government notified
the LPS Rules which substantially raised the
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DISCOM'’s cost for delaying payments to
suppliers.

o DISCOMs are now clearing the non-regulatory
dues regularly while clearing the regulatory dues
only after the conclusion of legal process. The
Company has made substantial progress in
addressing long overdue regulatory receivables
from DISCOMs.

o For Smart Meters business, majority of the
payments to be realised through direct debit
facility, thus minimising the credit risk. Recently,
we have raised first invoice and payment for the
same is received.

Investment Risks

GREL and GVPGL remain un-operational despite
being commissioned, because of unavailability of gas.
As such, the Company is exposed to risk of investment
impairment.

Continued uncertainties in outcome of arbitrations
pose risk to the Company’s investment (SEPCO, DFCC,
Gammon).

Smart Meters being a new business area with
significant financing, execution, operational and
performance-based risks expose GPUIL to investment
risk.

Kamalanga Power Plant : Investment planned for an
additional 4t unit (350 MW).

For mitigating investment risks:

The portfolio is periodically reviewed and necessary
decisions like divestments are explored. In case of
material disputes, arbitrations are initiated.

Gas assets:

o The consortium of lenders of GREL approved to
accept the OTS amount of ¥ 657.00 crore
towards full and final settlement of entire
exposure including Term Loan, NCDs, CRPS,
Interest Payable and Equity Shares and for
closure of Corporate Guarantees.

o Strategic Sale transaction: Framework
agreement signed with Synergy for divestment
of 51% stake in Vemagiri and Rajahmundry.
Divestment will enable reduction of loan and
spin off the non-operational gas plants.

Significant number of regulatory receivables in GWEL
and GKEL have been realised.

DFCC: Dispute Adjudication Board ("“DAB") awarded
% 517.00 crore against a claim of ¥ 1,826 crore, both
parties issued notice of dissatisfaction.

For Smart Meters, we have partnered with Bosch as
financial and strategic investor (10%). Debt funding
tied up with IREDA. Payment against initial invoice
received.
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The Company is actively pursuing land monetisation
in the Krishnagiri SIR and have been able to monetise
it to a large extent.

The Company has strengthened our Go No-Go
process evaluation for new opportunities.

> Regulatory Risks

The Energy sector is under intense scrutiny for impact
on climate and environment. The pressure to uphold
ESG targets and to implement new procedures in line
with global trends poses hurdles in accessing cheaper
capital for coal-based projects.

Further, changes and modifications in regulations
related to tariffs and environmental protection under
ESG mandate (like Flue Gas Desulfurisation (FGD)),
use of 5% blend of biomass pellets along with coal)
continued to pose funding and cash flow risks to
GPUIL's energy business.

Slow pace of resolution at regulatory forums also
delays outcome of several unresolved regulatory
matters.

Change in policies at State Government level:

*  Market coupling regulation for power sector may
have adverse impact on merchant tariffs.

*  New policies on toll collections on highways may
affect how revenue is generated.

«  The portfolio rationalisation/ monetisation effort
at Krishnagiri SEZ will require close co-operation
with State Government.

As mitigation measures, the Group actively pursues:

o Tracking of all developments in the regulatory
environment.

o Make representations through participation in
industry associations to safeguard the business
interests from effects of political intervention
that have bearings on the businesses.

o Identifying, monitoring and updating the
management on regulatory developments and
their impact.

o Where necessary, the Group has engaged in
arbitration and/or litigation as appropriate, in
order to protect its interest in this regard.

o Government of India has categorized thermal
power plants into three categories (A, B, and C)
based on their location. Category C is exempted
from installing FGD. GWEL is in category C. GKEL,
currently category B, has appealed to be
considered as category C.

o More than 90% of power generated at GKEL and
GWEL is tied up in long term fixed tariff PPA;
thus, impact of market coupling regulation could
be minimal.

o The Energy 2.0 initiative aims to steer the
Company towards clean energy businesses, thus
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making it increasingly ESG compliant.

o The Company works closely with all relevant
stakeholders to mitigate impact of the change
in policies due to change in State Governments.

» Operational Risks

Thermal Power Plants: Any lower side deviation to
the project PLFs will impact cashflows; PLFs may be
impacted due to any unscheduled maintenance,
linkage coal supply, low power demand etc.

Smart Meter Installation: Low installation rate of
smart meters will erode profitability of the project
on account of liquidated damages for delay, loss of
monthly meter charges etc.

Highways: Lower traffic will adversely impact
earnings.

Over the years, some positive developments have
taken place, which mitigate some of the operational
risks:

o Plant PLFs have improved considerably due to
higher demand for power and better availability
of coal which resulted in considerable
profitability improvement. During FY 2024-25,
both GKEL and GWEL achieved best plant
performance since COD with PLFs of 88% and
87% respectively.

o Smart meter installation: The Company has
addressed teething issues and has now a well
established process for meter installation with
materially improved productivity, which will help
in scaling up operations and reduce the potential
impact of delays.

o Highways: Out of the 3 highway assets, 2 are
annuity based and immune to risk on account
of lower traffic. Ambala Chandigarh project is
already under arbitration on account of loss of
traffic due to competing highway.

» Technology Risks

GPUIL's coal-based power plants are exposed to
business risks from a shift from fossil-fuel power
plants to renewable-energy plants like solar power,
wind power and from advancement of technology
that is driving the renewable power industry.

The smart and data driven solutions with in-built
intelligence that are influencing how energy is
generated, transported, stored and distributed is
impacting the overall energy sector. Some of these
trends have emerged around smart metering,
prosumer model, IOT, energy storage, etc.

The emerging technologies have brought in a
paradigm shift with newer business models being
implemented in the energy and utility sectors.

These risks may have only moderate impact on the
business/ assets:
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o Conventional coal-based power plants have long
term PPAs which ensure that they are not directly
exposed to material risks from renewable energy.
Further, coal-based power plants are expected
to continue to play an important role for meeting
base load requirements, as Round-the-Clock
renewable energy is not yet easily available or
viable.

o Energy 2.0 initiative is aimed at adapting to new
technologies at early stage to increase efficiency
and to be able to enter new business streams in
the sector.

o Under Energy 2.0, the Company has scanned and
analysed available technologies w.r.t Smart
Meters, EV Chargers, etc. and has tried to
mitigate technological risk by engaging with /
adopting the latest available technology.

GPUIL also partners with leading technology
companies for technology partnership in its projects.
Bosch joined as technological partner in
implementing Uttar Pradesh’s smart meter projects.

> Reputation/ Brand Risks

GPUIL's businesses do not have noteworthy exposure to
reputation and brand risks. However, reputation may have
some impact if:
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The energy businesses may be lagging behind in
meeting ESG expectations.

Risk of certain assets defaulting on debt obligations.
Negative litigation outcomes.

Smart meter installation is consumer facing business
which requires interaction with residents and can
pose a brand reputation risk due to potential
customer resistance to adoption.

Taking cognizance of increasing pressure on power
generation industry to meet ESG expectations, GPUIL
has taken proactive action in diversifying its energy
portfolio and is taking measures to ensure full
compliance with any new regulations that existing
businesses may be subjected to.

To mitigate risks to reputation in broader public
perception, GPUIL takes proactive steps to ensure it
communicates through PR and Investor teams.

The Company’s policies are continuously being
updated to assess, check and enhance brand value
with respect to:

o Operational Excellence

o Strong Governance (including ethics standards)
o Strong Sustainability Credentials

o CSR

The Company is making continuing efforts to meet
its debt obligations, improve liquidity and credit
profile of GPUIL.
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The Company continues to work proactively with
stakeholders for protecting brand name.

Outsourced manpower installing smart meters are
provided training on softer aspects to deal with
consumers.

» Cybersecurity Risks

There has been no noticeable breach of cyber security in
the company’s network. However, due to evolving threats,
vulnerability to increasingly sophisticated hacking
methods, the Company’s businesses may be affected in
different ways as below:

(0]

(0]

(0]

Data loss
Malware/ Cyber-threat

Impersonation

Given the nature of operations at GPUIL's assets the
Company is not exposed to any severe cybersecurity
risk.

Smart Meters business, being highly digital in nature,
may be exposed to cyber attacks

As the energy and road assets do not have any
operations that heavily depend on information-
sharing or live online transactions, they generally face
minimal risk of disruption from online threats.

o GPUIL s part of the group-wide centralised cyber
security program in place, covering people,
process and technologies aspects of Cyber
Protect, Detect, Respond & Recover capabilities.

o 24 x 7 Next Generation Security Operations
Centre monitoring all critical infrastructure for
any suspicious activity.

o AI/ML based End Point Detection implemented
across all computing devices.

o Next Gen Web Application Firewall protecting
all public facing websites.

o Periodic Vulnerability assessments and
Penetration testing are conducted of the
environment along with continuous attack

surface monitoring.

o Periodic User awareness communications and
trainings are conducted.

o Periodic program maturity assessment is
conducted to drive continuous improvement
plan.

o For UP smart meter project, BOSCH was
appointed as technology partner.

» Competition Risks

Competition risk can be assessed on following dimensions:

Competition from renewable energy projects.

Due to large amount of capital chasing the renewable
energy opportunities in India, the competition for the
entry in this segment is high.
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Competition for coal-based power

Due to significant availability of cost effective
renewable energy in the market and new thermal
power plants coming up, the Company is exposed to
risk of non-renewal of PPAs for GWEL/ GKEL.

Competition for highways/ roads

Intense competition on highways/ EPC with players
having low cost of capital

Aggressive competition from big strategic
competitors and financial players in Energy 2.0
growth areas such as Smart Metering/ Transportation
projects.

The Company has to compete with other players
having access to potentially lower cost of capital
resulting in highly competitive/ unviable bids, thus
impacting the growth plans.

The Company's rich experience provides with the
options and opportunities to mitigate risks well:

o Overall competencies and rich experience in
transportation and energy sectors (including
power trading) will enable maintaining
competitive position in both sectors.

o The Company is constantly reviewing its business
strategy based on assessment of growth
prospective in the sectors that the Company
operates in.

o The Company is working towards improving
cashflows at Holdco through various initiatives
like asset monetisation, debt restructuring/
improving Credit rating of the assets to lower
the cost of debt; upstreaming of cash from assets
to Holdco. These initiatives will help in arranging
low-cost capital/ tie up with strategic investors,
to be able to bid competitively.

o The Company is always scanning for the best
opportunities available in the market and devise
the business development strategy accordingly.

« Despite the aggressive competition, the
Company has been able to win Smart Meter
projects in state of Uttar Pradesh.

«  The Company is looking for opportunities
with low competition and has installed EV
chargers at strategic locations at Group
assets.

» Climate Risks

Changing weather patterns are leading to more
probability of extreme weather events such as

o Rainfall, floods, landslides
o Drought conditions
o Earthquakes

Since, the Company has hydro and road projects in
its portfolio, these are exposed to such weather

Notice

events.

The Company relies on vast experience from its
businesses and internal processes to mitigate climate
risks.

The Business Continuity Plans continue to focus on:
o Operational continuity of the energy assets

o Financial sustainability — cash conservation and
reduction of cost structure

o Organisational resilience

The Company maintains adequate insurance to cover
for such contingencies.

Business Environment/ Macroeconomic risks

The Company’s businesses may be exposed to risks in
the following ways:

Power demand has a strong linkage with growth, any
slowdown in economy will have direct impact on
power demand and may bring down energy prices.

Volatility in power tariffs and variability in quality and
quantity of coal supplied under coal linkage may pose
a risk to the power plants.

Highways are exposed to risk of lower traffic due to
unfavorable macroeconomic conditions.

To mitigate the impact of these macroeconomic risk
factors, GPUIL relies on diversified portfolio of assets
and projects in both energy and infrastructure
sectors.

o The Company tries to maximise realisation under
linkage coal and use alternate sources (power
trading) to meet PPA obligations.

o Since most of the power generated is tied up
through long/ medium term PPAs, the risk of
volatility in power prices is mitigated.

o Of the three highways assets, two are on Annuity
model. Therefore, exposure of the road assets
to macroeconomic risks is not significant.

The Power Sector is witnessing strong demand due
to buoyant economic growth, resulting in the plants
being able to sell all the power generated at good
prices. Coal supply has also improved with increased
production by Coal India.

Business Strategy and Growth risks

As a new entity, GPUIL is immediately faced with
challenges in:

Sustaining current diverse portfolio of assets across
various sectors.

Given the capital availability constraints, GPUIL needs
to create a long-term sustainable business pipeline
to mitigate:

o evolving technologies and related uncertainties
(ESG driven tech, smart metering, etc.)
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o volatile regulatory environment
o talent optimisation

» Developing a robust pipeline of projects is key to
sustainability of GPUIL, given that existing portfolio
faces several challenges.

» Ability to finance new projects is impacted due to
capital availability constraints.

As mitigation, GPUIL will focus on below initiatives:

o Asset-light, platform-based, and technology-
oriented business models.

o Enterstrategic partnerships with global reputed
majors and institutes of excellence.

o Invest in emerging start-ups in the clean tech
ecosystem where there are potential synergies.

o Build on the group’s strengths and leverage
infrastructure assets and businesses of the group
as a launch pad for new offerings.

o Target Smart Metering projects, having already
won the bid to install about 75 lakh meters in
Uttar Pradesh and now in installation phase.

o Growing the portfolio of renewable projects at
available land at thermal plants and Group land
banks, explore offering hybrid renewable power.

o Growing the EV charging business with synergies
through group businesses.

o Hiring of new talent/ skill-development of
existing talent for emerging businesses.

o  Working with strategic and financial partners to
mitigate the growth risk arising from capital
availability constraints.

> Talent risks

«  For Company's ‘Energy 2.0" initiative, a pool of trained
manpower specialising in handling new technologies,
and project management skills for their rollout at
large scale, may not be readily available.

«  Availability for skilled manpower for new projects in
Smart Metering, renewable sector may be impacted
if the current pool of talent is depleted due to factors
like limited Business Development pipeline,
manpower poaching by new players, etc.

For mitigation:

o The Company plans to develop a pool of
manpower with specialised skills
management capabilities.

and

o The Company is working on different strategies
like outsourcing/ consulting for meeting critical
resource requirements.

o For smart meters there has been significant
impact of shifting from agency model to staffing
model, which has helped to significantly increase
productivity.

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
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Internal control systems and their adequacy

The Company's internal financial control framework has been
established in accordance with COSO framework to ensure
adequacy of design and operating effectiveness of operational,
financial and compliance related controls. The design and
operating effectiveness of the internal controls are regularly
reviewed by Management Assurance Group (“MAG") (Internal
Auditors of the Company) during audits.

The Company has put adequate policies and procedures in place,
which play a pivotal role in implementation and monitoring of
internal controls, which are embedded in various business
processes, including IT & SAP. MAG assesses opportunities for
improvement in business processes, policies, systems and controls
and provides their recommendations to strengthen Company’s
internal control environment.

Respective Business/Company CEOs are responsible for ensuring
compliance with laid down policies and procedures. It helps the
Company to accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic,
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness
of risk management, control and governance processes.

MAG is responsible for undertaking internal audits across the
group and they are assisted by outsourced audit firms. The
internal audit scope covers, inter alia, all businesses and corporate
functions, as per the annual audit plan reviewed and approved
by the Audit Committee in the beginning of every financial year.

Audit issues identified are addressed through systemic
implementation of appropriate corrective and preventive action
by the respective functions. Emphasis is always placed on
automation of controls within the processes to minimise
deviations and exceptions.

MAG presents in quarterly Audit Committee Meeting, key audit
issues along with action taken report on pending audit issues.
Head MAG provides an assurance to the Audit Committee
confirming compliance to prescribed processes while carrying
out audits, reporting audit observations, monitoring and
implementation of the agreed action plan for closure.

Developments in Human Resources and Organisation
Development at GPUIL

Human Resources (“HR") being one of the key strategy partners,
contributed comprehensively to the Organisational Development
over the years. Following are some of the initiatives taken up by
HR in the year under review:

Organisational structuring & design

Job evaluation for all roles in Renewables business and building
organisation structure for Renewables business and growth
businesses.

Other key initiatives for Human Resource development &
Engagement:

1.  Completed career conversations exercise with employees
identified under Merit List, including Internal Job Postings
("IJP") transition for employees from the Merit List.

2. Completed Manpower productivity study for GKEL.
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Recreated competency dictionary for entire Energy sector
and T&UI sector.

Revisited and revised job descriptions for all unique roles in
T&UI sector.

Employee Engagement Survey concluded with 95%
participation rate and 87% favourable score for Energy
Sector. T&UI achieved 89% participation rate and the highest
engagement score of 88% in the Group.

Concluded organisation diagnosis through the lens of
employee engagement for Smart Metering business.

Multiple CEO Town halls conducted across Energy sector
covering Smart Metering business as well.

10.

11.

12.

Notice

T&UI redeployed 44 colleagues through IJP within the Group
and outplaced 3 employees from GHVEPL project post
project handover.

R&R Coverage: 32.3% employees covered in Energy Sector.
Recognised 30 employees in the T&UI sector with SPOT/
Shabash Awards for their outstanding contributions.

Training Sessions - No. of Programs- 139; No. of Workdays-
1917; No. of Workhours- 15336

Conducted monthly employee engagement activities across
all T&UTI locations, including birthday celebrations, training
programs, CSR initiatives, and more.

Certified 4 mentors from the sector and initiated Mentorship
Program actively supporting employee development.
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Independent Practitioner’s reasonable assurance report on non-financial information pertaining to core
attributes in Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report (BRSR) of GMR Power and Urban Infra
Limited and its subsidiaries and associate

To

The Board of Directors

GMR Power and Urban Infra Limited
Delhi, New Delhi, India

1. We have been engaged to perform a reasonable assurance engagement for GMR Power and Urban Infra
Limited (the ' Holding Company') and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as the ‘the Group’) and its associates as disclosed under Question 13 of Section A — General
Disclosures of the Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report (BRSR), vide our engagement letter
dated 11" August 2025, in respect of non-financial information pertaining to core attributes of Business
Responsibility and Sustainability Report listed below (the “ldentified Sustainability Information”) in
accordance with the criteria stated below. This Identified Sustainability Information is included in the BRSR
of the Group for the financial year ended 31st March 2025. This engagement was conducted by a
multidisciplinary team including assurance practitioners and engineers.

Identified Sustainability Information

2. The Identified Sustainability Information for the financial year ended 315t March 2025 is summarised below:

Attribute Principle Key Performance Indicator
e Total energy consumption (in Joules or multiples)
Energy footprint Principle 6 — 1 e % of energy consumed from renewable sources
e Energy intensity
o Total water consumption
Water footprint Principle 6 — 3
e Water consumption intensity

Member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd. www.grantthornton.in
Grant Thornton Bharat LLP is registered with limited liability with identity number AAA-7677 and has its registered office at L-41,

Connaught Circus, Outer Circle, New Delhi - 110001.
Offices in Ahmedabad, Bengaluru, Ch